ZENSUN
ZENSUN ENTERPRISES LIMITED
IEEEXZARAT
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

(REBFMA I Z2BRAF])
(Stock Code B85 : 185)

& Em

ANNUAL REPORT £




24

37

43

62

Corporate Profile
NCITS VI

Corporate Information
NEIER

Chairman’s Message

B

Hong Kong and Overseas Property Portfolio
FENBINDEAS

Property Development in the PRC
and Project Summary
EPEzMEERRIBAHRE

Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE RN

Board of Directors and Senior Management
ErgheoRERRE

Report of the Directors

EE R

Corporate Governance Report
PEERRE

Past Performance and Forward Looking Statements
The performance and the results of operations of Zensun Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) as set out in this annual report
are historical in nature and past performance is not a guarantee of future performance. This annual report may contain forward-looking statements and opinions (including
statements, figures, plans, images and other information) that involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results may also differ materially from expectations discussed in such
forward-looking statements and opinions. Neither the Group nor any of its directors, employees or agents shall assume any obligations or liabilities in the event that any

forward-looking statements or opinions does not materialise or turns out to be incorrect.
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CORPORATE PROFILE

REFN

Zensun Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) was founded in 1965 and listed on
the Main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong since 1972. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) primarily engages in property
development, property investment, project management and sales services and
securities trading and investment in Hong Kong, People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and overseas.

With the change of controlling shareholder of the Company since July 2015, the
Group has been expanding its business in the property development sector in the
PRC. From mid 2015 and up to 2020, the Group completed 146 land acquisitions
through tenders, public listings for sale auctions and other merger and acquisitions
in support of the land reserves for property development business in Henan
Province, Beijing and Hubei Province. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
19 completed property projects and/or sub-phases and 55 on-going complex
property projects on hand with 122 land parcels under development and planning
constituting the Group’s land reserves with an aggregate site area of approximately
5.19 million square meters (“sq.m.”) and aggregate estimated GFA of approximately
10.52 million sg.m. in the PRC. In return, the land reserves will bring to the Group
an estimated saleable/leasable GFA under development of approximately 6.26
million sg.m. and estimated GFA under planning of approximately 4.26 million
sq.m. After the ambitious land acquisitions completed in recent years, the Group
built up strong land reserves for the Group’s property development business in
the PRC for the next three to four years with a strong presence in Henan Province.
In the foreseeable future, the Company will continue to identify new property
development projects and bid for land use rights of selective land parcels in the
PRC with focus on Henan Province, as well as other selective first and second tier
cities in the PRC.

In the United States (“USA” or “U.S.”), the Group currently holds approximately 7.5%
equity interest over the NYSE-listed real estate investment trust (“REIT”), Global
Medical REIT, Inc. (“GMR”), and continues to share GMR’s growth through receipt
of dividend income, thereby achieving long-term capital appreciation of the Group’s
investment.

The Company will make use of the Group’s financial, human and technological
resources to enhance its portfolio, asset base and brand image in the PRC, USA
and overseas with an aim to create new sustainable revenue streams and enhance
its shareholder value.

Xinxiang Zensun Smart City
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
EEEH

Zensun Enterprises Limited

Dear shareholders,

[, on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Zensun Enterprises Limited (hereinafter referred to as
the “Company”, and its subsidiaries, collectively, the
“Group”), am pleased to present you the consolidated
annual results and business review of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

EHHFMRR :

RABRRIEEEARARATEBI ARA] &
HWBAR(#EI AEEESS([EFL ) RAM
BAIIRFIREAREBH E2020F12 A1 B FE ([ A

2020 has been an extraordinary year with the sudden outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic. Currently, there have been more than 100 million people who were
infected with COVID-19 at a global scale. | would like to hereby, on behalf of all
staff of the Group, express my sympathy for all the people unfortunately infected.
Due to the impact of the pandemic, most industries were hard hit at the beginning
of the year, and the real estate industry is no exception. Nevertheless, as the
pandemic gradually got under control, benefiting from the fact that the pent-
up demand of homebuyers was actively released and driven by positive factors
such as the release of supply volume and the improved credit environment, the
sales performance of commodity property is improving with the growth in sales
continuing to recover.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s revenue and
gross profit amounted to approximately RMB8,069.1 million and approximately
RMB1,746.3 million, representing a decrease of approximately 9.2% and
approximately 23.6% respectively compared with that of the corresponding period
of 2019, which were primarily derived from the property development business
in the PRC. The decrease in revenue and gross profit was mainly attributable
to delays in development progress and the delivery of certain property projects
caused by the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic.

FEDEHE

KENEBREA -

SRAE 4
Mr. Zhang Jingguo

TE - BITEFFRTIHAEHR
Chairman, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer

2020F BT L) —F - COVID-19% 15z an H K -
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M ZRBEVE  FOABITEHIINEE Bt
ETE 0T - BEERBEZHEEZS  B2R
RESIFEREGRENR RERNEREERENESEHRE
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BieiE -
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EREFEMEERER - WaREFMRLEZ2HN
IBECOVID-19B IBBHE TYXEHEE MR ERTE
FE TR XA FTER ©



Zhengzhou Zensun
Longhushangjing
ZP) IF Al 4 %

Over the past year, a slowdown in the turnover of real estate was resulted from the
facts that the development of real estate enterprises was increasingly divergent,
the profitability of real estate enterprises continuously declined, the sales of real
estate enterprises were under pressure and the construction was delayed, etc.
Under the direct guidance of “three red lines”, there is increased regulation on
real estate industry. The real estate industry has entered into a maturity stage of
the “Age of Silver”. Under the circumstance, the Group has proactively developed
strategies and put forward the slogan of “focus on hard work at the critical period
of development” (A 3LB5Z « HFF & 28) by fully relying on its advantages. All the
staff was encouraged to overcome difficulties in concerted efforts and forge ahead.
Consequently, some achievements have been made.

On offshore financing, the Group actively enhanced investor relations and
maintained friendly communications with offshore financial institutions. With
gradual expansion of offshore financing channels, the issue of US$200 million
debt with a term of 2.5 years was completed at the beginning of the year. As the
Group gradually developed and grew, the efforts and results of the Company won
recognition from the investors and the regulatory bodies. In the first half of the
year, the Group successfully acquired three high-quality projects, namely, Luoyang
Zensun City, Zhengzhou Zensun Riverview Garden, and Zhengzhou Zensun
Princess Lake, which effectively expanded the asset base of the Group. The Group
successfully raised a total of approximately HK$1,110 million through completion
of two share placings in May and December, respectively. Meanwhile, the Group
successfully completed the loan capitalisation through subscription of new shares
of the Company and the issued shares of the Company increased to approximately
19.1 billion shares upon the capitalisation of the entire shareholder’s loan owing to
Joy Town Inc. into shares, which increased the capital of the Company and paved
a solid foundation for further development of the Company.

Ample and high-quality land resources are the premise for an enterprise to ensure
growth of its performance and an assurance that an enterprise will operate as a
going concern. In 2020, adhering to proactive and prudent attitude to acquire land
parcels, in strict compliance with the project selection mechanism, investment
criteria and approval process formulated by the Group, the Group finally won the
bid of 47 land parcels in succession with the total consideration of approximately
RMB8,216.8 million. These new acquired lands were mainly located in Zhengzhou
City and regions in cities and towns in Henan Province where there are high
density of population and people have greater demands for acquisition of housing.
Leveraging on the Group’s extensive experience of project development in Henan
Province, we believe that the Group will make satisfactory achievement. Adhering
to the strategy of “Based on Zhengzhou and Focusing on Cities” in the future,
the Group will continue to increase its land reserves in the high-quality regions
in Zhengzhou, complemented by third — and fourth-tier cities in Henan Province.
In addition, the Group will pay high attention to new first-tier cities and strong
second-tier cities that can attract talents and have strong development potential
and actively expand its presence in the Yangtze River Delta region. The Group will
conduct proper research, planning and budgeting in the early stage of a project to
improve its ability in preventing risks.
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
EE L €

Affected by a variety of trends such as transformation of economic structure,
deepened urbanisation process, and change of population structure, enterprises
will compete with each other based on their comprehensive strength in the future.
Taking into consideration of the fact that the new generation youth are becoming
the main potential customer base with more diverse values and preference
and greater focus on brands, the Group will increase its investment in brand
development, including sourcing professional service providers to enhance training
on the brand and understanding the values of our customers to improve the
brand recognition of the Company in the future. In addition, the Group will focus
on product development and service quality in the future to improve operation,
enhance competitiveness and operational efficiency.

An outstanding enterprise must perform its social responsibility and make solid
contribution to society. The Group has always been keen to support the Glorious
Programme (% % %) and give back to the society and has never forgotten its
responsibility to “be rooted in the people and give back to the people”. Since the
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has proactively performed its
social responsibility and supported the fight against the pandemic. Moreover, under
the call of the targeted poverty alleviation in China, the Group has actively been
devoted to the poverty alleviation projects such as education poverty alleviation,
industrial poverty alleviation, and specific-location poverty alleviation to shoulder
its responsibility and support for rural vitalisation. Going forward, the Group will
continue to forge ahead by supporting poor students’ hope for learning and the
good aspirations of families in poverty.

Overseas

In the U.S., the Group now holds equity interests in two REITs, namely GMR (listed
on NYSE) and American Housing REIT, Inc. (*AHR”). GMR has been focusing
on acquisition of state-of-the-art, purpose-built with contemporary technology,
licensed and specialised medical facilities in the U.S., and currently owns 86
specialised medical and healthcare facilities, with approximately 3.7 million net
leasable square feet (“sq.ft.”). The Group expects that GMR will continue to grow
rapidly with its robust property portfolio in the future years. As of 31 December
2020, the Group has approximately 7.5% equity interest in GMR, and receives
quarterly dividends paid by GMR.

On 9 July 2020, Inter-American Group Holdings, Inc., an 85%-owned subsidiary
of the Group, and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Inter-American Management,
LLC (“IAM”), were sold to GMR for an aggregate price of approximately US$17.6
million. On one hand, the Group benefited from the termination fees from IAM
under the amended and restated management agreement, and on the other hand,
the net proceeds from the disposal would be used as direct cash inflow for general
working capital of the Group, for the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. At the same time, by purchasing its manager IAM, GMR internalised its
management, which was beneficial to its rapid development.

AHR is currently 99%-controlled by the Group. Now, AHR owns two senior housing
communities, namely Oxford Derby in Kansas and Oxford Mckinney in Texas. We
will closely monitor the local market environment and flexibly adjust the business
strategy.

In addition, the Group owns 28 SOHO portfolios of commercial and residential
units and 5 quality residential property portfolios in Singapore for the purpose of
rental and capital appreciation. We will regularly review the Singapore property
market to explore any business opportunities in the foreseeable future.

Appreciation

In 2020, the Group has been growing stronger in face of challenges and developed
in a steady manner. On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express our wholehearted gratitude to all shareholders, partners, customers
and employees of the Company. In 2021, we will forge ahead to create maximum
values for shareholders and investors and continue to make greater contribution to
urbanisation process and social progress.

Mr. Zhang Jingguo
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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HONG KONG AND OVERSEAS PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
BRRBINMIFAS

The Group owns a diverse range of residential, commercial properties and senior AREBEGTRELNET  BEDEUALEEEER
housing communities located in Singapore, Hong Kong and the U.S.. = BMHGEFNY  BERER -

28&3. Southbank Soho

SINGAPORE PROPERTIES 370038 ¥ 3

The Group’s Singapore property portfolio is concentrated in locations near Mass 7 & 8] 7 h 3 ¥ 22 48 & &= 1 FA 5 D048 0 88 s B3+ %2
Rapid Transit (MRT) stations, Singapore’s railway system, ensuring convenience i /5 {8 5= & o 7K £ [B 7£ Southbank % & SOHO % iz 78
and connectivity. The Group owns a portfolio of SOHO units at Southbank which 4 @ UEEERERA AT A E Y - ZEBAEH R A
features high-ceilings and duplexes. These units are uniquely zoned for both L8 @ AIEEEREEAL  EHHESKTEES - &
residential and commercial uses and hence generate strong rental yield. The Group £ [# #f Dakota Residencesi A (X £ 2484 + Dakota
also owns a portfolio of residential properties at Dakota Residences adjacent to the  Residenceshlt #8Dakotath ik o

Dakota MRT station.

HONG KONG PROPERTIES

The Group owns two floors of Wyndham Place, a prime commercial office building
located in the Central district of Hong Kong — the central business district of the
region. The Group currently uses one floor as its headquarters and treats the
remaining portion as investment properties for earning rental income and/or capital
appreciation.

ERME

FAEBEREABHEDOHEMERERT - ZETREBTRIEZRAKNE L
REEP LIS - AEEBRBES —EBESER  EHRMOSESREEMEIN
A WA R, HEREE -

U.S. PROPERTIES XEME

The Group owns two senior housing communities (one in Texas and one in Kansas) ANEBFEBENER 7B AGTAHRKE TREREE
with total area of approximately 98,700 sq.ft. which were held through its U.S. EB&(—EMRNEREMSMN - —EL R IEEHTN) -
subsidiary AHR. The Group also owns freehold land parcels with approximately [ &4 £ 4998,700F 5 R o K& B Jrfx hn )N % A 49
273,200 sg.m. in California and two apartment residential units situated on Wall 273,200 /5 K 7 sk A 4 0 « WAL EREES
Street in New York. MEAEFEEN -

3 — = =

18&2. Glen Carr House, 384. Oxford Grand McKinney,
senior housing community senior housing community
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PART OF THE PROPERTY
PROJECTS IN THE PRC
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1 Zhengzhou Zensun Longshuishangjing
BN IER Bk B3R

2 Zhengzhou Zensun Longhushangjing
M IERE L3R

3 Zhengzhou Zensun River Valley
SO TE R RT A

4 Zhengzhou Zensun River Home
EMIERZITR

5  Zhengzhou Zensun Riverview Garden
SR IE PRI SR 5

6  Zhengzhou Zensun Zuoan
BN ER T 7+

7 Wuhan Zensun Scholar Mansion
REEREREN

8  Beijing Zensun Xinghai Court
IERIER DG

Zhengzhou Zensun Skyline Lake Court
EPMN IER 0 B

Zhengzhou Zensun Fenghuashangjing
EMIERLE iR

Xinxiang Zensun Smart City

TS IER R 2R

Zhengzhou Zensun Boya Court

BN IEREIEERE

Zhengzhou Zensun Yating Mansion
BN ERHEER

Zhengzhou Zensun Xin Harbour Home
EMNEREER

Zhengzhou Zensun Scholar Garden
BINERETHE

For full list of property projects, please refer to Project Summary on pages 14 to 23 of this annual report.

BEYFEEBE  FRHAFRE14E23E A HAHE -
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT IN THE PRC AND PROJECT SUMMARY
EREzYERREEESE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 19 completed property projects and/ #2020 12 8318 » ANEBEN T EES19EE EA
or sub-phases and 55 on-going complex property projects on hand with 122 land ¥ %18 8 & /518 B 5 B & 55(EH (T3 R KR &P 47
parcels under development and planning constituting the Group’s land reserves &2 1EH (F£12218103%) - BRABEBEXAEE" 2 +
with an aggregate site area of approximately 5.19 million sg.m. and aggregate M @ B EE L A5198 8 T K RFETEE
estimated GFA of approximately 10.52 million sq.m. in the PRC. In return, the SEmBELA10.528 & F K o« T HEE A4 E EIRH
land reserves will bring to the Group an estimated saleable/leasable GFA under R TEE AT E TASELAEELN6.26 B FHK
development of approximately 6.26 million sq.m. and estimated GFA under RiRE|IFFEAZE@MBEL4.26EBF K

planning of approximately 4.26 million sg.m..

PROJECTS HIGHLIGHTS TEB B

Zensun Longshuishangjing
IEEREK IR

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 1 H &/

Zhengzhou
1O

Site Area (approximately): Total GFA (approximately):
THIERR(4Y) - MEREEE(R) :

f 58,338 som. ¥ 204,775 sqm. ¥k

- Architectural Form: Residential
BER F=
Actual Completion Time: 4th quarter of 2020
ERR R TR - 2020F EMEE
Location: South of North 3rd Ring Road, east of Longhu Neihuan East Road, FE A - BN R =R - BEEHRIRE R E

Zhengdong New District, Zhengzhou City

Zensun Longshuishangjing has been the third property of Shangjing series developed by the Group following Shanshuishangjing and
Longhushangjing over 27 years. Located at the southeast intersection of Chaoyang Road and North 3rd Ring Road, North Longhu area,
Zhengdong New District, Zhengzhou, it has a total area of approximately 87 mu and greening rate of 35% and is comprised of 18 7-storey
bungalows, 1 building for property management and 1 building for kindergarten. To the north it is separated from Longhu Lake (8,400
mu) only by a road, to the west it is close to the sports park (770 mu) and to the south it is near The First Affiliated Hospital of Zhengzhou
University. It is less than 1 kilometer away from the affiliated middle school of Shanghai Normal University. With unique lakeview and park view
nearby, the project occupies the prime location of North Longhu, enjoying diversified ecological, traffic and medical resources with supreme
location value. The house design mainly focuses on visual transparency along north-south axes with three rooms facing south, ensuring
maximum light and ventilation effect. Up to 5.1 meters in width makes the living room more than enough for parties and dinners. And beyond
utmost visual experience, a balcony with 2.5 meters in width shows the quality and value of life.

EREBEK EER27THAE@MES KR - BP LRI BEEOMTENE-F FEEE  MAREN BRI ERHBR R Z RIS ERE
o BEBEE BEEBLO8TE ST A35%  MEISKIFERE  1RWEREFFHHEER - BEE [ — K 2 k7 BN Z8,400 B BE 7K
o MEEFE7T7OMEEAE - MEARE AT BEESMERSHPTE AR BEN—EHE — 2R HERIEERNZL
HEL - AR QR BESER BUEBETHEB - ELAR L TEXRAMILEE  —HSENR  ERELERBRAKREESS
%%E’\J%%tg%%ﬁ%ﬁzﬁ CAERRRE RERE > CHEESEEH  25KERABSBE HROTERGEGEHER B4
TEHRE R BER -

Zensun Longhushangjing
IER RN LR

Zhengzhou
1

PROJECT DESCRIPTION & B
Site Area (approximately): Total GFA (approximately):
, THEEFE(X9) ¢ MEEEE(R) :

62,286 sq.m. 75 186,545 sqm. 775
Architectural Form: Residential
BEEA F=
Actual Completion Time: 4th quarter of 2019
HRR R TR 2019FF BEMNZEFE

Location: North of Chaoyang Road, east of Zhongyi Road, Zhengzhou City B 74k - BN TTERE B AL~ B ESIAE

As an upgraded property developed by the Group, Zensun Longhushangjing has been one of the products of Shangjing series, the most
premium product series of Zensun. The project is located at the intersection of Zhongyi Road and Chaoyang Road, North Longhu Area,
Zhengdong. With 1 kilometer away from Longhu Financial Island to the north and separated from the west canal only by a road, it owns
the core ecological and location resources of North Longhu. The whole project covers a total area of approximately 93 mu, with a total
GFA of approximately 187,000 sg.m., among which, approximately 94,000 sg.m. are above the ground and approximately 93,000 sg.m.
underground. It has a plot ratio of 1.49.

ERAEEEOARZE  EARALEFRBEASRSH DRRER - ERBUN BRI - WEREREAGAGRRGE - LRI

S1RE - BPEEAREMAL - IR TR0 LR  ERER o R DIREEER R A EEL93m - BREREL18.TET
Ko PEEEENASF K T EEBNISEF K - BEXR1.49 -
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Zhengzhou
1O

Zensun River Valley
1F 8 ] U M

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 1 B &/

Site Area (approximately): Estimated Total GFA (approximately):
T ETE () TRt EmME(K) ¢
318,759 sq.m. 5 608,319 sq.m. £k
Architectural Form: Residential
BER =

{ Actual/Estimated Completion Time: 4th quarter of 2019 (Phase )

4th quarter of 2020 to
4th quarter of 2022 (Phase II)
B TEEHE TR —H: 2019 EMEFE
—HY: 2020 BWNEER
2022F FENEE

Location: North of Lvda Road, west of Yuxiu Road, south of Chunxi Road and west of Jinzun — T8 G {7 Hf : —Hf : BIM AR EESLIL - B ABSIA T - ZEEEE L

Road, Zhengzhou City (Phase ) B R21EHE T
North of Lvda Road, east of Hongsong Road and Jinzun Road, south of Chunxi T BN TTAR RS AL - AT AR - 28I
Road and east of Yuxiu Road, Zhengzhou City (Phase i) S S

Zensun River Valley lies in the south of Yanhuang Express Way (S314), 1,000 meters west to the intersection of Jiangshan Road and S314,
Huiji District, Zhengzhou, and is next to Laoze Ancient City and the Grand Canal Culture Zone, two among the 32 core areas of urban
development of Zhengzhou. It is adjacent to the Yellow River to the north, sits back against Mangshan and faces the ancient Grand Canal
of Sui & Tang dynasty. Being a masterpiece with upgraded quality developed by the Group over 27 years, it embraces unique natural
environment, diversified tourism resources, strong cultural atmosphere and efficient traffic network. With a comprehensive plot ratio of
approximately 1.99, Phase | partially covers a site area of approximately 141 mu and Phase Il partially covers approximately 133 mu. The
total planned GFA is approximately 608,000 sg.m. and greening rate is 35.01%. It is primarily consisted of high-level units each with a GFA
ranging from approximately 89 to 115 sg.m. and bungalows with gardens ranging from approximately 89 to 142 sg.m. The neo-Chinese-style
building, cross-shaped central landscape belt, three-tier garden design, five-layer greening and innovated sloping garden views show a perfect
integration of neo-Asia buildings and three-dimensional landscape. With the launch of high-quality development planning for the Yellow-River
region and the improvement of supporting facilities, its regional value is expected to stand out gradually.

1F 75 90 W M ;i;;;suméﬂ)l\m BB [T LLIBS SN B PR B(SB14) & BRI 1, 000K B g » B2 AMIIN G2 (B T i i85 A R 40 4902 o AR SR 71
RBAAERERIE - b - BRI SIS EEAE - EREETHAEI R IE BAS %EWE%%% C BE IR E
R ORERXEREMA BRENZBME - FEHENEEL1.99 0 —HHHPEMA141E - — HHAEI L1833 - @R B EEmMIELD
60.88 ¥ 75K - 47 %35.01% - * éﬁ%%%ﬁ 24989-115F I KE == B MAI89-142F JRIEEFfE - MR AKRERE - +FAlm
R=Ew :z&;tm : ﬁé e BITICREIM SRS - D NERRTREMSEGITXME  BERARARDME RN
BAEM > ERBNZE L ZM - BREEESETRAR L o

Zensun River Home Zhengzhou
NAESHE L

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 1 B &/

Site Area (approximately): Estimated Total GFA (approximately):
T EAE(AY) ¢ TEETHREEEE(KY) -
367,202 sq.m. F53¢ 680,000 so.m. 5%
Architectural Form: Residential

| e fre
Actual/Estimated Completion Time: 4th quarter of

2019 gPhase )}
3rd quarter of 2021 to
3rd quarter of 2022 (Phase Il)

B TEFTR TR : — 8 2019F EMEE
=4 B —Hy: 2021¢$;%§K
2022 %:%jé

Location: South of Xincheng Road, east of Yule Road and east of Xinxi Street, Zhengzhou City — G {7} : —Hf  ZEMN 7 571 B5 A 7 ~ 42 5E25 LA 57 R 357 P 747 I

(Phase )
South of Xinyun Road, east of Yule Road, east of Xinxi Street, and west of Tianshan TH BN TSRS LA - AR BRI B BT
Road, Zhengzhou City (Phase Il) RRKLIEEL T

Zensun River Home is situated at the northwest of the intersection of Xincheng Road and Yule Road, Zhengzhou. Phase | of the project
partially covers a site area of 148 mu, with a total GFA of approximately 480,000 sg.m. and plot ratio of 2.99, comprised of 13 high-level
buildings and 9 bungalows, and has been completed for delivery in December 2019. Phase Il of the project has a total planned GFA of
approximately 200,000 sqg.m., comprised of 10 high-level buildings and 8 bungalows, with a plot ratio of 2.49. It is intended to be established as
a low density community with such ultralow plot ratio to ensure the quality of life. Phase Il is expected to be completed for delivery in August
2021. Zensun River Home embraces the established supporting facilities and diversified ecological resources in the region, and is adjacent to
Jiahe Station, the first station of metro line 2, as well as four vertical and four horizontal three-dimensional traffic networks. The nearby 600-
mu old tree park and 45-mu municipal park provide sufficient fresh air 24/7. There are also prime business centers, like Huiji Wanda, Meijing
Vanke and IKEA, and medical centers, like the People’s Hospital of Huiji District and the Third People’s Hospital of Zhengzhou (in progress)
protecting the health of all families. All medical, commercial, cultural and entertainment facilities and the culture industry are in place within 1
to 5 kilometers of the project.

THTRREMNENTIABRERA T AT A - M 108 @RTHEET K SHE20 - H1GREENIME
FAl - —HIER2019F 128 TR0 ; KR _M@RERERIEL2087 | HI0RBERSIRERMEN - ARF2.49 - BEAIE - 7T
EESHE BERELE AH02IFAn - LEXISENENERAREREE R AR RN G H B (R )
WGIE YT B - Elleogn A ASmmB AR BESSEARMEAL RRBASE LEEH . AXEGRENKE
FEBREBAREL  BMNDE = ARBE(ER) BRRARE 1 okmBEN - BREE - XREERXLEEL —@ES -
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EREXERAHE K

Zensun Enterprises Limited

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT IN THE PRC AND PROJECT SUMMARY
EREzYERREEESE

IE B0 #5538

THEAE(AY) ¢

M 31,462 sq.m. 5%
B Architectural Form:
BEILRE

Actual Completion Time:
BBk TR -

Zensun Riverview Garden

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 1§ f§/

Site Area (approximately):

Zhengzhou
B0 AN

Total GFA (approximately):
BREEEE(R) :
171,703 sq.m. T3¢
Residential & Commercial
FEREE

2nd quarter of 2020
2020F B

Location: East of Jingkai 14th Avenue and South of Jingnan 9th Road, Jingkai District, — IHG {7t - ZiN AL TR AC R /1LE5E ] « 48551 PIA 15 )

Zhengzhou City

Located at the intersection of 14th Avenue and Jingnan 9th Road, Jingkai District, Zhengzhou City, the project is adjacent to Lake Butterfly
(454A) with an area of 1,300 mu, and a subway station with dual lines (i.e. Subway Line 3 and Line 11). The project covers a total site area
of 47.2 mu with a total GFA of approximately 171,700 sg.m.. The project consists of decorated apartments, LOFT and standalone office
buildings. The community generally has building density of 23% with plot ratio of 3.79 and greening rate of 30%. The project is a high-end
apartment project built by the Group with deliberation in the International Eco-aquapolis (/& ;r] B ).

HEMRBMNTERR HOAEEENEZEREEM,3000 BN - il 0 CuEsRaME11554R) IR B £AG147.28  LRER
BENTATEFIK - BEEBOARKETELS - LOFTRBRBABBEEN - HREBREEEE23% - FEX3.79 » HILEHB0% * %

HERAEEEBBERMMBOTENRRAEER -

Zensun Zuoan Zhengzhou

BB M
. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 3 H /)

Site Area (approximately):

3 ETE ()
57,015 sqm. T35

Estimated Total GFA (approximately):
TRt EmE (L) ¢
92,375 sqm. 5K

(planned for Phase I) (—H3% 57 )

Architectural Form: Residential
BERR - F=

Estimated Completion Time:
TEET IR TRERS

4th quarter of 2023 (Phase )
—H] : 2023FEMNEE

Location:  West of Wenming Road, north of Planning Third Road and south of the land in Xizhangzhai
Village, Longhu Town, Xinzheng City

BB 4 - BT REEX AL TR - R E =B R R R
YoEs: 4= )

Zhengzhou Zensun Zuoan is a brand new project built by the Group with deliberation. Located in the core area suitable for living in the
southern new city of Zhengzhou, the project boasts outstanding geographic location adjacent to Daxue Road (K& ) and Subway Line 7
(under planning).

Boasting convenient traffic roads such as belt expressway, South 4th Ring (B PU38) and Shuanghu Avenue (84X 38) to rapidly access to the
whole city, the project enjoys excellent community ecologic environment surrounded by four tourist attractions (i.e. Huangdi Romance Park
(Ew T &), Qianjiaji Scenic Area (T &[&), Cherry Valley Scenic Area (14k)# =[&) and Source of Jinshui River (& 7K J&)), seven parks
under planning, Shibali River (+/\ £ ), and Houhu Reservoir (1% #A7KE). A kindergarten with 12 classes and 15 primary and middle schools
are under planning around the site of first phase to provide one-stop education resources. In addition, three commercial centers are under
planning to create convenient living environment.

BNIERALE  REARERLTENZFRELTAM - AEEMNEBIBEBEFTZOE - BHAEE #7557 EGREIF ) FHMmE
IR BB -

ERABGENER MR SHRESERIBFER  JRFBEERN AR4ARSE(ETTHE  THRESRE - BHERRE - &K
R)TESS - BIABE7RAE - )8 - BEKERE - EAERIRRER 0 BEMIRSAEN12 SR - FEREN5MP/NE
BB HE S AEERL AEREEE o
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| |: Zensun Scholar Mansion

 EBERER

i
PROJECT DESCRIPTION & B ffi/

Site Area (approximately): Estimated Total GFA (approximately):
THVEAE(4)) B EREmE(K)
46,888 sq.m. ¥k 220,000 sq.m. 5%
Architectural Form: Residential
EEEA =
A @ Cstimated Completion Time: 2nd quarter of 2022
T - W TEETR TR 2022FE —FE

Location: West of intersection of Chenggong Avenue and Maoxing Road, Caidian Street, — IHF {7 hf : % i 25 f [ 25 f) 754 Th A 48 B % B 75 35 PE Jow LA 7
Caidian District, Wuhan City

Located at the intersection of Chenggong Avenue and Maoxing Road, Caidian District, Wuhan City, the project is at the west gate of Wuhan
and in the core administrative area of Caidian, boasting high quality community with an area of approximately 220,000 sg.m.. Planned by
Wuhan Economic and Technological Development Zone for its development layout, accelerated by the Sino-French Ecological New City for its
promotion, and propelled by the Military World Games for its upgrade of facilities, the project is adjacent to Subway Line 4 and can access to
the whole city though one railway, two bridges and three expressways.

Surrounded by many known schools such as kindergarten in Caidian District, Caidian laboratory school, and Hanyang No.1 Middle School,
the project enjoys excellent one-stop education resources. Having auxiliary resources such as Zhongbai Warehouse (& & f#), New Fumao
Central Plaza (¥71&/% 1 R E¥5), Xiehe Jiangbei Hospital (1 1)1t &Px), and Tongji Hospital ([&% 2 F%), the project enjoys premium urban
resources and excellent living environment.

TR B AR EUE T A A A AE X BB X @ g 0 Iz STEVEPT AP - EEMELBIEE - #1228 77 mEME o BURLERITE E R ERR
B BIEFIRELTEMEEE  TESRIPFEAL - HESRERERRETLS  —UMBE=9F  ZHEBE - GE=H -

ZERHEER ZBHERBK  EG-PERRORE A UAREEE - BETHAR  MRETRES - HATILER - RESE
FREAR  BENTELER #EBRBVLE -

Zensun Xinghai Court
ERERBERE

PROJECT DESCRIPTION & B &/

Beijing
b=

. Site Area (approximately): Estimated Total GFA (approximately):
T EAR (4Y) - TEETHBEEEE (X)) ¢
47,892 sq.m.F 7K 180,600 sg.m. K
Architectural Form: Residential
A F=£
Estimated Completion Time: 3rd quarter of 2023
TEAHR TR - 2023FE=FF

Location:  East of Yingyi Street, west of Yingtong Street, south of Yinghong Road and north of B {74F - 4k RA Fljz 5 G858 2 &1 - F2 5B - B2
Yingzhi Road, Yinghai Town, Daxing District, Beijjing TRZEE - AE R R EER

Located in Yinghai Town, Daxing District, Zensun Xinghai Court Shared Ownership Housing Project is approximately 1,000 meters away from
Yizhuang Exit (J#E i A) to Beijing-Taipei Expressway (iR & = 4) and approximately 1,500 meters away from Yinghai Station (/& u4), the first
station of Line 8. The project covers a total site area of approximately 48,000 sg.m. with estimated total GFA of approximately 180,600 sg.m.,
of which residential GFA of approximately 104,000 sgq.m. and GFA of kindergarten of 4,080 sg.m. with greening rate of 30% and plot ratio of
2.5. The project has a total of 1,130 households in 10 residential buildings with floors ranging from 8 to 15. The project is designed to offer
decorated housings with two to four bedrooms with areas from 79 to 120 sg.m. at the price of RMB29,000/sq.m.. The purchaser will hold
70% ownership of the housing whose delivery date will be in September 2023. Equipped with a coffee shop of 1,037 sg.m., a gym of 2,077
sg.m. and a library of 518 sg.m., the project also retains an area of 1,000 sg.m. for a community supermarket which on principle can provide
a place for starting businesses and employment in addition to meeting daily living requirements of the community itself and its surrounding
communities.

TRNELHREE#EBEMNNARRTEGHE  EHRATERIELD41,0005K - FEEESSHAR E UGBS IEA) 1,500 - HEA(EHETEL
A8BF K BHEABREMENIS.06EBFH XK EREFEEEEBEN10.4BF 5K  HHEEZEEMIES,080F 5K - &{LE30% - BIEER
2.5 H10BREEE - BES8-158 - H£1,130F - HRBE/B79-120F A KMENEER - BEABFET0%ERELLY - BB ARE29,000
T FAK HAEEEERS B R2023F90AKE - BABME T =4 |UIBEEE1,037F 5K « BHE2,077F 5K - BIEZES18F K -
AR FEE 1,000 F KRR BT RmEEASHRMEREEBRBEETROART » RE| EhaeiREaI 25 - ¥ -

The above information of the Projects Highlights is as at the date of this annual report and for reference only and may be subject to change.
K FIEAEENEHE RN FRZE L H  BHRE - WAJFEERERFE N -
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBEXERAA

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT IN THE PRC AND PROJECT SUMMARY
EAEzY=EREEEBSE

PROJECT SUMMARY
Project
Number Property Project Location
ERY  WEER ER
ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS AND/OR SUBPHASE
BHERZANEEER/958
1 Zhengzhou Zensun North of Jingnan 2nd Road and east of Jingkai
Jingkai Plaza 9th Avenue, Zhengzhou Gity
SN EAERRS INFER R BREAAEIR
2 Zhengzhou Zensun Xinghan East of the intersection of Dahe Road and Guxu
Garden Road, Zhengzhou City
INEREERR SNFATBRE AR AR
3 Zhengzhou Zensun Scholar The intersection of east to Sanglin East Road and
Garden north to Ruifeng Road, Zhengzhou City
IirEEESE PNT R R ERR AL RER
4 Zhengzhou Zensun North of Chaoyang Road and east of
Longhushangjing Znongyi Road, Zhengzhou City
SN EARE LR SNMEERNL - RERNR
5 Zhengzhou Zensun River Valley  North of Lvda Road and west of Yuxiu Road,
Phase | (Green-view Garden and south of Chunxi Road, and west of
No. 1) Jinzun Road, Zhengzhou City
SNEFTRH- DMFEERIE - SARARRERRNE
(BRIEE-¥R) SERIE
6 Zhengzhou Zensun River Valley - North of Lvda Road, east of Hongsong Road, and
Phase I Jinzun Road, south of Chunxi Road, and east
of Yuxiu Road, Zhengzhou City
SNEFTRH S SHTREAN  INBIE - 2RENER
FRRNE  BAMNE
7 Znengzhou Zensun River Home - South of Xincheng Road, east of Yule Road, and
Phase | (Courtyard No. 1) east of Xinki Street, Zhengzhou City
INEERIZ SNFRAR IR  RERNRRAEENR
(E-¥k)
8 Zhengzhou Zensun Prosperity — South of Shisu Road and east of Fengshuo South
Court Road, Zhengzhou City
YN EBREER YNTRERIR SRR
9 Znengzhou Zensun Voyage West of Jingkai 17th Avenue, north of Hanghai

Mansion

PN TBERSE

East Road, Zhengzhou City
INTERETABIE  RERARML

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

BB/ RiAIRE

4ih quarter of 2017
NTEEMER

Ath quarter of 2017
NTEENEE

4ih quarter of 2019
MIFENER

4ih quarter of 2019
NIGEELER

Ath quarter of 2019
NI9FENEE

Ath quarter of 2020
to 4th quarter of 2022
NNFEMERE
NEEMER

Ath quarter of 2019
N9FENEE

2nd quarter of 2020
NNFE_ER

4ih quarter of 2020
to 4th quarter of 2021
NNEENEEE
WIEFRER

Interest
attributable
tothe
Group

558
RERTH
B

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

HERE

Type

fig

Commercial

[

Residential
=2

Commercial

[

Residential
=2

Residential

2

Residential
=2

Residential
=2

Residential
iz

Commercial

[

Total site
area (sq.m)

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m.)

Estimated

saleable/

Completed leasable
saleable/  GFAunder
leasable  development
GFA (sq.m,) (sqm)

Approximately ~ Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately

BRBER
(F5%)
f

47736

34439

26,367

62286

182,11

186,648

178,669

8,051

55,631

52
(F3%)
4

211,748

66,103

100,662

93,399

176,845

191,972

289,951

2476

193,851

BRITE/ RiER4TE
RREEER ARREAR
(F5%) (AR

f f

211,748 -

66,103 -

100662 -

93,399 -

176,845 -

60,925 131,047

289,951 -

26476 -

95,020 98,831

Estimated
GFA under
planning (sq.m.)
Approximately
EEL]

B REER
(T5%)

f



Project

Number  Property Project

BEY  9%ER

Location

Rk

ACCUMULATED COMPLETED PROPERTY PROJECTS AND/OR SUBPHASE (Continued)
EHERZANEEAR/9HH(E)

10

*

*

Dengfeng Zensun City
+ YuGarden
BYEH HE

Dengfeng Zensun City
+ Xiang Garden
BYIH B

Dengfeng Zensun City
+ He Garden
BYEHM B

Xuchang Zensun Scholar
Mansion
FETHEEER

Zhengzhou Zensun
Longshuishangjing
INEERK LR

Xinxiang Zensun Smart City
+ Rong Garden
HATEREH B

Luoyang Zensun City North
Garden Phase |
ABEEE -5

Znengzhou Zensun Princess
Lake Phase|
INEEATE-5

Znengzhou Zensun Princess
Lake Phase ll (Huanhuxian)

SNEBRTH=E
(FlER)

Zhengzhou Zensun Riverview
Garden

B Ak

Southwest District of Intersection of Taihe Road
and Zhengtong Road, Dengfeng City
M AN AR N OERES

Northeast comer of Intersection of Hanque Road
and Tianzhong Road, Dengfeng City
BUTERRERTERNARLA

Northeast comer of Intersection of Yinghe Road
and Tianzhong Road, Dengfeng City
BUTETRERTERRARLA

North of Nongda Road, south of Gui Hua Nong
Xuan Road and west of Gui Hua Han Lin Road,
Jianan District, Xuchang City

HEMRZEEARML - REEHHNER
REEMBNIE

South of North 3rd Ring Road and east of Longhu
Neihuan East Road, Zhengdong New District,
Zhengzhou City

INTERHEL=RANE  RHARRANR

North of Health Avenue and west of Central
Avenue, Qliying Town, Central District,
Xinxiang County

FAEERERAAENE - BEIRRAEMY

East of West Ring Road and north of Tank Road,
Jianxi District, Luoyang City
AETRERER AL ARARRRA

West of Znengxin Highway and both east
and south of Princess Lake, Xincun Town,
Zhengzhou City

i GEe E eV E R i

North of Xincun North Road and west of Huarui
Road, Xincun Town, Zhengzhou City
SHTRER ALY ERREE

East of Jingkai 14th Avenue and South of Jingan
9th Road, Jingkai District, Znengzhou City
INFERESEAEY  SRTEAGRN

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

KR/ RiMIRE

3rd quarter of 2020
NNEE=FR

3rd quarter of 2020
NNEE=FR

3rd quarter of 2020
NNEE=FR

4h quarter of 2020
to 4th quarter of 2021
NNFEMERE
WIFEMER

3rdl quarter of 2020
NNFEZER

Ath quarter of 2020
NNFEMER

4th quarter of 2017
NITEERER

1st quarter of 2019
NIEE-3R

4ih quarter of 2020
NNFEMEE

2nd quarter of 2020
NNFEZER

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

558
RERRH
Bt

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Type

fig

Residential
=

Residential &
commercial

kz &%

Residential &
commercial

kz &%

Residential
iz

Residential
fiz

Residential &
commercial

[z &%

Residential &
commercial

kz &%

Residential
iz

Residential
iz

Residential &
commercial

[ #%

Annual Report 2020

Completed
saleable/
Total site  Aggregated leasable
area(sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm)
Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately
BRITE/
BEwER RHEYER HEEYER
(¥5R) (T5R) (TH%
f # f
46,899 78,187 78,137
210 59,987 59,987
50436 127,818 127,818
115,449 305,318 207,760
58,338 96,549 96,549
40,279 45,126 45,126
52,128 185,261 185,261
147,988 252,672 252672
40819 81,551 81,551
31,462 119,061 119,251

B REER

Estimated
saleable/
leasable

GFA under
development
(sqm)
Approximately
BHERATE
/HERETR
(F5K)

f

97,558

represented the estimated saleable/ leasable GFA of the sub-phases of the relevant property projects that were still under development.
ABEBYEEE MEEREPHBNEA TS FHEREERE -

Estimated
GFA under
planning (sq.m.)
Approximately
£t
BREEER
(¥AR)

f
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBEXERAA

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT IN THE PRC AND PROJECT SUMMARY
EAEzY=EREEEBSE

Project

Number  Property Project

LR

VESL]

Location

R

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING
35/ B2 0%5R

1

Zhengzhou Zensun River Valley
(Green-view Commercial
Centre)

SN ERmEN-
SRBHHL

Zhengzhou Zensun River Home
Phase
INEERIZ-H

Zhengzhou Zensun Boyue
Commercial Centre and
Jiahe commercial centre

INEBRNAEALR
EWELAR

Befing Zensun Grand Garden
TREERR

Beiing Zensun Yazhu Garden
IREBRERR

Dengfeng Zensun Gty
+ Xi Garden
EHEEN ER

Dengfeng Zensun Cty
+ Tai Garden
BHERS5E

Dengfeng Zensun City
* Rui Garden

EREB R

Dengfeng Zensun Gty
+ Jing Garden
EHEENER

North of Lvda Road, and east of Wenyun Road,
Zhengzhou Gity
ENTRERIL - XERNR

South of Xinyun Road, east of Yule Road,
east of Xini Street and west of Tianshan Road,
Zhengzhou Gity

ENTEERNE  REBNR - FEEURR
RIUBHAE

South of Xincheng Road, east of Nanbei Avene,
south of Xinyun Road and east of Fengshuo
South Street Zhengzhou City

SRR - BEAGRREENE
LRBENR

Huaifang Village & Xingong Village,
Nanyuan Gounty, Fengtai District, Bejing
AT REBAAREHREEH

5th Avenue District, Shunyi Newtown,
Renhe Town, Shunyi District, Beijing
IRTEREAERE N E LR

Northeast comer of Intersection of Denggao
Road and Fuyou Road, Dengfeng City
BTERARARARRNORLA

Northwest corner of Intersection of Denggao
Road and Fuyou Road, Dengfeng City
BATEBARERRER A NAELA

Southeast comer of the Intersection of Shaolin
Avenue and Fuyou Road, Dengfeng City
BHTAHREERARRNOFAA

Southeast comer of the Intersection of Dizhong
Road and Zhongyi Road, Dengfeng City
BT RERERANNREA

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

KR/ RiMIRE

2nd quarter of 2022
NNEEZER

3rdl quarter of 2021

t0 3rd quarter of 2022

WNFEZFEE
NEE=FE

2nd quarter of 2022

to 4th quarter of 2022

WFE-FEE
NEEMER

2nd quarter of 2021
WIEEZER

2nd quarter of 2021
WNEEZZR

3rd quarter of 2021
WHEE=ER

3rdl quarter of 2021
WIEEZER

4th quarter of 2022
N0FENER

4th quarter of 2023
NRBEEMER

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

558
RERRH
s

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Type

fig

Commercial

iz

Residential
=2

Commercial

iz

Residential
=2

Residential
iz

Residential &
commercial

k&%

Residential &
commercial

iz 5%
Residential

fFz

Residential
=2

Total site
area (sq.m)
Approximately

BERER
(¥5%)
L

28,062

188,643

45,692

53,214

44,170

15,992

32,986

95,406

40,173

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m.)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Approximately  Approximately

siraEs
(£5%)
f

84,217

210275

140,742

89,017

99,307

39,83

82,236

12110

73,090

BRITE/
fERgER
(5%)

f

Estimated
saleable/
leasable

GFA under
development
(sqm)
Approximately
BHERATE
/HERETR
(F5K)

8

g42rt

210275

108,019

89,017

59,307

39,835

82,236

12110

73,000

Estimated
GFA under
planning (sq.m.)
Approximately
£t
BREEER
(¥AR)

H]

32223



Project
Number  Property Project

BEY  9%ER

Location

Rk

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)

35/ U 2R (8)

7 Zhengzhou Zensun Vioyage
International Plaza
(Phase | &1)
INEARMERES
)

8 Xuchang Zensun Golden Mile
House

FELALALR

9 Xinxiang Zensun Golden Mie
House (Phase | &1l
FATALELR
(—HR=H)

10 Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage
Garden (Phase | &
SN EBERER
(~8R=%)

il Zhengzhou Zensun Orchids
Mansion (Valley-view
Garden)
INEAREER(RRER)

12 Zhengzhou Zensun Orchids
Mansion (Valley-view Court)

DNIAREER(RRER)

13 Zhengzhou Zensun Lehuo City
INragziz

South of Heshou Outer Ring Road and
west of Shuanghe Lake 2nd Street, and
east of Heshou Outer Ring Road and
north of Wanhui Road, Zhengzhou City

INTEENFANE - SEH_BIER
SR BERRNR

East of Laodong North Road and
south of Gui Hua Zhou Zhuang Street,
Jianan District, Xuchang City
FETRZRALANE - REELERE

South of Kelong Avenue and east of

Road, Xinxiang City
FRTMERENE  FZENRR

HORENE  RREERHRANNREA

West of Jingkai 17th Avenue, south of Jingbei

4th Road, and north of Jingbei 1st Road,
Zhengzhou Gty
NTERETLARNE  EXRRIER
BB

West of Guihua 3rd Road and north of reserve

[and of Government, Longhu Town,
Xinzheng City

HEATREARA=RIA  ARERIHML

South of Guihua 1st Road, west of

and of Government, Longhu Town,
Xinzheng City

HEmRARREIE  BRREDONE

RERHBRRE-HLH

Zhaoling Village and Gaodian Village,
Mine Town, Gongyi City
EETATRRENREEN

Xiner Street,
and west of Xinzhong Avenue, southeast corner
of intersection of Hongyuan Street and Guihua

Qiushi Road,
north of Guihua 2nd Road and west of reserve

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

KR/ RiMIRE

2nd quarter of 2021 to
2nd quarter of 2022

NWIEEZERE
NEE-FR

Ath quarter of 2021 to
2nd quarter of 2022

WNEEREEE
N0EEZZR

3rdl quarter of 2021

to 2nd quarter of 2023

WNEE=FEE
NRBEEFE

Ath quarter of 2021 to
2nd quarter of 2022

NNEETERE
N0EEZZR

2nd quarter of 2021
WIFEZER

3rd quarter of 2023

t0 3rd quarter of 2024

NBFEZERE
NUEE=FE

2nd quarter of 2022 to
4ih quarter of 2023

NNFE_ERE
RE e

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

558
RERRH
Bt

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Total site
area (sq.m)

Annual Report 2020

Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately

BiEwER
(¥5%)
R f
Commercial 21916
[
Residential 60,948
=2
Residential & 82,303
commercial
it A%
Residential & 86,623
commercial
iz E%
Residential 43470
=2
Residential 93497
=2
Residential, 987,701
commercial,
catering &
public utiity
fiz m%:
£

#
1R

7

]
L&w

i

Completed

saleable/

Aggregated leasable
GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm,)
BRITE/

ZEEER HERYER
(B5K)  (FHK
f f

78,342 -
167,093 -
288,061 -
310,119 -
130,135 -
280490 -
1141247 -

B REER

Estimated
saleable/
leasable
GFA under Estimated
development GFA under
(sqm,) planning (sq.m,)
Approximately  Approximately
BitgRTTE £t
/HEREER RHEEER
(F5K) (¥AR)
f f
78,342 -
167,093 -
288,061 -
310,119 -
180,13 -
152,497 127,993
190,570 950,677
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBEXERAA

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT IN THE PRC AND PROJECT SUMMARY
ERB YRR RAEME

Project

Number  Property Project

LR

VESL]

Location

Rk

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
35/ U 2R (8)

14

20

Xuchang Zensun Orchids
Mansion
FETAREER

Zhengzhou Zensun Boya Court

(Phass 1 &1)
SN THERER
(-8Rr=8)

Zhengzhou Zensun
Zhenruishangjing
YNEFER LR

Wuhan Zensun Scholar
Mansion

RETHEEER

Zhengzhou Zensun Yating
Mansion

NTEREER

Zhengzhou Zensun
Fenghuashangjing
JilrEeErE

Xinxiang Zensun Smart City
+ Xiang Garden
HATEEEM B

Xinxiang Zensun Smart City
HBLEEZH

South of Guihua Zhuyuan Street and east of
Guihua Yongian Road, Jianan District,

Xuchang City

FEMERRAMMAEIG  RHXERIR

Northwest corner of Intersection of Tashan Road
and National Highway 310, southwest of
the intersection of Luyin West Road and

Tashan Road Xingyang City

KETALBEI0EELR AL AR
SRRREAIAZROARH

East of Longteng 2nd Street, south of Ruyi River
West 2nd Street, Zhengdong New District,

Zhengzhou Gty

INFERAERE_AUR WETA_ENE

West of the intersection of Chenggong Avenue
and Maoxing Road, Caidian Stregt,

Caidlian District, Wuhan Gty

RETEARE AR EERERRERNE

South of Qiaohang Road (Xiangrui Road), east of
Linghan Strest (Zhenggang 7th Stree),
Airpart Harbour Zone, Zhengzhou City

INTRERRRB(RRNE

RRE (IR

South of Longhu Neihuan East Road, east of
Chunlei Strest, Zhengdong New District,

Zhengzhou City

TR ERINERANE  FEENR

Intersection of Central Avenue and Financial
Road, Qiliying Town, Central District,

Xinxiang Gounty

HAgLEEET A BRSBRINN

South of Health Avenue and west of Central
Avenue, and intersection of Central Avenue
and Financial Road, Qiiying Town,

Central District, Xinxiang County

FREERERAAENE  SRAENE
BRABNERPAAERSHERND

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

KR/ RiMIRE

2nd quarter of 2023
NBEE_ER

Ath quarter of 2021 to
Ath quarter of 2023

WNFENEEE
NRFEMER

2nd quarter of 2022
NREEZER

2nd quarter of 2022
N0EEZER

2nd quarter of 2022
N0FEZZR

4th quarter of 2022
N0EENZR

4th quarter of 2021
NNEERER

4th quarter of 2022
NEETER

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

558
RERRH
Bt

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Total site
area (sq.m,)
Type Approximately

BiEwER

(F5K)

R f

Residential 62,832
fiz

Residential 76,354
fiz

Residential 68,819
fiz

Residential 46,888
fiz

Residential 54298
iz

Residential 45505
iz

Residential & 58,642
commercial

kz &%

Residential &
commercial
iz 2%

202,905

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m.)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Approximately  Approximately

siraEs
(£5%)
m

173,708

221,641

106,882

164,108

146,603

AL

94,587

367,153

BRITE/
fERgER
(F5%)

#

Estimated
saleable/
leasable

GFA under
development
(sqm)
Approximately
BHERATE
/HERETR
(F5K)

f

173,708

108,080

106,882

164,108

146,603

AL

94,587

Estimated
GFA under
planning (sq.m.)
Approximately
£t
BREEER
(¥AR)

f

113,661

367,153
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Estimated
saleable/
Completed leasable
Interest saleable/ ~ GFAunder Estimated
attributable Totalsite  Aggregated leasable  development  GFAunder
Project Actual/Estimated to the area(sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm) (sq.m.)  planning (sq.m.)
Number  Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately
BAIAE/ ERRATE £t
A58 BEWER BESER HEREER AEREER  EHRSEE
LR (¥5R) (T5R) (¥AR) (T5R) (¥AR)
ERR R R BB/ BHRIRE BE Ri f # f f f
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
%R/ Bz 38R ()
21 Zhengzhou Zensun Skyline South of Baiyun Road, and east of Runan Road,  4th quarter of 2022 100%  Residential & 97,995 195,872 - 139,240 96,632
Lake Court (Phase | &1) and west of Dengfeng Road, Shangjie District, 2022 5% commercial
SNEBEZHLR Zhengzhou City iz A%
(~HRH) SN CERAZENE  AHENER
BHRIE
2 Znengzhou Zensun West South of Hongmei Street and west of Chuanyang ~ 3rd quarter of 2022 100%  Residentil 51,39 182,121 - 132,121 -
Lakeside Scholar Mansion Road, Gaoxin District, Znengzhou Cty N0FE=FE =2
NEFHRER NTERRLEENE  JIBRIE
2 Zhengzhou Zensun East of Tonghang Fifth Road and north of Anyang  1st quarter of 2023 100%  Commercial 93,643 234,108 - 53,881 180,227
Zhengshang Commercial Road Shangjie Distict, Znengzhou Cty N03FE-ZR [
Centre T HEERRRRIE - RERIL
INERE LAk
% Zhengzhou Zensun South of Qiine South Road and the west of 4th quarter of 2021 100%  Commercial 13,442 107,388 - 107,388 -
Intemational Building Jayuan Road Zhengdong New District, NNFERER 23
INTHERAR Zhengzhou Oty
NTERARLRTERIE  FERNE
2 Znengzhou Zensun Ecological - South of Yuwu Road, east of Pearl Road, east ~ 4th quarter of 2022 to 100%  Residentil 228239 589,984 - 282,193 307,791
City (No. 1 to 5 Garden) of Jingzhuang Road and west of Weihe 2nd quarter of 2024 iz
INTEERY East Road, and north of Yullu Road, westof 20225 £RERZ
(-5hzR5k) Xiangjang Road, and south of Yunyang Road 20455 -3
and west of Pangzhuang Road Guancheng
District, Zhengzhou Gity
SNMESERRRNE  BRENR
FISANR - EMRAARB AR
ELMEREGRY  BHAA
26 Zhengzhou Zensun Xin South of Yinghua Road and east of Gentury 4th quarter of 2022 100%  Residentil 84,186 212,466 - 212,466 -
Harbour Home Avenue, north of Lianhua Road and westof 2020 £I05 =2
gNTEEER Shenzhou Road, Xuedian Town, Xinzheng Clty
HATEEALENERH  BEERAR
BILRILE N ARE
27 Bejing Zensun Xinghal Court East of Yingyi Street, west of Yingtong Street, ~ 3rd quarter of 2023 100%  Residentil 47,89 103,979 - 103,979 -
FREERES south of Yinghong Road and north of Yingzhi 20235 £=3F =2

Road, Yinghai Town, Daxing District, Bejing
IRAREREERENEE RERAY
BERLHR ERSH
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBEXERAA

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT IN THE PRC AND PROJECT SUMMARY
ERB YRR RAEME

Project

Number  Property Project

BEY  9%ER

Location

Rk

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
35/ U 2R (8)

28

29

30

2

3

34

3%

Xinmi Zensun ity
+ Xiang Garden
HEEES ER

Weihui Zensun Golden Mie
Court
ERIASHER

Xinxiang Zensun Orchids
Mansion (Phase | & )

HREBRELR
(~ER=8)

Hualbin Zensun Scholar
Mansion (Phase | & )

EETEEEER-H
(~8r=8)

Dengfeng Zensun Yinghe
Mansion
BHTEEAER

Dengfeng Zensun Yingbin
House * Qiyue House
BHIAIEER HER

Dengfeng Zensun Songyue
Horizons
EHIRSERR

Dengfeng Zensun Yingbin
House * Yingbin House
EHIALENR 02R

South of Qingping Street, west of Fuxi Road,
north of West Street and east of Chengyun
Road, Xinmi City

HETEEALRE  TMEE
ERG)  BERR

Northeast comer of the intersection of Bigan
Avenue and Zhenxing Road, Weihui City
Ry T AR RERAR AR A

North of Fuyu Road, west of Zhengtong Street
and south of Xinyan Road, Guguzhai Town,
Xinxiang County

TAGLEEEITRNE  HBENE
B

West of Chuxiang Avenue, north of Chaoyang
Stregt, and south of Qingnian Street,
Hualbin County, Xinyang City

[EETERERANEEN IRELAREES

Al

South of Yinghe Road, north of South 2nd Ring
Road, Dengfeng City
EHWRTRNE BRI

Northeast comer of the intersection of Shaolin
Avenue and Luhong Road, Dengfeng City
B AERERRRN ORI A

Southwest area at the intersection of Zhongyi
Road and Yingxia Road, Yudai Road and
Yingxia Road, and northeast area at the
intersection of Taishi Road and Cuixiu Road,
Dengfeng City

BHMEEA  TFRELERRNNARESR

RERERRRRNORAEA

Southwest area at the intersection of Zhongyi
Road and Yudai Road, and southeast comer
at the intersection of Taihe Road and Yudai
Road, Dengfeng City

EHTANBEERRANARES
IEREERROERA

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

KR/ RiMIRE

2nd quarter of 2023
NBEE_ER

2nd quarter of 2023
NBEE_ER

2nd quarter of 2023 to
3rd quarter of 2024

NNEZ-FEE
NUFEZER

3rd quarter of 2023

NRBFEZER

4th quarter of 2023

NVEENER

4h quarter of 2023
NREZMER

Ath quarter of 2023
N3FENEE

1st quarter of 2024
NAEE-ER

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

558
RERRH
Bt

100%

90%

90%

90%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Type

fig

Residential
fiz

Residential &
commercial

[ #%

Residential &
commercial

ERN

Residential &
commercial

ERN S

Residential &
commercial

ERY

Residential &
commercial
fiz 2%

Residential
fiz

Residential
iz

Total site
area (sq.m,)
Approximately

BERER
(¥5%)
i

79029

43,964

85,063

96,044

0,721

41,543

146,813

98972

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m.)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Approximately  Approximately

siraEs
(£5%)
m

114316

109,911

170,106

190,388

76819

78982

220220

188,047

BRITE/
fERgER
(F5%)

#

Estimated
saleable/
leasable

GFA under
development
(sqm)
Approximately
BHERATE
/HERETR
(F5K)

f

114,316

63,456

91,017

58,561

76819

Estimated
GFA under
planning (sq.m.)
Approximately
£t
BREEER
(¥AR)

f

46,495

79,089

181827

78,082

220220

188,047
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Estimated
saleable/
Completed leasable
Interest saleable/ ~ GFAunder Estimated
attributable Totalsite  Aggregated leasable  development  GFAunder
Project Actual/Estimated to the area(sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm) (sq.m.)  planning (sq.m.)
Number  Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately
BAIAE/ ERRATE £t
A58 BEWER BESER HEREER AEREER  EHRSEE
LR (¥5R) (T5R) (¥AR) (T5R) (¥AR)
ERR R R Bl /BitAIRE BE Ri f # f f f
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
%R/ Bz 38R ()
3 Xinyang Zensun Golden Mie East of Yangshan Sports Park, 2nd quarter of 2023 99.999%  Residential & 46,43 102,156 - 58,561 43,59
House (Yangshan New Huabin County, Xinyang Cy NBFEZFE commercial
Distric] EEmEREFIIESNERE fiz &%
EREEEILR(FIHE)
3 Luoyang Zensun City North Southwest and southeast comer of intersection  2nd quarter of 2023 100%  Residential & 122,321 406,418 - 406,418 -
Garden (Phase Il & 1) of Kewen Road and Qunan Road, Jianxi to 4th quarter of 2023 commercial
REEERIR District, Luoyang City NVFE-FEE iz B2
(ZHBR=8H) AET BRI EEERARA NRBEENFE
BHARREA
3 Zhengzhou Zensun Princess East of Huarui Road, west of Princess Lake 3rd quarter of 2022 100%  Residentil 164,901 308,773 - 308,773 -
Lake (Phase ) and south of Binhe South Road, and west 20225523 iz
INEBLEE-H of Zhengyin Highway,Xincun Town,
Zhengzhou City
SN AERREE  DEAEY
EER Bl RS RER
3 Zhengzhou Zensun Zuoan West of Wenming Road, north of Planning Third -~ 4th quarter of 2023 to 100%  Residentil 57,015 91,311 - 68,482 2829
NEELE Road and south of the land in Xizhangzhai 31d quarter of 2024 =2
Vilage, Longhu Town, Xinzheng Ctty, NVBFENEFEE
HEmERARREN  RE=RIAR NUEEZFR
BRENLHRE
40 Gongyi Zensun Scholar East of Qinglongshan Road, south of 2nd quarter of 2023 100%  Residentil 99,101 178,382 - 56,697 121,685
Mansion Sugin Road City Greenland, and NBFEZFE =2
EEIHERER east of Jiniushan Road, Gongyi City
EEmeSRR  BRLAR
BERAmR
4 Zhengzhou Zensun Xinrui West of Honghu Road, south of Government 4th quarter of 2024 100%  Residentil 13,734 68,672 - - 68,672
Scholar Mansion Land of Longhu, Longhu Town, Xinzheng City 20245 £ M5 =2
SN EEITRER HAmERERRREN  ERARR AN
{2 Ruyang Zensun Scholar Court -~ South of Yonghui Road, north and south of 2nd quarter of 2023 100%  Residential & 84,043 176,419 - 89,411 87,008
FRTEEEER Weishier Road, east of Liuing South Road, 202355 -3 commercil
west of Malan West Road, County South New fiz %

District, Ruyang Gounty, Luoyang Cty

AETARGE RS
BTORL &BTER
HRBER  SHERE
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EBEXERAA

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT IN THE PRC AND PROJECT SUMMARY
ERB YRR RAEME

Project

Number  Property Project

BEY  9%ER

Location

Rk

PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
35/ U 2R (8)

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

50

52

Nanyang Zensun Scholar Court

HRIREEEE

Shanggiu Zensun Scholar
Mansion

BLIBEEEER

Dengzhou Zensun Kaiyue
Mansion
INEBENER

Lushan Zensun Golden Mile
Mansion
Bl THEER

Huaxian Zensun Orchids
Mansion

RETBRESR

Guangshan Zensun Scholar
Mansion
HUEBEEER

Huixian Zensun Scholar
Mansion

BEETER
Fengan Garden

g9

Dengzhou Zensun Xintiandi
BMNEBFRY

Dengzhou Zensun Pearl Lake

EMNEBHHAS

North of Dushi Road and west of Xindong Road,
Nanyang City
BETHERNL  BRRUE

Suiyang District, Shanggju City
AETERE

West of Bejing Avenue and north of Lingshan
Road, Dengzhou City
INTLRAEER - BLRLE

Southeast of the intersection of Fanrong
Road and Wenxing Road,, Lushan County,
Pingdingshan City

TRUTELEERAENESLRARA

West of Jiefang Road and north of Xinda Road,
Hua County, Anyang City
LEHRZRIRE ARk

East of Zishui Street and north of Paifong Road,
Guangshan County, Xinyang City
BRETRLERIAGRA - Bhkich

Southwest corer of Yingbin Avenue and Xueyuan
Road, Huixian City, Xinxiang City
HATEETIEAERERRAEA

No.41, Ruibei New District, Dengzhou City
ik =

East of Sanxian Road and south of Tunjie Road,
Dengzhou City
PIHH=BARE  Eekmd

North of Yingbin Avenue and east of Dongfu
Road, Dengzhou City
BNTIBRELE FHARE

Interest
attributable
to the
Group

Actual/Estimated
Completion Time

558
RERRH
BB/ RiAIRE Bt

2nd quarter of 2023 100%
NBEE_ER
3rd quarter of 2023 100%
NREFEZEE
3rd quarter of 2023 100%
NRBEE=FR
3rd quarter of 2023 100%
NBEEZER
3rdl quarter of 2023 100%
NBFEZER
2nd quarter of 2023 100%
NRFE-FE
4th quarter of 2023 100%
NBEEMER
Ath quarter of 2021 51%
WIFEMER
2nd quarter of 2024 51%
NUFEZEE
3rd quarter of 2024 51%

NUFEZEE

Type

fig

Residential &
commercial

[ #%

Residential
iz

Residential
iz

Residential &
commercial

[ #%

Residential
fiz

Residential &
commercial

kz &%

Residential &
commercial

&%

Residential &
commercial

iz B%
Residential

fFx

Residential
=2

Total site
area (sq.m,)
Approximately

BERER
(¥5%)
i

25,093

67,802

64,028

32,602

95,720

51,847

37,065

16,809

42,303

53734

Aggregated
GFA (sq.m.)

Completed
saleable/
leasable
GFA (sq.m.)

Approximately  Approximately

siraEs
(£5%)
m

88,460

196,62

160,069

48,903

111,440

129616

81,642

33516

42393

160404

BRITE/
fERgER
(F5%)

#

Estimated
saleable/
leasable

GFA under
development
(sqm)
Approximately
BHERATE
/HERETR
(F5K)

f

88,460

79,591

33,008

53,235

58,269

13215

33516

Estimated
GFA under
planning (sq.m.)
Approximately
£t
BREEER
(¥AR)

f

196,625

80,478

58,205

1,347

68,327

42,393

160454



Annual Report 2020 —EFZBFFFR 23

Estimated
saleable/
Completed leasable
Interest saleable/  GFAunder Estimated
attributable Totalsite  Aggregated leasable  development  GFAunder
Project Actual/Estimated to the area(sqm)  GFA(sqm)  GFA(sqm) (sq.m.)  planning (sq.m.)
Number  Property Project Location Completion Time Group  Type Approximately  Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately ~ Approximately
BAIAE/ ERRATE £t
A58 BEWER BHESEE AEREER SASREER  EHRSER
LR (¥5R) (T5R) (¥AR) (T5R) (¥AR)
ERR R Rt Bl /BitAIRE BE R# f # f f f
PROPERTY PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT/PLANNING (Continued)
YR/BHR22ER(R)
53 Yichuan Zensun Yihe Horizons — North of Yilong Avenue and east of Binhe Avenue,  4th quarter of 2022 to 100%  Residential & 202,383 243,460 - 45,156 198,304
FIEAFTER Yichuan County, Luoyang City 2nd quarter of 2024 commercial
AETRIEFEAENL  BTRENR NFENFEE fiz &%
NUFE_ER
54 Zhoukuo Zensun Golden Mie South of Jiaotong Avenue and east of Tongda  4th quarter of 2023 5%  Residential 52,941 168,824 - 49,363 109,461
House Road, Zhoukou City NREEMER =z
BOEESEER BRmR@xERE BEARE
5% Gongyi Zensun Helg Horizons West of Baiyunshan Road and south of Renhe 15t quarter of 2025 100%  Residential 20,004 40,008 - - 40,008
FEIATRES Road, Gongyi Ctty NBEE-ER fiz

ERMREWRA - ATHE

Grand total 3t 6,077,538 12,807,990 2,375,241 6,266,721 4,266,028
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FINAL RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

For the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately RMB8,069.1
million and gross profit of approximately RMB1,746.3 million, with a decrease
of approximately 9.2% as compared to revenue of approximately RMB8,887.2
million and decrease of approximately 23.6% as compared to gross profit of
approximately RMB2,286.5 million for the corresponding period of 2019. The
revenue and gross profit in the Year were primarily derived from the property
development business in the PRC. The decrease in revenue and gross profit was
mainly attributable to delays in development progress and the delivery of certain
property projects caused by the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. During the
Year, the Group delivered approximately 743,000 square meters (“sg.m.”) booked
saleable/leasable gross floor area (“GFA”) as compared to that of approximately
542,000 sqg.m. for the corresponding period of 2019. Though there was an overall
increase in the booked GFA due to the property projects newly completed during
the Year, the national regulatory control measures (including home purchase
restriction and price restriction policies) imposed on the real estate sector led to
decrease in sales volume and selling price of properties in the PRC and increased
pressure on gross profit for certain properties delivered. In addition, due to delays
in development progress and the delivery of certain property projects caused by
the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the recognition of advanced proceeds of
certain property projects as revenue had to be deferred. During the Year, the Group
expanded its new revenue stream in providing preliminary project management and
sales services in the PRC which brought an increase of revenue of approximately
RMB123.5 million (2019: Nil) which partially offset the decrease in revenue from
sales of properties in the PRC.

The Group had other income of approximately RMB27.5 million during the Year,
with increase of approximately 184.4% as compared to approximately RMB9.7
million in the corresponding period of 2019. It was primarily attributable to the
increase in interest income to approximately RMB20.4 million during the Year from
approximately RMB8.0 million in 2019.

The Group had net other losses of approximately RMB86.0 million during the
Year, as compared to net other gains for the corresponding period of 2019 of
approximately RMB109.1 million. The Group’s net other losses during the Year
comprised a combined effect of (i) fair value loss on investment properties of
approximately RMB33.5 million (2019: fair value gain of approximately RMB2.3
million); (i) fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately RMB6.7 million (2019: fair value gain of approximately RMB112.7
million); (iii) write-down of properties under development of approximately
RMB150.0 million (2019: Nil); and (iv) offset with the net gain on disposal of a
subsidiary of approximately RMB99.6 million (2019: net loss of approximately
RMB6.8 million) during the Year.

The Group’s sales and marketing expenses increased by approximately 11.4%
from approximately RMB162.4 million for the corresponding period of 2019
to approximately RMB181.0 million for the Year. The Group’s administrative
expenditure increased by approximately 23.0% from approximately RMB166.8
million for the corresponding period of 2019 to approximately RMB205.2 million for
the Year. Such increases were in line with the business expansion in the Group’s
property development business in the PRC during the Year with an increasing of
the Group’s property development projects.
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The Group’s finance costs increased from approximately RMB38.2 million for the
corresponding period of 2019 to approximately RMB79.7 million for the Year. The
increase was attributed to interest arising from revenue contracts which are not
eligible for capitalisation to properties under development.

The Group’s income tax expenses decreased from approximately RMB886.3
million for the corresponding period of 2019 to approximately RMB443.5 million
for the Year. The decrease was consistent with the decrease in PRC CIT and PRC
LAT due to the decrease in operating profits in the PRC during the Year.

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the Year amounted to approximately RMB783.0 million (2019:
approximately RMB1,151.6 million).

The basic earnings per share for the Year was RMB7.04 cents (2019: RMB14.87
cents) which was resulted from the decrease in profit attributable to owners of the
Company and the issue of ordinary shares during the Year.

The Board recommends the payment of a dividend in respect of the Year of
RMBO0.81 cents (2019: RMB1.67 cents) per share, amounting to a total dividend of
approximately RMB155.0 million (2019: RMB192.5 million).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Property Development in the PRC

During the Year, the property development business in the PRC contributed
revenue of approximately RMB7,877.2 million (2019: approximately RMB8,796.0
million) and segment profit of approximately RMB1,033.3 million (2019:
approximately RMB1,907.3 million) to the Group. During the Year, there were 11
property projects newly completed by phases/sub-phases and delivered to the
property owners, namely, Zhengzhou Zensun Prosperity Court™ (Z5/4 1F 7% B a% 2=
JiZ), Zhengzhou Zensun Riverview Garden* (251 1E 778 7] $454), Zhengzhou Zensun
Voyage Mansion* (&[N 1E B [Efn$428), Zhengzhou Zensun River Valley Phase II*
(ED)1 TE B A UM — HB), Zhengzhou Zensun Longshuishangjing* (&5 IE g ik
%), Zhengzhou Zensun Princess Lake Phase III* (E5M IERg A X4 = HAEB M E
#), Dengfeng Zensun City (He, Xiang, Yu Garden)* (& EFrEmMAME - #E - 3
&), Xuchang Zensun Scholar Mansion* (#F & IE = & fT), and Xinxiang Zensun
Smart City (Rong Garden)* (#1405 IE 5% 231 E). Together with our existing
completed property projects, there were approximately 743,000 sg.m. booked
GFA delivered and recognised into the revenue during the Year as compared to
four newly completed property projects during 2019 with approximately 542,000
sq.m. booked GFA delivered and recognised.

Among the property project portfolio delivered during the Year, approximately
432,000 sg.m. of booked saleable/leasable GFA were not located in the core city
area within Zhengzhou City and their average selling price were relatively lower
than the property project portfolio delivered in 2019 which were mostly located
within the core city area within Zhengzhou City. Subject to the national regulatory
control measures (including home purchase restriction and price restriction policies)
imposed on the real estate sector, selling price of certain property projects especially
those not located within the core city area within Zhengzhou City were suppressed
and resulted in a lower gross profit as compared to those property projects
delivered in 2019. As a result of the national regulatory control measures causing
selling price of the certain property projects to be lower than expected, write down
of property under development of approximately RMB150.0 million was provided
during the Year.
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The Group maintained its concrete expansion strategy and persisted continuing
effort to expand its land reserves through listing for sale processes in public
auctions and merger and acquisitions. During the Year, the Group acquired 47
land parcels with an aggregate site area of approximately 1.87 million sg.m. in the
PRC through listing for sales processes held by local governmental land bureaus
and other merger acquisitions. In addition, through the acquisition of entire issued
share capital of Xingcheng Holdings Limited (“Xingcheng Holdings”) which owns
property development projects, from a related company, the Group acquired 12
land parcels with aggregate site area of approximately 550,225 sg.m. during the
Year.

These 59 newly acquired land parcels during the Year have contributed an
aggregate site area of approximately 2.42 million sg.m. and aggregate saleable/
leasable GFA of approximately 5.20 million sg.m. (estimated based on maximum
permitted plot ratio) in support of its land reserves in the PRC at aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB10,584.8 million. These successful land
bids and acquisitions further complemented the Group’s strategy in expanding
its business operation with focus in Zhengzhou City, Henan Province and other
selective first and second tier cities in the PRC.

The Group has accumulated its land reserves in line with the concrete expansion
strategy adopted since 2017. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 19
completed property projects and/or sub-phases and 55 on-going complex
property projects on hand with 122 land parcels under development and planning
constituting the Group’s land reserves with an aggregate site area of approximately
5.19 million sg.m. and aggregate estimated GFA of approximately 10.52 million
sg.m. in the PRC. In return, the land reserves will bring to the Group an estimated
saleable/leasable GFA under development of approximately 6.26 million sg.m.
and estimated GFA under planning of approximately 4.26 million sg.m., which
is sufficient for the Group’s development needs for the next three to four years.
The Group will remain proactive in reviewing its pace of business expansion, and
may adjust its project development plans and schedules in response to changing
market conditions, as and when appropriate.

Project management and sales services in the PRC

During the Year, the Group commenced the provision of preliminary project
management and sales services in the PRC for property projects and recorded
revenue of approximately RMB123.5 million (2019: Nil) and segment profit of
approximately RMB117.6 million (2019: Nil). The preliminary project management
and sales services were provided directly to certain property projects under
development owned by related companies and the Group received fixed
percentage project management fees of the sales price of the total GFA under
development and fixed percentage sales services fee of the sales price of the total
GFA to be sold during the Year. Since the Group centrally manage and organise
the development, branding and marketing of the property development projects of
the Group and related companies as a whole, the Group benefitted from synergy
effect with the existing business of the Group which resulted in a high profit margin
for these services.

NEBGEFEEBIERRR  SESBRORNBEBAR
HHSHEEERFRIBESBALRHEE - KA
FEN - ANEBZBAMEBT T HIBPIRE 2 e
HERRF REAMBIKEEEN S EIKE47EDEE
BUEHE BN A187TEB K ko - BBE—E
FENRRBHEEMEMEER 2 @R ITRERAF]
(TE IR ) 2 2B EITHRA  AEBRAFER
EB120R1R - BIhHEEL A550,225F K °

ZERAFE R IR 2 5918 R G E B R
242BBFIK  ATHE THERREEENAL2H
BY IR EREAFATERMG)  LZRHERT
Be TG ARENSARE10684.88ETT
ZELHNOPERKINBBE - THERAEREFR
ARG E BN T R B E A E R — — I IR AR
B2 SRR o

RNEBEEA2017FHRRMHLBIBRRBEZHE +
HREE o 20205128318 - REBRHPEES 198
EERCMEBR R KBRS B RSSEBITER KL
RBhGEAMEER (H122083%) - B /EE B BA
EEZ LhFHE  BLEENASI9ABT KK
(HEHERETMBLYAB1052B BT K « tHifE#E AR
EEREFRIPEHTHE FHEELETMELN6.268
BEAFARBAEPHFTEEERELI268EF T K -
BABNAREENRK=ZENEZHBEER - AEH
MBEGREMEEERRSK  WERRETEE L
RO S B EIE B B R AT B RS RE o

RHPEZEE EEREERY

RAFER - NEEMBRSEAYEEE 24T H
EHEEBERHEERY  WHEREHARE1235H
BIL(2019%F : ) RN afHARE1176EBET
(20194 : 4®) - AIEATH B B1E M ERF D EZIRE
FHEEQREAZETERYYE  RAEERAF
ERRBEEFEEERREBZEATE L 2EE
ERBNGEAREAMEEE ETE L ZHER
BB BN AEEAETFREEE RABAEE LA
BRAARMERRBEEZEE  RIBITEREH - BK
EEBRAEEREEB I HBRBEEZ  BRZE
REEERSEF -



Property Investment and/or Management Services on AHR and
GMR in the USA

During the Year, the property investment in AHR and property management
services to AHR and GMR in the USA of the Group, contributed revenue of
approximately RMB44.1 million (2019: approximately RMB60.0 million) and
segment profit of approximately RMB111.6 million (2019: approximately RMB18.0
million) to the Group. The segment revenue mainly derived from management fee
income for management services provided to GMR.

During the Year, the Group provided property management services to GMR and
AHR through Inter-American Management LLC (“IAM”), the previously 85%-owned
REIT management arm of the Group. In the second half of the Year, in pursuit
of the internalisation of its management, GMR terminated the amended and
restated management agreement entered into between the Group and GMR and
acquired the entire shareholding of Inter-American Group Holdings, Inc. (“IAGH”)
and its subsidiary, IAM. As such, the Company and Mr. Jeffrey Busch (who held
15% of IAGH) as sellers entered into the stock purchase agreement with GMR as
purchaser, and completed the sale of their shareholding in the IAGH in July 2020 at
an aggregate purchase price of US$17.6 million, after working capital adjustments.
Following the abovementioned sale of IAGH, the Group recorded a net gain of
approximately RMB99.6 million where constituting substantial of the segment
profit and no longer provided property management services to and received
management fee income from GMR in the second half of the Year. After the sale
the Group continued to operate and manage AHR’s property investment through
internal resources.

The decrease in segment revenue was led by the termination of the property
management services provided by our Group to GMR since July 2020 as a result
of the sale of IAGH.

Property Investment other than AHR

During the Year, the property investment in other regions other than AHR
division contributed segment revenue of approximately RMB9.7 million (2019:
approximately RMB12.3 million) and recorded segment loss of approximately
RMB27.3 million (2019: segment gain of approximately RMB1.8 million) to the
Group. The decrease in segment profit was a result of the larger extent of fair value
loss of investment properties during the Year of approximately RMB28.9 million
as compared to fair value loss of investment properties of approximately RMB1.1
million for the corresponding period of 2019. The fair value of the investment
properties was highly sensitive to the economic downturn as affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Securities Trading and Investment

During the Year, the Group’s securities business recorded segment revenue
of approximately RMB14.6 million with segment profit of RMB7.9 million as
compared to segment revenue of approximately RMB15.9 million with segment
profit of approximately RMB128.6 million for the corresponding period of 2019.
The decrease in segment profit was primarily resulted from the fair value loss on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss during the Year of approximately
RMB6.7 million (2019: fair value gain of approximately RMB112.7 million).
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IMPACT OF OUTBREAK OF COVID-19 ON OUR
BUSINESS

During the initial outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, construction works for real
estate projects were mandatorily suspended pursuant to the local government
order for two months in order to prevent and control the epidemic. Construction
works were ordered to resume work in mid-March 2020. Due to the temporary
suspension of construction works, the development and delivery progress of
certain projects were affected and delayed. During the Year, three out of eleven
newly completed projects were completed and delivered in sub-phases, with the
remaining projects involving approximately 327,000 sg.m. under development
and its delivery schedule being delayed, leading to revenue recognition being
deferred to 2021. Given that there has been no further suspension of works
ordered by the local government, as at the date of this announcement, our
Directors do not anticipate any further delays in the delivery schedule of property
under development. Further, the Group has closely communicated with various
construction contractors in order to monitor the development progress and adjust
the development pace from time to time where appropriate. The Group continues
to monitor and comply with all requirements imposed by the government during
the course of property development and will make adjustments to its development
and delivery schedule where appropriate and necessary.

The Group has adopted a series of necessary measures in response to the
government precautionary measures as a result of the outbreak of COVID-19.
The Group developed an online sales platform to maintain the sales of properties
through online application in case the sales centers were required to close by
government order.

In addition, COVID-19 has adversely affected the macroeconomic especially
the property market across the world. It has further affected the valuation of the
investment properties held by the Group resulting a turnabout fair value loss of
approximately RMB33.5 million for the Year as compared to the fair value gain of
approximately RMB2.3 million for the corresponding period of 2019. The Group will
regularly review the performance of the property market.

The Group maintained healthy liquidity financial position with cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB3,218.6 million, current ratio of approximately
1.3 and gearing ratio at 34.8% as at 31 December 2020. Therefore, in the unlikely
event that the operation of our Group is temporarily suspended, our Group has
sufficient working capital to satisfy the Group’s operations.

Save for the above, the Group was not aware of other risks or uncertainties which
will have material effects on the operations, financial performance and the financial
position of the Group. The Group will continue to closely monitor the development
of the COVID-19 pandemic, evaluate its impact on the operations and financial
position of the Group and adopt necessary measures and adjustments to business
plans to manage the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic from time to time.

BRECOVID- 198 RPIEBHNTE

H2020F ¥ICOVID-19/& B9 5 - AIER MIZHE 1S -
i EE 5 IR IR E BT o % 58§l 14 F 5 TR E
A o 20203 A A F BETREETRETL - AR
FiEmT  ETHEMABRRRINEESIFETT
B o MAEE - 11EFE TIER TEA3EER H EE
TRAZN - Meh TIEE (49327,000F 77 K) BRI B 2
FoRANREEE  BHREERIEEE2021F - &
REMBTIE RELE - P ERFEINETR  RAR
HHE  EZBEHEETYEIRNBRTISE—F
IR o WA REBEEBEADEEIER - UE
PHABERE  UARARZERE(WAE) - ~AEE
EYERBAREPEEEBERETRFHENMER
T UBRNEE RSB RIMERE -

COVID-19%& 5B - ARERIBEEBUFNRIEN
% WREN - RN B - AEEME TR LEHE
Fa - NERFE<HEEEPLHNBERT B8k
IR G -

S - COVID-198 ZEVE B L ER 2R MET 51
RANEZE - LE- ST BARBMSREDENRG
B BHEB20195FFAH  AEEARESAFEER
MARKSISEET  MBERAFEMZHNSARYE
23BET - AREBEHMRAMETIZHORE

REB#HBEREOTDES MBI - R20205F12 A8
318 - HEekBESEEEENAARKI2186EHE
TL R ERAAE1.3 MEEABHLEAE34.8% -
I —BHRAEBEEBELNEINGR  KEES
RAMEBESRETEBERR -

B bRt AEELTABHEAEEE
2 MBRARMBRRVERNEATZENEMEARK
TEERZE - AEBEKEEZTYIEZICOVID-19&ZE
MER  FEEHAKENEE RBBERANZEY
TRRBLSZEGNEEBEETHE  AEY
COVID-19R B E -



FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity Position

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the Group’s total cash and
bank balances including pledged deposits and restricted bank balances were
approximately RMB4,225.5 million (2019: approximately RMB4,778.6 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 11.6%. The total cash and bank
balances were mainly denominated in RMB, Hong Kong Dollar (‘HK$”), US Dollar
(“USD”), and Singapore Dollar (“SGD”).

As at 31 December 2020, certain bank balances and deposits of the Group
were pledged to certain banks and financial institutions as securities for the bank
and financial institutions facilities granted to the Group and also the mortgage
loan facilities granted to the property buyers of the Group. The total pledged
deposits was approximately RMB358.3 million as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
approximately RMB886.3 million).

Capital Structure, Borrowings and Charges on the Group’s assets

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes bank and
other borrowings, loans from a related company, and amounts due to related
companies, net of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank balances and
pledged deposits; and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves. As at 31 December 2020, net debt and equity
attributable to owners of the Company were approximately RMB23,386.3 million
(2019: approximately RMB23,904.5 million) and approximately RMB7,873.9 million
(2019: approximately RMB3,740.6 million), respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s aggregate borrowings including bank and
other borrowings, loans from a related company and amounts due to related
companies amounted to approximately RMB27,611.9 million (2019: approximately
RMB28,683.0 million), of which approximately RMB18,827.6 million (2019:
approximately RMB15,405.1 million) were repayable within one year or on demand,
and approximately RMB8,784.3 million (2019: approximately RMB13,277.9 million)
were repayable after one year. The aggregate borrowings were mainly denominated
in RMB, USD and SGD.

The Group’s bank and other borrowings comprised of listed senior notes and
bank and financial institutions facilities. During the Year, the Company issued
senior notes in the principal amount of US$200 million carrying interest of 12.5%
per annum due on 13 September 2022, which have been listed on the Stock
Exchange. The net proceeds of the senior notes was intended to refinance existing
indebtedness and for project developments and general corporate purposes. The
senior notes were unsecured but guaranteed by related companies, which are
ultimately controlled by Ms. Huang and certain subsidiaries of the Company. The
Group will adjust its business plans in response to changing market conditions and
allocate the use of the net proceeds efficiently.

In addition to the fixed-rate interest for the US$340 million senior notes issued
in the fourth quarter of 2019 of 12.8% per annum and the US$200 million senior
notes of 12.5% per annum issued during the Year, the Group’s bank and other
borrowings carried fixed interest rates ranging from 4.568% to 11.0% per annum
and also various floating interest rates linked with international lending rates
including Singapore Dollar Swap Offered Rate, Singapore Interbank Offered Rate,
London Interbank Offered Rate, the base lending rate of the People’s Bank of
China and the Loan Prime Rate in the PRC as at 31 December 2020. The Group’s
interest rate risk is mainly driven by the bank and other borrowings with floating
interest rates.
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As at 31 December 2020, certain bank and financial institutions facilities granted
to the Group together with the mortgage loan facilities granted to the property
buyers of the Group were secured by investment properties, properties under
development and pledged deposits with total carrying values of approximately
RMB17,443.9 million (2019: RMB19,987.5 million).

Shares of certain subsidiaries of the Group are pledged to secure certain bank and
financial institutions facilities granted to the Group as at 31 December 2020. Aside
from the Group’s senior notes, certain bank and financial institutions facilities to the
Group were also guaranteed by related companies which are ultimately controlled
by Ms. Huang, together with her spouse, Mr. Zhang and her daughter, Ms. Zhang
as at 31 December 2020. No assets of the Group was pledged to these related
companies in respect of these guarantees.

As at 31 December 2020, loans from a related company and the amounts due to
related companies were unsecured and interest-free.

The Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging purpose during the
Year.

During the Year, the Company successfully completed two separate share placing
exercises in May and December 2020, respectively. The Company entered into
a placing agreement dated 8 May 2020 with the placing agents and agreed to
issue by allotment of up to 1,235,363,993 new ordinary shares under the general
mandate at the placing price of HK$0.33 per placing share. The net proceeds
from placing amounting to approximately HK$401.1 million were intended to
be applied towards (i) 90% on repayment of bank and other borrowings which
were due during the period ending 31 December 2020; and (i) 10% on general
working capital of the Group. The placing was completed on 27 May 2020 and the
Company issued 1,235,360,000 new ordinary shares under the general mandate
pursuant to the terms of the placing agreement. As at 31 December 2020, the
entire net proceeds from the placing had been fully utilised towards the Group’s
intended use of proceeds.

The Company entered into the placing agreement dated 24 November 2020
with the placing agent and agreed to issue by allotment of up to 1,526,090,000
new ordinary shares under the general mandate at the placing price of HK$0.46
per placing share. The net proceeds from placing amounting to approximately
HK$698.9 million were intended to be applied towards (i) 90% on repayment of
bank and other borrowings which were due on or before 31 December 2021; and
(i) 10% on general working capital of the Group. The placing was completed on
18 December 2020 and the Company issued 1,526,090,000 new ordinary shares
under the general mandate pursuant to the terms of the placing agreement. As at
31 December 2020, approximately RMB170.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$201.8 million) have been utilised towards repayment of bank borrowings, and
the remaining unutilised proceeds of approximately HK$497.1 million are expected
to be utilised in 2021.

Furthermore, the Company entered into a subscription agreement dated 24
November 2020 with Joy Town Inc., a controlling shareholder of the Company as
subscriber, pursuant to which the subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue 6,077,716,750
subscription shares at the subscription price of HK$0.46 per subscription share
under the specific mandate. The subscriber and the Company agreed that the
entire shareholders’ loan in the amount of approximately RMB2,368.0 million
owing from the Group to the subscriber shall be capitalised as consideration for
the subscription upon completion of the subscription. The share subscription was
completed on 30 December 2020 and the Company issued 6,077,716,750 new
ordinary shares.
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. In view of the Group’s expansion
strategy, the Group has sourced funding from its related companies and will
continue to look for external financing sources. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from previous year.

Key Financial Ratios

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a current ratio of approximately
1.3 (2019: 1.5) and a gearing ratio of approximately 34.8% (2019: approximately
46.0%). Gearing ratio is defined as the ratio of total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances and pledged deposits to total assets.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the capital commitments of the Group in connection with
the property development expenditures was approximately RMB12,344.5 million
(2019: approximately RMB11,867.2 million) and acquisition of land use rights was
approximately RMB549.5 million (2019: Nil), respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had contingent liabilities relating to
guarantees amounting to approximately RMB13,559.9 million (2019: approximately
RMB7,819.6 million) provided by the Group in respect of mortgage loan facilities
provided by certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into
by property buyers of the Group. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon
default in mortgage payments by these buyers, the Group would be responsible
for repaying the outstanding mortgage principal together with the accrued interest
thereon and any penalties owed by the defaulted buyers to the banks. The
Group would be entitled to take over legal title to and possession of the related
properties. These guarantees will be released upon the earlier of (i) the satisfaction
of the mortgage loan by the property buyers; and (i) the issuance of the property
ownership certificate for the mortgage property and the completion of the
deregistration of the mortgage. In the opinion of the Directors, no provision for the
guarantee contracts was recognised in the financial statements for the Year as the
default risk is low and in case of default in payments, the net realisable value of the
related properties can cover the outstanding principal together with the accrued
interest and penalties.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are denominated substantially in
RMB, HK$, USD and SGD. Due to the currency peg of HK$ to USD, the exchange
rate between these two currencies has remained stable and thus the Group has
not currently implemented any hedging or other alternatives to minimise foreign
exchange exposure. Going forward, the Group may formulate a foreign currency
hedging policy to provide a reasonable margin of safety for its exposure to RMB
and SGD through transactions, assets and liabilities should the need arise.
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Employee and Remuneration Policy

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference to prevailing
market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries and wages are normally
reviewed on an annual basis based on performance appraisals and other relevant
factors. Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance-related bonuses.
The Company has continued to receive the three awards issued by the Mandatory
Provident Fund Authority, namely, the Good MPF Employer Award in recognition
of the Company’s compliance with employer’s statutory obligations and provision
of better retirement protection for employees, the e-Contribution Award and the
MPF Support Award for the Company’s adoption of electronic means for MPF
administration, and has striven to encourage employees to actively manage their
MPF. Moreover, the Company has also continued to receive an award, namely,
the Certificate of the Good Employer Charter, from the Labour Department in
recognition of the Company’s adoption of an employee-oriented and progressive
human resource management practices. These practices can help boost staff
morale, enhance employees’ sense of belonging and hence lay a solid foundation
for business growth. The Company adopted a share option scheme on 28 August
2018 and share options may also be granted to eligible employees of the Group.
Total staff costs, including Directors’” emoluments during the Year, amounted to
approximately RMB97.1 million (2019: RMB81.0 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 416 employees.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals

of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture and Future Plans for

Material Investments or Capital Assets

(@) On 12 June 2020, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of Xingcheng Holdings from a related company, which
is ultimately controlled by Ms. Huang pursuant to the share purchase
agreement dated 31 March 2020. Through the acquisition, the Group
acquired the entire issued share capital of Xingcheng Holdings which owns
five property development projects held for sale or under development
in Zhengzhou City and Luoyang City, Henan Province, the PRC with
an aggregate site area of approximately 550,225 sq.m. erected on 12
land parcels at a consideration of RMB2,368.0 million. Details of each
land parcel were disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 25 May
2020. The overall portfolio of these property projects included completed
properties readily available for sale and properties under development,
whereas those under development are expected to be completed gradually
in phases during the second quarter of 2020 to the fourth quarter of 2023.
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Save as disclosed above, the Group did not hold other significant investment,
make any other material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates or

During the Year, the Group acquired land use rights of land parcels in  (b)
Henan Province with expected completion period fall within second quarter
of 2022 to first quarter of 2025 through respective public auctions held by
various PRC governmental land bureau and other merger and acquisitions,

as set out in the below summary:
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Outlook and Prospects

In order to pursue sustainable development, the Group is principally engaged in the
businesses of property development, property investment, project management
and sale services and seeks investment opportunities which strengthen its
profitability with acceptable risk in Hong Kong, the PRC and overseas markets.

The Group will primarily finance the repayments on financial assistance from the
controlling shareholder through proceeds from the pre-sale and sale of Group’s
properties, internally generated cash flows from other operations, and borrowings
from banks and financial institutions. Going forward, the Group believes our future
funding needs in support of project construction and land acquisition activities will
be satisfied by the above-mentioned sources and additional issuance of equity
securities or other capital market instruments. The Group seeks to manage the
level of our liquid assets to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to meet
any unexpected cash requirements arising from our business. The Group will also
continue to assess available financial resources in support of our business needs
on an ongoing basis and plan and adjust our development schedule or implement
cost control measures if necessitated by our then-existing financial conditions
and cash requirements. The Group intends to continue to access existing capital
resources, and to seek new sources of funding, to maintain and grow our business
on a cost-effective basis.

The PRC

During the Year, nine property development projects namely, Zhengzhou Zensun
Prosperity Court* (& IF R # Z), Zhengzhou Zensun Riverview Garden*
(BB IF 79 &M $558), Zhengzhou Zensun Voyage Mansion* (ZF )1 iF 79 FE f7 25
£5), Zhengzhou Zensun River Valley Phase II* (&5 IE 758 I — £A), Zhengzhou
Zensun Longshuishangjing* (&5 IE 17K £ 15), Zhengzhou Zensun Princess Lake
Phase III* (ZFM| 1F 752 3554 = B3R #1Z %), Dengfeng Zensun City (He, Xiang, Yu
Garden)* (B 1IERHAME - ££E - ¥ [E&), Xuchang Zensun Scholar Mansion* (7F &
FREZEFE), and Xinxiang Zensun Smart City (Rong Garden)* (&4 [F 795 2 %
A E) were newly completed in phases/sub-phases and delivered to customers
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the purchase agreements. In
accordance with the Group’s latest development progress and delivery schedule,
it is expected that 10 to 13 property development projects and/or subphases
will complete its development and launch delivery in 2021. The Group’s property
development projects remain focused on providing “High Quality” products with
both standard and deluxe design with full refurbishment so as to meet different
customers’ preferences and needs. Revenue from the sale of properties are
expected to be recognised upon completion and delivery of the property projects
and/or sub-phases.

After the ambitious land acquisitions completed during the Year, the Group built up
strong land reserves for the Group’s property development business in the PRC
for the next three to four years with a strong presence in Henan Province, thus the
Group will focus more on developing the existing and new property development
projects on its land reserves in 2021 and 2022.

During the Year, the Group further completed the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Xingcheng Holdings, which owns five property projects held
for sale and under development with an aggregate site area of approximately
550,225 sg.m., from a related company which is ultimately controlled by Ms.
Huang. In addition to contributing to the Group’s land reserves for the Group’s
expansion in property development business in the PRC, the acquisition has also
brought a synergy effect to the Group by sharing resources with existing property
development projects and utilising management expertise thereby, building on the
Group’s property development portfolio and allowing the Group to take on larger-
scale property development projects in support of further business expansion in
the PRC.
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The Board will maintain open-minded in identifying new property development
projects and bidding for land use rights of other selective land parcels in the PRC
with a focus in Zhengzhou City, Henan Province and other selective first and
second tier cities in the PRC in the coming few years.

With the strong land reserves and the ongoing property development projects,
the demand for the respective construction work for the Group’s properties
projects on hand are rapidly and substantially increasing. In this regard, the Group
will proactively seek quotations from quality construction contractors which can
offer the best and most favourable terms to cooperate so as to complement the
Group’s expansion in property development in the PRC. In order to cater for the
Group’s growing needs and requirements, and secure high quality construction
services for the Group’s property projects, the Group renegotiated new terms with
Zensun Development and entered into the 2021 master services agreement during
the Year to engage Zensun Development Group for construction, engineering and
related services for certain selected property development projects. The term of
the 2021 master services agreement was for three years, starting from 1 January
2021 and continue up to and including 31 December 2023. The annual cap for
the transactions with Zensun Development Group during the years ending 31
December 2021, 2022 and 2023 of RMB3,212 million, RMB2,555 million and
RMB1,778 million, respectively was approved in the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 8 December 2020.

The Group possesses the necessary expertise and know-how in preliminary
property project management and sales services through managing its existing
property development portfolio. The Group will continue to provide Ever Diamond
Group with preliminary project management services and sales services for certain
selected property development projects. Thus, the Group can centrally manage
and organise the development, branding and marketing of property development
projects of the Group and the Ever Diamond Group, which will result in reduced
competition for business opportunities between the Group and the Ever Diamond
Group. Also, the Board considers project management and sales services to
other property developers in the PRC shall become popular in the market with
prosperous business potential, and the project management and sales services
shall diversify the source of income of the Group and provide new driver to profits
of the Group. The Board is confident that the Group possesses the necessary
expertise and know-how to provide project management and sales services to
other property developers in the PRC and will hire additional staff as this business
segment continues to develop. As approved in 2019 in regard to the management
and sales services framework agreement, the approved annual cap for the
transactions with Ever Diamond Group during the year ending 31 December 2021
were RMB200 million.

As such, the Board is of the view that going forward the management can
focus their efforts in developing the Group into a flagship group with a focus on
property development in the PRC. The Company takes leverage on the PRC
property development and investment experience of its management team to
seek suitable projects for development or investment with potential to deliver value
to its shareholders. In addition to existing business partners, the Company will
continue to seek potential partners’ cooperation to explore capital resources and
reduce the Group’s capital investment in property projects at an early stage and
facilitate project development. The management remains cautiously optimistic on
the long-term prospects of the real estate industry and will expedite its property
development and sales of its development projects in the PRC through making
use of its own advantages and leveraging on the national network and business
resources of Zensun Real Estate, a company controlled by Ms. Huang. The
synergistic effect brought by Zensun Real Estate will improve the position of the
Group in the real estate industry in the PRC.
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Zensun Enterprises Limited ~ 1E HEERRAA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEER W N D

The U.S.

Following the sale of the Group’s subsidiary, IAGH, the Group remained its equity
investment of approximately 7.5% over the NYSE-listed REIT, GMR under our
securities trading and investment business and approximately 99% equity interest
in AHR under our property investment business as at 31 December 2020.

1. GMR
The Group remained optimistic regarding the business development of
GMR and that its investment in GMR would continue to allow the Group to
share GMR’s growth through receipt of dividend income, thereby achieving
long-term capital appreciation of the Group’s investment.

2. AHR

AHR is currently 99%-controlled by the Company. AHR diversified its
previous investment in single family houses to senior housing communities in
order to seize the potential opportunity for higher-than-average annualised
yield due to the current strong demand on retirement communities and
elderly care industries in the USA. Following the sale of IAGH, being the
Group’s then 85%-owned REIT management arm, the Group continues to
operate and manage AHR’s property investment with internal resources.

Other regions
The Group will regularly review the Singapore property market to explore any
business opportunity in the foreseeable future.

Overall

The Company will make use of the Group’s financial, human and technological
resources to enhance its portfolio, asset base and brand image in the PRC, USA
and overseas markets with business growth opportunities.
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ZHANG JINGGUO
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Zhang Jingguo (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 57, is the Chairman, Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and a member of each of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Zhang is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He was appointed to the Board on
6 July 2015 following the change of controlling shareholder of the Company on 29
June 2015.

Mr. Zhang has approximately 26 years of experience in the real estate development
industry in China. From July 1983 to April 1995, Mr. Zhang held various positions
at the then Light Industry Bureau of Henan Province, the governmental authority
in charge of the light industry in Henan Province, and its associated collectively-
owned enterprises, including division chief, engineer and vice manager, where he
was responsible for administrative management. From April 1995 to April 2001, he
worked at Xingye Real Estate as general manager, where he was responsible for its
overall operations. Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang Yanping (“Ms. Huang”) cofounded a
real estate company which has become one of the top 100 property development
companies in China. Mr. Zhang has served as the Chairman and chief executive
officer of this top 100 real estate company since 2001. Mr. Zhang is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and general management of our Group and is
instrumental to our growth and business expansion. Mr. Zhang is the spouse of Ms.
Huang.

Mr. Zhang received a bachelor’s degree in radio science from Zhengzhou University
in July 19883, an Executive MBA degree from Guanghua School of Management,
Peking University in July 2013 and an Executive MBA degree from PBC School
of Finance, Tsinghua University in July 2018. Mr. Zhang currently serves as
senior consultant of Henan Real Estate Chamber of Commerce, vice-president of
Industry & Commerce Association of Henan Province, graduate tutor of Zhengzhou
University. During the years of 2016, 2017 and 2018, Mr. Zhang was named
“Outstanding Real Estate Developer of Henan Province by Real Estate Association
of Henan Province. Mr. Zhang received his senior engineer qualification from the
People’s Government of Henan Province in May 2012, he received his first class
construction engineer qualification from the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development. Mr. Zhang is also currently a delegate of the 13th Henan Provincial
People’s Congress since January 2018.

Currently, Mr. Zhang is a non-executive director of Bank of Zhengzhou Co., Ltd.,
whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002936)
and on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchage”) (stock code: 6196), the Chairman Ex-officio and a director of Global
Medical REIT. Inc., a listed company on the New York Stock Exchange (stock
code: GMRE) and the Chairman of Zanyu Technology Group Co. Ltd., a listed
company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002637).
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HUANG YANPING
Non-Executive Director

Ms. Huang, aged 59, is the Non-Executive Director of the Company. Ms. Huang
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She was appointed to
the Board on 27 July 2015 following the change of controlling shareholder of the
Company on 29 June 2015.

Ms. Huang has over 19 years’ experiences in the property development and
investment industry in the PRC. Ms. Huang has been involved in the development
of not less than 36 property development projects in Henan Province, Shandong
and Hainan Province in the PRC with a total gross floor area of not less than 14
million sg.m.. She is one of the founders of a real estate company which has
become one of the top 100 property development companies in the PRC.

Ms. Huang is the spouse of Mr. Zhang, an Executive Director. As at 31 December
2020, Ms. Huang is interested in 13,775,208,938 shares of the Company,
which were registered in the name of Joy Town Inc., an immediate shareholder
of the Company, of which Ms. Huang is the sole director. Ms. Huang set up a
discretionary trust and acts as settlor and protector of the discretionary trust,
the trustee of which is Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Save as disclosed herein, Ms. Huang did not have any
other interests in the shares, underlying shares and debenture of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Furtures Ordinance (“SFO”).

ZHANG GUOQIANG
Executive Director

Mr. Zhang Guogiang, aged 57, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
was appointed to the Board on 27 July 2015 following the change of controlling
shareholder on 29 June 2015.

Between August 1983 to October 1997, Mr. Zhang Guogiang worked as a tutor
at the Communication Command Academy of PLA, now known as the National
Defence Information Academy of PLA. Between October 1997 to March 2003, Mr.
Zhang Guogiang served as the director of the marketing department of Wuhan
Research Institute of Post & Telecommunications, also known as FiberHome
Technologies Group, a product and solution provider in the field of information
and telecommunications, where he was responsible for marketing. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Zhang Guogiang worked as a general manager at Nanjing North
Road Technologies Co., Ltd., a coal analysis equipment manufacturer, from May
2003 to November 2005, where he was responsible for general management. Mr.
Zhang Guogiang joined the real estate company co-founded by Mr. Zhang and
Ms. Huang in 2006 and is responsible for the management of marketing centre
and tendering and procurement centre. Mr. Zhang Guogiang received a bachelor’s
degree in radio science from Zhengzhou University in July 1983. In 1988, Mr.
Zhang Guogiang received his lecturer qualification from the National Defence
Information Academy of PLA and received his engineer qualification from Wuhan
Research Institute of Post of Telecommunications.
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LIU DA
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Liu Da (“Mr. Liu”), aged 45, was appointed as an independent Non-Executive
Director on 27 July 2015.

Mr. Liu graduated from the University of International Business and Economics
with a major in international business administration and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics. Mr. Liu is also a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) in
China. Mr. Liu served as an audit manager and a senior audit manager of
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) Guangzhou Office from 1998 to 2009 and
Chicago Office from 2005 to 2007. Mr. Liu provided audit and consulting services
to a number of global top 500 enterprises and overseas listed Chinese companies
during his tenure of office in PwC. Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive director
and the chief financial officer of the Landsea Green Properties Co., Ltd., a listed
company on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 106) from 31 July 2013 to 5 January
2015 and was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Long Ji Tai
He Holding Limited, a listed company on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1281)
from 26 February 2015 to 16 October 2015. Currently, Mr. Liu is the managing
partner of Key Wealth Capital Company Limited, providing financing and overseas
mergers and acquisition services to Chinese enterprises.

MA YUNTAO
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ma Yuntao (“Mr. Ma”), aged 41, was appointed as an independent
Non-Executive Director on 27 July 2015.

Mr. Ma has been serving at Jia Yuan Law Firm as a registered partner from July
2010 up to now, and became the managing partner and senior partner of China
Overseas Financing Department (R B/ g & EBF9) in early 2014, He served
at Commerce & Finance Law Offices from July 2002 to June 2010, engaging in
securities business as to PRC laws. He acquired qualifications as a practicing
solicitor in 2006 and registered as a partner at Commerce & Finance Law Offices in
early 2010.
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Mr. Ma ran projects including the secondary listing project of New Oriental
Education & Technology Group Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 9901) which is principally engaged in the private educational services,
the privatisation and delisting project of AVIC International Holdings Limited,
a company formerly listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0161) which
was principally engaged in electronic high-tech, retail and consumer products,
international engineering and trade logistics businesses, the initial public offering
(“IPO”) project of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3320) which is principally engaged in
the research and development, manufacturing, distribution and retail of a broad
range of pharmaceutical and healthcare products, privatisation and delisting project
of Hunan Nonferrous Metals Company Limited, a company formerly listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2626) which was principally engaged in nonferrous
metallic mineral resources mining business, IPO project of Poly Culture Group
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3636)
which is principally engaged in culture industry involving theatre management,
artwork auction and investment, IPO project of Kerry Logistics Network Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0636) which is principally
engaged in logistics, IPO project of eprint Group Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1884) which is principally engaged in internet
printing, spin-off listing in respect of Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1249) which is principally engaged in
production of electronics products of TCL Multimedia Technology Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1070) which is principally
engaged in production of electronics products, very substantial acquisition project
of China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 0966) which is principally engaged in insurance, and
IPO (both A share and H share) project of China Aluminum International Engineering
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2068)
and Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 601068) which is principally engaged
in nonferrous engineering design and construction.

Mr. Ma is an independent non-executive director of TUS-Pharmaceutical Group
Co. Ltd., a listed company on Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000590)
since 21 May 2020.

LIU QIAO
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dr. Liu Qiao (“Dr. Liu”), aged 51, was appointed as an independent Non-Executive
Director on 27 July 2015.

Dr. Liu is Professor of Finance and Dean at the Guanghua School of Management.
He is a leading authority in the area of finance in the PRC, and is recognised for his
academic works in corporate finance, financial markets, and the Chinese economy.

Dr. Liu is the winner of Outstanding Youth Award of the National Science
Foundation (2013), and was awarded “Li Yining Outstanding Service Award”, the
highest award in the Guanghua School of Management in 2013. He is also the
Ministry of Education “Changdiang Scholar” Special Term Professor. Before he
joined the Guanghua School of Management in late 2010, Dr. Liu taught in the
Faculty of Business and Economics, University of Hong Kong, and was tenured at
University of Hong Kong. Dr. Liu also worked at McKinsey & Company’s Asia-Pacific
Corporate Finance and Strategy Practice from 2001 to 2003, where he advised
various multinational corporations (MNCs) and leading Asian companies on issues
related to corporate finance and strategies. Dr. Liu holds a Doctor of Philosophy
Degree in Economics from University of California at Los Angeles (UCLA) (2000), an
Master of Arts in International Finance from the Graduate School of People’s Bank
of China (1993), and a Bachelor of Science in Economics and Mathematics from
the Renmin University of China (1991).
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Dr. Liu’s primary academic research interests are in corporate finance, empirical
asset pricing models, financial markets, and Chinese economy. He has published
dozens of articles at leading academic journals including Journal of Financial
Economics, Journal of Financial and Quantitative Analysis, Journal of Accounting
Research, Management Science, Economic Journal, Journal of Corporate Finance,
Journal of Accounting, Auditing, and Finance, Financial Analysts Journal, etc. He
has co-edited a book on the Asian debt capital markets — “Asia’s debt capital
markets: prospects and strategies for development” (Springer, 2006). His co-
authored book titled “Finance in Asia: Institutions, Regulation and Policy” (with
Paul Lejot and Douglas Arner) was released by Routledge in March 2013. Dr. Liu
is the author of the Chinese bestseller “Big to Brilliant: the Second Long March of
Corporate China.” and “Big to Brilliant 2.0: Reconstructing the underpinnings of
China’s High-Quality Development” Dr. Liu is also the author of “Corporate China
2.0: The Great Shakeup” which was published by end of 2016. And his new book
“The Finance We Love: Reconstruct China’s Finance in the New Era” has been
published in 2019. Besides academic research, Dr. Liu also writes articles for
leading business newspapers and magazines. His articles and views appear in the
The Economist, Financial Times, CFO Magazine, 21st Century Business Herald,
Caijing Magazine, New Fortune, The Asian Wall Street Journal and South China
Morming Post.

Dr. Liu has extensive business experiences. Over the past ten years, he has
conducted numerous consulting projects for leading Chinese firms and MNCs
including PetroChina, Minsheng Bank, Mercedes Benz (China), Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, among many others. Dr. Liu is the founder of “Huaxinhui”, a platform
focusing on advising China’s local governments on financing issues. He pioneers
the practice of compiling balance sheets of local governments, and providing
China’s local governments with market-based credit ratings. He is a strong
advocate of including local government credit rating as one major key performance
indicator to cope with China’s fast growing local government debts.

Dr. Liu is an independent non-executive director of both CSC Financial Co. Ltd.
(stock code: 6066) since 20 August 2016 and China Merchants Bank Co. Ltd. (stock
code: 3968) since 30 November 2018, the shares of both companies are listed on
the Stock Exchange, and an independent non-executive director of Beijing Capital
Co. Ltd., a listed company on Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600008).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEENRGREEE

Ms. Xing Zhumei (“Ms. Xing”), aged 50, appointed as the Chief Financial Officer
of the Company in November 2020, responsible for the Group’s financial reporting,
corporate finance activities and investor relations matters.

Ms. Xing has approximately 25 years of experience in accounting and audit. Before
joining the Group, Ms. Xing served as an accountant at Zhengzhou Fruit and Food
Corporation* (&5 77 R B X427 7)) from July 1995 to December 2004. She then
served as the chief accountant in Henan Zensun Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (Al Fg IE
BEER A R]) from January 2005 to April 2017 and as the chief financial officer in
Henan Xingye Internet of Things Management Technology Co., Ltd.* (] & 2 3 ) Bt
MEERE AR A R]) from May 2017 to September 2019. Thereafter, she served
as the chief accountant in Zensun Group Limited (IFE &% E AR A 7)) from October
2019 to September 2020.

Ms. Xing obtained her bachelor’s degree in auditing from Zhengzhou University in
1995. She received her qualified accounting certificate (medium level) in 2002 from
Ministry of Finance of the PRC* (13 A R A BB B 2F) and certified tax agent
certificate in 2003 from Department of Human Resources and Social Security of
Henan Province* (jAIE8& A1 ERFIHLRIZEE). Ms. Xing is @ member of Henan
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (] B s it & 5HET 17 ).

Mr. Yuen Ping Man (Dickman) (“Mr. Yuen”), aged 57, is the Company
Secretary and the Chief Operating Officer (Hong Kong) responsible for the Group’s
corporate secretarial functions and business operations.

Mr. Yuen has over 25 years of managerial experience in corporate secretarial,
business development, human resources and general administration. Mr. Yuen was
previously the chief operating officer of Xpress Finance Limited (“Xpress Finance”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company responsible for compliance,
human resource, operations, sales and marketing, customer service and general
administration of Xpress Finance. Prior to joining Xpress Finance in June 1997, Mr.
Yuen worked in two listed groups and a financial institution in managerial position.

Mr. Yuen is a fellow member of the Chartered Governance Institute (U.K.), the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Society of Registered Financial
Planners, a senior member of The Hong Kong Institute of Marketing, a professional
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management, a member
of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute and the Chartered Institute of
Marketing (U.K.).

Mr. Yuen holds a master’s degree in business administration and is also a certified
risk planner.

Ms. Leung Ka Ying (Priscilla) (“Ms. Leung), aged 34, joined the Company in
April 2016 as Financial Controller and is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting and financial management functions. Ms. Leung obtained her
bachelor’s degree in business administration in professional accountancy from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2008. She is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants with over 13 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and financial management. Prior to joining the Company, Ms.
Leung worked as a manager in PricewaterhouseCoopers and finance manager of a
Hong Kong listed group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHREE

The Directors present their annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and together with its
subsidiaries engages in property development, property investment, project
management and sales services and securities trading and investment. The
activities and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note
46 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by principal operating segments for
the Year is set out in the notes 4 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on page 85.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company was founded in 1965, and is currently focused on property
development, property investment, project management and sales services and
securities trading and investment in Hong Kong, the PRC and overseas.

A detailed business review for the Year, including further discussions of important
events occurred since the end of the financial year, likely future development of the
Group’s business and financial performance review with financial key performance
indicators, are set out in “Chairman’s Message” on pages 4 to 6, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 24 to 36 and “Financial Summary” on page 199
respectively. These discussions form part of this report.

A review in relation to the impact of outbreak of COVID-19 on our business is set
out under "Management Discussion and Analysis" on page 28.

The Company will issue separately an Environmental, Social and Governance
Report under Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as specified
in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Under our current risk management and internal control system, regular review of
the principal risks and uncertainties that may affect the Group’s financial condition,
results of operations, business and prospects are maintained. There may be other
risks and uncertainties further to the following key risk areas and uncertainties
currently identified by the Group.

The Group’s performance on businesses of property development in the PRC are
susceptible to the macro-economic and industry-specific policies and controls and
government regulations in the PRC. Any changes of these policies may penetrate
into the overall national economic conditions, and influence changes in consumer
confidence, consumption spending and preferences in property market in the PRC.
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The Group’s operation is also subject to certain risk factors pertaining to property
development in the PRC business. Lack of availability of potential land resources
in the PRC, shortage of construction materials, equipment and skilled labour,
default on the part of our customers, construction contractors, business partners
and tenants, adverse weather conditions, other unexpected inadequacies or failure
of internal process or other external factors may have various levels of risk on the
Group’s operations.

The Group’s capital risk management and financial risk management are set out in
notes 35 and 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

In response to these possible risks and uncertainties, the Group continues to
implement a series of internal control and strategies to adapt itself to cope with
the possible risks and changes. The Group also develops and reviews strategies,
policies and guidelines on risk control which enable the Group to monitor closely
and formulate business strategies to respond to risk promptly and effectively. The
Group also actively proposes measures to minimise any potential business impact
on the Group from these possible risks and uncertainties.

Key stakeholder relationships

To build a solid foundation for the Group’s sustainable development, the
Group recognise its employees, customers and business partners being the
key stakeholders and maintain a continuous dialogue with them. The Group is
dedicated to establish a close and supporting relationship with its employees,
provide quality products and services to customers and strengthen all kinds of
cooperation with its business partners.

The Company provides a healthy and safe workplace, career development
opportunities and competitive remuneration and benefits to employees based
on their qualifications in accordance with industry practice in the geographical
locations in which they are located. To treasure its loyal and industrious staff
members and improve their performance at their positions, different forms of
rewards and compensation including salaries, provident fund, bonus, insurance
coverage, or share options, etc, will be considered and reviewed on an annual
basis based on performance appraisals for eligible employees.

Maintaining close relationship with its customers as well as tenants are paramount
to the long-term success for the Group. Interacting channels with customers and
tenants are established to identify and respond to the dynamic market needs
proactively, improve the quality of products and services to adhere to customers’
needs and preference timely. In the long run, it fosters customer recognition of the
brand of the Group with a trust-worthy basis.

The Group is also committed to developing fair and co-operating business
partnership with suppliers and contractors to ensure stability of the Group’s
operation. Through a series of standardised procurement process including
quotation or tender procedures, cost and quality of the procurement supply of the
Group are able to be monitored, assessed and evaluated reasonably. The Group
continuously upholds an effective communication with suppliers to deliver quality
products and services to customers for long-term sustainability.

Compliance with laws and regulations

As far as the Company is aware of, the Group has complied with applicable laws
and regulations promulgated by the relevant regulatory bodies which are significant
to the operations of the Group.
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Environmental policy

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of businesses and
communities with which it engages. We pursue this business approach by
managing our business prudently and executing management decisions with due
care and attention to balance the sustainable business growth and environmental
protection.

The Group endeavors to make improvements by promoting environmental friendly
policies in the Group’s operations and increasing the employee’s awareness over
environmental protection. By means of advocating eco-friendly and reusable
materials, paper-recycling and energy saving measures on office equipment and
appliances, it helps enhance efficient use of resources, energy efficiency and
reduction of waste.

The Group is committed to act in an environmentally responsible manner to
review its environmental protection policies and activities from time to time for
implementation of any further measures and practices on environmental protection
in the business operation.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group as at 31 December 2020 are
set out in “Hong Kong and Overseas Property Portfolio” on page 7, “Property
Development in the PRC and Project Summary” on pages 8 to 23 and “Particulars
of Major Investment Properties” on page 200.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of the Group during the Year are set out in notes 14 and 15 respectively
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at the year end date. The
revaluation for the Year resulted a fair value loss approximately RMB33.5 million
which has been charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the Year, the Company issued new ordinary shares by way of private
placements and subscription and increased the number of issued shares.

Details of the private placements and subscription and the movement in the
share capital of the Company during the Year are set out under below section
headed “Capital Raising Activities and the Use of Proceeds” and note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group during the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 89.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately RMB774.1 million.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately RMB1.3 million.
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PRE-EMPTI

VE RIGHTS

N

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association
of the Company ("Articles of Association") or the laws of Hong Kong, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares to existing shareholders of the
Company on a pro-rata basis.

FINANCIAL

SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on page 199.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

The Company had not redeemed any of its listed securities during the Year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased or sold any of the

Company'’s listed

securities during the Year.

CAPITAL RAISING ACTIVITIES AND THE USE OF

BRBEERE

ARFAGERAN(ASERAA ) FRBEDH

EAMBLEERZIEX

C BEAR R RRL AR
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PROCEEDS EXBEEDREERBREARE
Date of Net Proceeds/
Completion Fund raising activity consideration  Intended use of proceeds Actual use of proceeds
TH B E3-01) MEREE/BE FENERERR FEREER AR
27 May 2020 Allotment and issue of 1,235,360,000 Shares at Net proceeds of (i) approximately HK$361.0 milion  The entire net proceeds had been
the placing price of HK$0.33 per placing Share on approximately  for repayment of bank and other  utilised as intended
27 May 2020 pursuant to the placing agreement HK$401.1 milion  borrowings due during the period
dated 8 May 2020. For details, please refer to the ending 31 December 2020; and (ii)
announcements of the Company dated 8 May 2020 approximately HK$40.1 million for
and 27 May 2020. general working capital
202065R27H REBHA2020E5 8B 2 EEHE © 1202055 FEsEE  ()MI061.0BBRTAREERE 2BAEREFECRERERE
A2 HREEREREERH0.3E TR ERET DA011BEBT  Z2020612A31ALHEREIH
1,235,360,000/R k17 - HBFH1E - BLHARAH ZBAIRAMEE R (i)4140.1
H1£2020F5A8A k20205 A27A 2 1 BEATAR-—REEE: -
18 December 2020 Allotment and issue of 1,526,090,000 Shares at the Net proceeds of (i) approximately HK$629.0 milion - Approximately HK$201.8 million
placing price of HK$0.46 per placing Share on 18 approximately  for repayment of bank and other  have been utilised towards
December 2020 pursuant to the placing agreement HK$698.9 milion  loans which are dug on or before  repayment of bank borrowings
dated 24 November 2020. For details, please refer 31 December 2021; and (i due on or before 31 December
to the announcements of the Company dated 24 approximately HK$69.9 milion for 2021, and the remaining unutilised
November 2020 and 18 December 2020. general working capital proceeds of approximately
HK$497.1 million are expected to be
utilised as intended in 2021.
20206128188 REAHMA20205 11 A48 2EERE + 120205 FGRFE  (W6008EBTARERR  #H201.8R8BTEBREER
128 BRI EBBIRALERIN0.46B LR B R ¥ #6998 8ET  2021F12A31AAIFIHZ R 2021F12A31 B2 AIEIER R
171,526,090,0000 %17 - BH= 1 - FLHALA TREMEE : RH6.9EE 171EE  MBATADBAEIEN
BEB2020F11 248 k2020512 R 18R 2 1 BTRAR-—REELS - A7 1 RERTERRIETERET
F2021 58 ©
30 December 2020 Loan capitalisation through subscription of Consideration of ~ Not applicable Not applicable
6,077,716,750 new Shares under specific mandate approximately
at the subscription price of HK$0.46 per subscription HK$2,795.7 million
Share pursuant to the subscription agreement which constitute the aggregate
dated 24 November 2020. For details, please refer subscription price and settled
to the announcements of the Company dated 24 by way of capitalisation of entire
November 2020 and 30 December 2020 and the shareholder’s loan owned to
circular of the Company dated 8 December 2020. the subscriber upon completion
2020612308 RIE2020F 11 A24R 2 REHE - BREEEHIR BEM27957EEST  TEA TR

ENGRAEEC. 468 TTRHE6,077,716,7505T1R
BZEBEFERL - EHEE - F2HARAR
HA2020F 11 A24H &2020F12 A30H 2 A% |
2020612388 2B

BRETBE - LR
BHZBA L 2 BRE R

EXbzhAKE

All the shares issued during the Year rank pari passu with other shares in issue in

all respects.
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DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED DURING THE YEAR

On 16 March 2020, the Company completed the issuance of senior notes at a
principal amount of US$200 million carrying interest of 12.5% per annum due
on 13 September 2022 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
subscription agreement. The senior notes were unsecured and guaranteed by an
intermediate holding company of the Company (“Parent Guarantor”) and certain
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Parent Guarantor. The senior notes proceeds had
been fully utilised as intended to refinance existing indebtedness and for project
developments and general corporate purposes of the Group. Details of the senior
notes issuance are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 6 March 2020,
8 March 2020 and 13 March 2020.

DIRECTORS

(a)

Directors of the Company
The Directors during the Year and present Directors up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:
Zhang Jingguo
Zhang Guogiang

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-Executive Director:
Huang Yanping

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Liu Da

Liu Qiao

Ma Yuntao

In accordance with Articles 78 and 79 of Articles of Association and
pursuant to code provision A.4.2 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Mr.
Zhang Jingguo and Dr. Liu Qiao will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 8 June
2021 (the “2021 AGM”) and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election. Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the 2021 AGM are set
out in the circular to the shareholders which will be sent together with this
annual report.

The Company has received from each of the independent Non-Executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of the independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years which may be terminated in accordance
with the terms of the service agreements.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the 2021 AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which are not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 37 to 42.
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(b) Directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
The directors of the Company’s subsidiaries during the Year and up to the
date of this report are:

Bai Mengjun
Bie Sanjiang
Chen Jiguo
Chen Weibing
Feng Hongfeng
Guo Wei
Huang Yanping
Jeffrey Busch
Liu Chuanke
Liu Hai

Liu Zhengiang
Meng Yuming
Tan Shumei
Wang Jinhu
Wang Liang
Wen Sifang
Xing Zhumei
Zhang Huigi
Zhang Guogiang
Zhang Yong
Zhang Jianmin
Zhang Jingguo

(appointed on 22 June 2020)
(appointed on 17 August 2020)

(appointed on 11 September 2020)
(appointed on 17 July 2020)

(resigned on 17 August 2020)
(appointed on 8 December 2020)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes 9, 28, 31, 33 and 43 to the consolidated financial
statements, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company,
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or any entity
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in notes 28 and 43 to the consolidated financial statements in
relation to the financial assistance provided by the controlling shareholder of the
Company to the Group and the transactions disclosed in notes 31, 33 and 43 to
the consolidated financial statements and also detailed under sections headed
“Related Party Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions” and there
was no contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
and a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, together with those of the five highest
paid employees of the Group for the Year are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”),
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or any interest or short positions which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or any interests and short positions which have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions

(i) Interest in the Shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of the
Company (%)

Number of HIEAR DT
Name of Director Capacity in which interests are held Shares held BRITRAK
EEME BaEEESHD FrERHEE Bat
Mr. Zhang Spousal interest (Note 1) 13,775,208,938 71.99
SREHE BB (A7 1)
Ms. Huang Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 13,775,208,938 71.99
HuangZ =+ ;s EEERS(AiE2)
Notes: Hiat -
(1) Mr. Zhang (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director of (1) REE(ARRERFE - THREAHFZHTE

the Company) is the spouse of Ms. Huang, under SFO, he is deemed
to be interested in 13,775,208,938 Shares in which Ms. Huang is
interested.

) 13,775,208,938 Shares are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which is
ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as
settlor and protector and Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee.
Joy Town Inc. is wholly-owned by Zensun Group Limited. Zensun Group
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward Limited, which in
turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited and the entire
issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited became assets
of the trust. Superior Glory Enterprises Limited, Notable Reward Limited,
Zensun Group Limited and Joy Town Inc. are holding companies of the
Company, each of them is an associated corporation of the Company
under SFO.

) BHuangX T+ 2 BB REFHFRHE
156 BEB AR HuangZ tHBEEZE 2
13,775,208,938[¢ f& 17 R A s ©

©) 13,775,208,938 % % 1 2 Joy Town Inc. & #
BB EEEHAHaung X TR IEAZ T
A FI{R & A K f Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte
Limited ERXTEAB 2 ST A © Joy
Town Inc. HIEESEBEERARZEREA ° IF
5% E A BR A 7] ANotable Reward Limited 2
% & Mf B 2 7 - 1 Notable Reward Limited
/@ Superior Glory Enterprises Limited & &
A - [ Superior Glory Enterprises Limited &
HEBITIRAK REEEFTHEE © Superior
Glory Enterprises Limited * Notable Reward
Limited * 1E 5 % B A R 2 7 K&Joy Town Inc.
HEAEARBZZERAR  BEEABELFNMEE
1RGITE T ARRE) 2 BEER -
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Long Positions 3y
(ii) Interest in ordinary shares of associated corporations of the Company (ii) RARA RIEEDEE @R+ 6 R
Approximate
percentage of
Name of Capacity in which the Number of the issued share
Name of Director associated corporation interests are held share held capital (%)
iR QEHEBCEEC BT
EEpE HEEE AR EREESH RoEE RA&AzEDE
Ms. Huang Superior Glory Interest of controlled 1 100
Enterprises Limited corporation (Note)
HuangZ =+ kB (AT
Ms. Huang Notable Reward Limited Interest of controlled 100 100
corporation (Note)
HuangZ =+ SR EE R (M)
Ms. Huang Zensun Group Limited Interest of controlled 1 100
corporation (Note)
Huang#z 4 FEEEBRAA REE s (R
Ms. Huang Joy Town Inc. Beneficial owner (Note) 1 100
HuangZ + BEnEB AHE)

Note: 13,775,208,938 Shares are directly held by Joy Town Inc., which are
ultimately owned by a discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as
settlor and protector and Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee.
Joy Town Inc. is wholly-owned by Zensun Group Limited. Zensun Group
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward Limited, which in
turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited and the entire
issued share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited became assets
of the trust. Superior Glory Enterprises Limited, Notable Reward Limited,
Zensun Group Limited and Joy Town Inc. are holding companies of the
Company, each of them is an associated corporation of the Company
under SFO. Ms. Huang is the sole director of Joy Town Inc. and Notable
Reward Limited and Mr. Zhang is the sole director of Zensun Group
Limited.

Save as disclosed, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors, chief
executive of the Company or their respective associates had any interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which: (a) were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

Hia# :© 13,775,208,938 % f% 15 F1 Joy Town Inc. B
A AR MHHaungZ tR I WIEAZERE
A MR & A K 8 Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte
LimitedEAZ T AN RETESR - Joy
Town Inc. HIEESEBEERARLEREA ° IE
Pt E AR A 7] BNotable Reward Limited 2
2> &M B2 7 - i Notable Reward Limited
1 Superior Glory Enterprises Limited & & #
& - i Superior Glory Enterprises Limited &
HEBITRAK REEEFTHEE © Superior
Glory Enterprises Limited - Notable Reward
Limited + 1F B 5% B B R 2 7 K& Joy Town Inc.
HAARARARZEKRAR BB AEFLE
EEPITEBT ARG 2 MEEEE © HuangZZ %4
Joy Town Inc. & Notable Reward Limited 2 1
—EEF MREEAEBEEBRARIZHE—
S

B FCREEE SN - A20205F12 A31H - R&E
AIfTHE  BERAQNRFEBITHASHER
KA B SAT R AREE A B (F & REH M EIEG
EXVER) 2B~ RGN SESFT - B @R
BEAERPE GO EXVIET RSN BEME K
RA MBS SA R (BERIEES LS
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KK E) o) IRIEE S R EIEHI53521678
RAZERT AR R B M 2R IAE ¢ &
)R EMRAMER s E AR ERHET
FBHFRGMIRESFRIZBME AR A MR 2
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate and neither the directors nor any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, revenue attributable to the largest customer of the Group
accounted to approximately 1.5% of the total revenue in the Year and the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
revenue in the Year.

During the Year, save for Ms. Huang’s interest in Ever Diamond Group, none of
our Directors, or any of their close associates, or any of the shareholders of the
Company (who to the best knowledge of our Directors own more than 5% of
our Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in our Group’s five largest
customers. For details of the interest of Ms. Huang in the transactions with Ever
Diamond Group, please refer to the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”.

During the Year, purchases attributable to the largest supplier of the Group
amounted to approximately 18.7% of the total purchases in the Year and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 37.6% of the Group’s
purchases in the Year.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
of the Company (who to the best knowledge of our Directors own more than 5.0%
of our Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in our Group’s five largest
suppliers.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, certain Directors and companies controlled by certain Directors
entered into transactions with the Group which are disclosed in notes 27, 28, 31,
33 and 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Related party transactions in relation to (i) acquisition of Xingcheng Holdings from
the related company as disclosed in notes 33 and 43 to the consolidated financial
statements; and (ii) capitalisation of the shareholder's loan through subscription
of new shares under specific mandate as disclosed in notes 31 and 43 to the
consolidated financial statements, each constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and complied to the
announcement, reporting and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, the Board confirmed that none of these related party transactions
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following transactions are
continuing connected transactions which are subject to the requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions with Zensun Development
Group

In 2015, a master services agreement (“Master Services Agreement”) has been
entered into between the Company and Henan Zensun Corporate Development
Group Limited” (AIF EE ¥ EREEAREE 2 A]) (“Zensun Development”),
pursuant to which, Zensun Development has agreed to provide, or procure
members of Zensun Development, its subsidiaries and/or any other company in the
equity capital of which Zensun Development and/or any of its subsidiaries taken
together are directly or interested so as to exercise or control 30% or more voting
power at general meetings, or to control the composition of a majority of the board
of directors, and the subsidiaries of such company (the “Zensun Development
Group”) to provide construction and related ancillary services to the Group
according to the definitive agreement(s) signed between Zensun Development
Group and the Group from time to time. On 21 February 2017, the Company
and Zensun Development entered into a supplemental agreement (the “2017
Supplemental Agreement”) to, among other matters, extend the effective term
of the Master Services Agreement to 31 December 2019. On 11 October 2018,
the Company entered into a supplemental agreement with Zensun Development
(“2018 Supplemental Agreement”) to further amend the effective terms of the
Master Services Agreement as amended by the 2017 Supplemental Agreement
to be three years from 1 January 2018 and continue up to 31 December 2020.
During the year of 2018, the revised annual caps for the transactions contemplated
under the Master Services Agreement as amended by the 2017 Supplemental
Agreement and 2018 Supplemental Agreement (the “Renewed 2018 Master
Services Agreement”) for each of the financial years ended 31 December 2018,
2019 and 2020 have been approved to be RMB1,133 million, RMB2,404 million
and RMB1,534 million, respectively.

On 21 October 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with Zensun
Development (the “2021 Master Services Agreement”) which commences from 1
January 2021 and continue up to and including 31 December 2023 and the annual
caps for the transactions contemplated under the 2021 Master Services Agreement
for each of the financial years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 are
RMB3,212 million, RMB2,555 million and RMB1,778 million, respectively. The 2021
Master Service Agreement and the annual caps mentioned above were approved
by independent shareholders of the Company in the extraordinary general meeting
held on 8 December 2020. For details of the terms of the 2021 Master Services
Agreement, please refer to the Company’s circular dated 18 November 2020.

As Zensun Development is owned as to 90%, 9% and 1% by Beijing Xiangcheng
Investment Co., Ltd.* (bt R E AR A7) (“Xiangcheng Investment”), Ms.
Zhang Huigi (“Ms. Zhang”) and Mr. Zhang, respectively. Xiangcheng Investment
is owned as to 98% by Ms. Zhang and Ms. Zhang is the daughter of Mr. Zhang
and Ms. Huang, an Executive Director and the Non-Executive Director of the
Company. Zensun Development is therefore a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

During the Year, the annual cap for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“2020 Annual Cap”) approved for the continuing connected transactions between
the Group and Zensun Development Group under the Renewed 2018 Master
Services Agreement was RMB1,534 million and the actual transacted amounts
were approximately RMB1,532.7 million, which did not exceed the 2020 Annual
Cap.
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Continuing Connected Transactions with Ever Diamond Group

On 4 November 2019, the management and sales services framework agreement
(“Management and Sales Services Framework Agreement”) has been entered
into between the Company and Ever Diamond Global Company Limited (“Ever
Diamond”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Ever Diamond Group”), pursuant
to which, the Ever Diamond Group appointed the Group as its service provider
to provide the management services and the sales services to the Ever Diamond
Group during the period from the effective date of the Management and Sales
Services Framework Agreement up to and including 31 December 2021 and the
annual caps for each of the three financial years ended/ending 31 December
2019, 2020 and 2021 are RMB220 million, RMB310 million and RMB200 million,
respectively. Relevant members of the Ever Diamond Group may from time to
time enter into individual agreement(s) with members of the Group in relation to
the provision of the management services and sales services, subject to the terms
and conditions of the Management and Sales Services Framework Agreement.
The Management and Sales Services Framework Agreement and the annual caps
mentioned above were approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
in the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 20 December 2019.
For the details of the terms of the Management and Sales Services Framework
Agreement, please refer to the Company’s circular dated 3 December 2019.

The entire issue share capital of Ever Diamond is wholly owned by a discretionary
trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector, the discretionary trust is
interested in approximately 71.99% of the issued share capital of the Company. As
such, Ever Diamond is a connected person of the Company and the transactions
contemplated under the Management and Sales Services Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the annual cap for the financial year ended 31 December 2020
approved for the continuing connected transactions between the Group and the
Ever Diamond Group under the Management and Sales Services Framework
Agreement was RMB310 million and the actual transacted amount was
approximately RMB123.5 million, which did not exceed the above mentioned
annual cap.

Continuing Connected Transactions with Xingye Wulian Group

On 18 February 2020, the master property engineering framework agreement
(“Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement”) has been entered into
between the Company and Xingye Wulian Service Group Co. Ltd. (“Xingye Wulian”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Xingye Wulian Group”), pursuant to which,
the Group appointed the Xingye Wulian Group as its service provider to provide
property engineering services to the Group during the period from the effective date
of the Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement up to and including 31
December 2022 and the annual caps for each of the three financial years ended/
ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are RMB18.5 million, RMB26.5 million
and RMB34 million, respectively. Relevant members of the Xingye Wulian Group
may from time to time to enter into individual agreement(s) with members of the
Group in relation to the provision of property engineering services, subject to the
terms and conditions of Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement. For
detail of the terms of Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 17 April 2020 and 23 April 2020.
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During the Year, the annual cap approved for the continuing connected
transactions between the Group and Xingye Wulian Group under the Master
Property Engineering Framework Agreement was RMB18.5 million and the actual
transacted amount was approximately RMB14.9 million, which did not exceed the
above mentioned annual cap.

On 18 February 2020, the master property management framework agreement
(“Master Property Management Framework Agreement”) has been entered into
between the Company and Xingye Wulian, pursuant to which, the Group appointed
the Xingye Wulian Group as its service provider to provide property management
and value-added services to the Group during the period from the effective date
of the Master Property Management Framework Agreement up to and including
31 December 2022 and the annual caps for each of the three financial years
ended/ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 are RMB9.5 million, RMB19.5
million and RMB23 million, respectively. On 28 August 2020, the Company further
entered into a supplemental agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”) with Xingye
Wulian to amend certain terms of the Master Property Management Framework
Agreement to revise the annual caps for each of the three financial years ending
31 December 2022. The revised annual cap for each of the three financial years
ended/ending 31 December 2022 are RMB21 million, RMB66 million and RMB66
million, respectively. Relevant members of the Xingye Wulian Group may from time
to time to enter into individual agreement(s) with members of the Group in relation
to the provision of property management and value-added services, subject to the
terms and conditions of Master Property Management Framework Agreement. For
detail of the terms of Master Property Management Framework Agreement, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 17 April 2020, 23 April 2020 and 28
August 2020.

During the Year, the revised annual cap approved for the continuing connected
transactions between the Group and Xingye Wulian Group under the Supplemental
Agreement was RMB21 million and the actual transacted amount was
approximately RMB12.2 million, which did not exceed the above mentioned annual
cap.

The entire issued share capital of Xingye Wulian is indirectly owned as to
approximately 56.59% by the Blossom Trust, which is controlled by Ms. Zhang
as the protector. Ms. Zhang is the daughter of Mr. Zhang, the Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and executive Director of the Company and Ms. Huang, the
non-executive Director of the Company. As such, Xingye Wulian is a connected
person of the Company and the transactions contemplated under the Master
Property Engineering Framework Agreement and the Master Property Management
Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Each of the aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by
the independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The independent Non-
Executive Directors confirmed that each of the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the Year have been entered into

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms; and
(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company has engaged the
auditor of the Company to conduct certain procedures in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagement 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has also issued an unqualified letter containing the
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

In accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information”, the auditor has also reported to the Board that for the Year,
nothing has come to their attention that in respect of: a) the continuing connected
transactions governed by the Renewed 2018 Master Services Agreement: (i)
have not received the approval of the Board; (i) are not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group; (i) have not been entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
such transactions; and (iv) have exceeded the relevant cap amount for the financial
year ended 31 December 2020 as set out in the circular dated 22 November
2018 by the Company in respect of the continuing connected transactions; b)
the continuing connected transactions governed by the Management and Sales
Services Framework Agreement: (i) have not received the approval of the Board;
(i) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group; (iii) have been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing such transactions, and (iv) have exceeded the
relevant cap amount for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 as set out in
the circular dated 3 December 2019 by the Company in respect of the continuing
connected transactions; and c) the continuing connected transactions governed
by both the Master Property Engineering Framework Agreement and the Master
Property Management Framework Agreement: (i) have not received the approval
of the Board; (i) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group; (iii) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing such transactions; and (iv)
have exceeded the relevant cap amount for the financial year ended 31 December
2020 as set out in the announcements dated 17 April 2020, 23 April 2020 and 28
August 2020 by the Company in respect of the continuing connected transactions.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, according to the register of interest in Shares and
underlying Shares and short positions kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of Part XV of the SFO and so far as is known to or can be ascertained after
reasonable enquiries by the Directors, the persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who were directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more
in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company are as follows:

FERR

R2020F12 A31H » IRIEAR R G1E R FH & BAE KD
EXVEPEIBHRTFE 2RO MABERNDERRARE
Rt ARBESERAMASRNELSBEREE
T BESEEESAQ ARG MEERD5%EIA L
BHEZ AT (BERARAREBITHRAERINAT

Long positions in the Shares of the Company REQATRDZ2EHE
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Number of capital of the
Name of shareholder Nature of interests Shares held Company (%)
KA QR B BT
REREE ERtE FERGHE RA&ABDL
Vistra Trust (Singapore) Trustee (Note) 13,775,208,938 71.99
Pte Limited (ERINC=)
Superior Glory Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 13,775,208,938 71.99
Enterprises Limited Sy E S (M)
Notable Reward Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 13,775,208,938 71.99
Ry A E (M5
Zensun Group Limited Interest of controlled corporation (Note) 13,775,208,938 71.99
FAHEEARAA AR (M)
Joy Town Inc. Beneficial owner (Note) 13,775,208,938 71.99
BEmmEA A7)
Note: Hiat -

These Shares are directly owned by Joy Town Inc., which are ultimately owned by a
discretionary trust established by Ms. Huang as settlor and protector and Vistra Trust
(Singapore) Pte Limited as trustee. Joy Town Inc. is wholly-owned by Zensun Group
Limited. Zensun Group Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Notable Reward Limited,
which in turn is wholly-owned by Superior Glory Enterprises Limited and the entire issued
share capital of Superior Glory Enterprises Limited became assets of the trust. Ms.
Huang is the sole director of Joy Town Inc. and Notable Reward Limited and Mr. Zhang is
the sole director of Zensun Group Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person other than the
Directors whose interests are set out in the above section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Securities”, had registered
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the Company, and short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares that was required to be recorded in
the register of interest pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

ZE R BJoy Town Inc. EER A » H&EHHaungZL 5K
L3P E 7 & 58 A MR # A K& | Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte
Limited E A sE AR EFEA#EA < Joy Town Inc. |H IE
BEBBRAREZERSA - EA K EBRAQF ANotable
Reward Limited & & ff{ & A 7 + fiNotable Reward Limited
i Superior Glory Enterprises Limited & & # & - 1 Superior
Glory Enterprises Limited 2 30 B # 1T AKX AZHEETWE
E ° HuangZ =13 AJoy Town Inc. 2 Notable Reward Limited
W—EE MEREEALHEEGRABM—ES -

B ESCEEEESN 0 202012318  BRiESEN £
N EERETBITHRABRESZESRAR -2
EEN BMECAATEDEEARBDHITEAS%
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors was interested in any business,
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group’s businesses except that Mr. Zhang and Ms. Huang are individually
and collectively deemed interested in Zensun International Holdings Company
Limited and/or its subsidiaries and associated companies which are engaged in
construction, property development and related business in the PRC.

As the Board is independent of the boards of these companies, the Company has
therefore been capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s
length from, the above businesses.

CHANGE OF PARTICULARS OF THE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ma, an independent non-executive Director was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of TUS-Pharmaceutical Group Co. Ltd. (stock code:
000590), a listed company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange since 21 May 2020.
Save as disclosed, there are no change of particulars of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company as required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 28 August 2013, a new share option scheme (the “2013 Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company. The purpose of the 2013 Scheme is to motivate eligible
persons who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The 2013
Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from that date, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended. Eligible persons of the 2013 Scheme include (i) a director or proposed
director (including an independent non-executive director) of any member of
the Group; (ii) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the Group; (iii)
a supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group; (iv) a customer,
consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or
representative of any member of the Group; (v) a person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional services to any member of the Group; and (vi) a landlord or tenant
(including a sub-tenant) of any member of the Group. Subject to the terms of the
2013 Scheme, the Board shall be entitled at any time during the life of the 2013
Scheme to offer the grant of any option to any eligible person as the Board may in
its absolute discretion select and the basis of eligibility shall be determined by the
Board from time to time.

Pursuant to the 2013 Scheme, the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted is such number of shares which, when aggregated with
shares subject to any other share option scheme(s), must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the annual general meeting
approving the 2013 Scheme on 28 August 2013. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible person in the 2013 Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to the
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their respective associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the options) of the Company. In
addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their respective associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of
grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are subject to the
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The amount payable upon the acceptance of an option is HK$1.00. The period
within which an option must be exercised shall be such period as the Board may
in its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant, save that such period shall
not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of grant of an option.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board, but may not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the
grant, which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the grant; and (i) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
2013 Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of the annual general meeting approving the 2013 Scheme on
28 August 2018, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. Options vested immediately and may be exercised
at any time not exceeding a period of 5 years from the date on which the share
options is accepted.

During the Year, no share options under the 2013 Scheme were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed. As at the end of the reporting period, the Company
has no outstanding share options under the 2013 Scheme.

As at 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 and the date of this report, the total
number of shares available for issue under the 2013 Scheme is 350,068,637
shares, representing 1.8% of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date
of this report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes for the employees of the Group are
disclosed in the section headed “Other employee benefits — Retirement benefit
scheme and pension scheme” set out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Detailed information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 62 to 74.
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DIVIDEND POLICY AND FINAL DIVIDEND

Dividend Policy
The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”). The Company
considers stable and sustainable returns to the shareholders of the Company
to be its goal. According to the Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into
account, inter alia:

(i) the general financial condition of the Group;

(if) the Group’s actual and future operations and liquidity position;

(iif) the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future expansion
plans;

(iv) the Group’s debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

(v) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group;

(vi) the shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and industry’s norm;
(vii) the general market conditions; and
(viii)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Articles of Association and any other applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in its
sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel the Dividend
Policy at any time.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by
the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way obligate the Group to
declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

Final Dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.81 cents in
the form of cash per Share, amounting to a total dividend of approximately
RMB154,984,000 in respect of the Year to shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on Thursday, 17 June
2021 (record date).

The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB and paid in Hong Kong
dollars. The final dividend payable in Hong Kong dollars will be converted from
RMB at the central parity rate of RMB to Hong Kong dollars published by the
People’s Bank of China as at Tuesday, 8 June 2021. Subject to the approval of
the shareholders of the Company at the 2021 AGM, it is expected that the final
dividend will be paid to the eligible shareholders on or around Friday, 23 July 2021.

There is no arrangement that any shareholder of the Company has waived or
agreed to waive any dividend.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the Board on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Board after recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float as required under the Listing
Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles of Association provides that Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him as a Director. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group
throughout the year.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

During the Year, the Company was not involved in any litigation, arbitration or
claims of material importance and there was no litigation or claim of material
importance which was known to the Directors to be pending or threatened by or
against the Company.

IMPORTANT EVENTS SINCE THE YEAR END

Details of the important events since the year end are set out in note 47 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2021 AGM will be held on Tuesday, 8 June 2021 and the notice of the 2021
AGM will be published and despatched in the manner as required by the Listing
Rules and the Articles of Association in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed for the following periods:

(@) For the purpose of determining the shareholders of the Company who
are entitled to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM expected to be held on
Tuesday, 8 June 2021, the register of members of the Company expected
to be closed on Thursday, 3 June 2021 to Tuesday, 8 June 2021, both
days inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2021 AGM,
all transfer documents should be lodged for registration with the Company’s
Share Registrar, Tricor Friendly Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong expected not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 2 June 2021.

(b) For the purpose of determining the shareholders of the Company who
qualify for the final dividend, the register of members of the Company
expected to be closed on Tuesday, 15 June 2021 to Thursday, 17 June
2021, both days inclusive. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all
transfer documents should be lodged for registration with the Company’s
Share Registrar, Tricor Friendly Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong expected not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 11 June 2021.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young, who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2021 AGM.

On behalf of the Board
ZHANG JINGGUO
Chairman, Executive Director

and Chief Executive Officer

25 March 2021
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The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance,
formulate good corporate governance practice to improve accountability and
transparency in operations, and strengthen the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group from time to time so as to cope with the expectations
of the shareholders of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions
(“Code Provisions”) and, where applicable, the recommended best practices of
the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules throughout the Year, save and except for the deviations from Code
Provisions A.1.1 and A.2.1 of the CG Code as detailed below.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, Board meetings should be
held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly internals. Although only
three regular Board meetings were held during the Year, the Board considered
that sufficient meetings had been held as business operations were under the
management and the supervision of the executive Directors. In addition, senior
management of the Group has provided to the Directors the information in respect
of the Group’s business development and activities from time to time and, when
required, ad hoc Board meetings were held to discuss matters.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive of the Company should be segregated. The Company is of the view that
it is in the best interest of the Company that Mr. Zhang with his profound expertise
in the property business, shall continue in his dual capacity as chairman and chief
executive officer. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority for
the present arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by the
current Board composition and structure taking into account the background and
experience of the Directors.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the model code as set out in Appendix 10 (“Model
Code”) to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for securities transactions by
the Directors. The Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and
each of them confirmed that they have compiled with the required standards set
out in the Model Code during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the relevant employees of the Group who are considered likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information of the Company or its securities on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code in relation to their dealings in the securities
of the Company pursuant to Code Provision A.6.4 of the CG Code. To the best
knowledge and belief of the Directors, all relevant employees have complied with
the required standard of such code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the shareholders of the Company and in discharging
its corporate accountability, every Director is required to pursue excellence in the
interests of its shareholders and fulfill his fiduciary duties by applying the required
level of skills, care and diligence to a standard in accordance with the statutory
requirements.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for formulating group policies and strategic business
directions, and monitoring business performances through implementation
of adequate risk management and internal control systems. The executive
Directors are delegated with the authorities and responsibilities for the day-to-day
management of the Group, operational and business decisions within the control
and delegation framework of the Group. The Non-Executive Directors (including
independent Non-Executive Directors) contribute valuable views, professional
opinions and proposals for the Board’s deliberation and decisions.

The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance functions include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;
(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to the board committees, details of
which are set out below.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Company, including
appointment of new Directors, approval of financial statements, dividend policy,
significant accounting policies, material contracts, significant appointments such as
company secretary and external auditors, terms of reference of board committees,
major corporate policies such as code of conduct, and other significant financial
and operational matters.

The Board is also responsible for maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group. It has carried out
review of the existing implemented systems, including control measures of financial
and operational compliance of the Group.

The Directors having material interest in the matter shall abstain from voting at such
Board meeting and the independent Non-Executive Directors with no conflict of
interest shall attend at such meeting to deal with the matters. All Directors ensure
that they can give sufficient attention to discharge their responsibilities to the affairs
of the Company and the Directors have disclosed to the Company the identity and
nature of offices held in any public organisation and other significant commitments
on an annual basis.
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During the Year, regular Board meetings of the Company were held three times
to review, consider and approve, among others, annual and interim results and
to review the business operations, corporate governance and the effectiveness
of internal control systems and risk management of the Group. At least 14 days’
notice for each regular meeting is given to all Directors. All such minutes are kept
by the company secretary of the Company and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director. Apart from the regular Board
meetings, the Chairman also met with the independent Non-Executive Directors
without the presence of Executive Directors during the Year.

Liability Insurance for the Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors against liabilities arising out of legal action on corporate activities. Such
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprised six Directors including two
Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director (“NED”) and three independent
Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”). The biographical details of the Directors and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 37 to 42.

Mr. Zhang is the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is primarily responsible for leadership and effective functioning of
the Board, ensuring key issues are promptly addressed by the Board, as well as
providing strategic direction of the Group, take primary responsibility for ensuring
good corporate governance practices with necessary procedures established and
also together with other executive Directors are responsible for the Group’s daily
operations and the effective implementation of corporate strategy and policies.

Executive Directors
As at 31 December 2020, there were two Executive Directors including Mr. Zhang
and Mr. Zhang Guogiang. Mr. Zhang is the spouse of Ms. Huang.

Non-Executive Director
As at 31 December 2020 there was one NED, Ms. Huang. Ms. Huang is the
spouse of Mr. Zhang.

Independent Non-Executive Directors and their Independence
As at 31 December 2020, there were three INEDs including Dr. Liu Qiao, Mr. Liu
Da and Mr. Ma Yuntao.

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of INEDs in accordance with
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. With Dr. Liu Qiao and Mr. Liu Da’s
working experience and their academic background in finance and accounting, the
Company considers that they are qualified persons with appropriate professional
knowledge in accounting and finance as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.
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The Company has already received annual confirmation letters of independence
from all the INEDs and each of them have declared fulfilment of all the guidelines
for assessing independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the Board considers that all INEDs are independent as defined in the
Listing Rules.

All the Directors, including the NED and INEDs, have entered into service
agreements with the Company for a term of three years and under which all
Directors must retire by rotation at least once every three years, and no Director
shall hold office for a continuous period in excess of three years, or past the
third annual general meeting, following the Director’s appointment or re-election,
whichever is longer, without submitting himself/herself for re-election at the annual
general meeting.

In compliance with Code Provision A.3.2 of the CG Code, an updated list of the
Directors identifying their role and function are available on the websites of the Company
(www.zensunenterprises.com) and the Stock Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk). The
Company will review the composition of the Board from time to time to ensure that the
Board possesses the appropriate and necessary expertise, skill and experience to meet
the needs of the Group’s business and to enhance the shareholders’ value.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders of the Company
and have exercised their duties with care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the
development of the Group. Every newly appointed Director shall receive a formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction to ensure that he or she has a proper
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and that he or she is
fully aware of his or her duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable
statutory and regulatory rules and requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
so as to develop and refresh directors’ knowledge and skills and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company regularly circulates training materials or briefings to all Directors
in respect of the updates on, among other things, the Listing Rules, the SFO
or guidelines, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and relevant financial or
accounting standards which may be of the interest to Directors. During the Year,
all Directors have complied with the Code Provisions in relation to continuous
professional development, apart from reading materials relevant to the Company’s
business, director’s duties and responsibilities. Mr. Zhang Jingguo, Mr. Zhang
Guogiang, Ms. Huang Yanping, Dr. Liu Qiao, Mr. Liu Da and Mr. Ma Yuntao also
attended and/or gave presentation in seminars/forums. The Company updates
Directors constantly on the latest developments regarding the Group’s business
and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices. All Directors have
provided to the Company with their training records on a regular basis, and such
records have been maintained by the Company for accurate and comprehensive
record keeping.
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Board Committees
The Board has established three Board committees including the audit committee

ExgZzag
ExrgoRy-EseZBeelakzie (&

(the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration ##ZE€ )  HFNZEES([FMEES ) MIEREE
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) to A(fﬁ%i/\ @ ) IR A ESE V\] HEHAIEKR
assume responsibilities for and to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s A G EHETETSHE BT - W ETEE - 5
affairs with respective terms of reference. Details of the Board committees are &% 8 @15 X5l ©
discussed below.
All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their FIEEE L@ ERHARER  UBTEZE
duties and are empowered to obtain independent’ professional advice atthe W E @ EFRETSENBATEAABILIEEE
Company’s expense in appropriate circumstances. B BHEARQAHEIE -
Attendance of Directors at various meetings EEREZESBZLHER
During the Year, details of the Directors’ attendance in the following meetings are  RAFEER @ EEFA M E@E 2 HFERAFEHWOT ¢
set out below:
Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held
HEEBERYBITEBIRE
Annual Extraordinary

Audit Remuneration Nomination General General
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
BE=x EE EZEEY FEzEg REZEE® REBFRE REEIXE
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Zhang Jingguo 3/3 N/A 11 11 11 3/3
R 5L TEA
Mr. Zhang Guogiang 3/3 N/A N/A N/A 1/1 3/3
R B8 55 A T EA TER N3
NED
FEINITES
Ms. Huang Yanping 3/3 N/A N/A N/A 11 3/3
Huang YanpingZ & T EA iEMA TiEA
INEDs
B IEITES
Dr. Liu Qiao 3/3 2/2 11 11 11 3/3
2L
Mr. Liu Da 3/3 2/2 N/A 11 11 3/3
2K E AN A
Mr. Ma Yuntao 3/3 2/2 11 N/A 11 3/3
BEMEE TiEA
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing and monitoring the
financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems of the Company,
including reassessment of the financial and accounting policies, review of interim
reports, annual reports and financial information, etc. In addition, the Audit
Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board, to be put
to its shareholders for approval at the annual general meeting (“AGM”), in relation
to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor; review and
supervision of the external auditor in respect of its independence and objectivity,
the effectiveness of the audit procedures; formulation of policies on the provision
of non-audit services by the external auditor; handling any issues related to the
resignation or the removal of such auditor and the communication with the external
auditor on auditing matters.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee consisted of three members,
namely, Mr. Liu Da, Dr. Liu Qiao and Mr. Ma Yuntao who are all INEDs. Mr. Liu Da
is the chairman of the Audit Committee. In February 2019, the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee was updated taking into consideration the revised Listing
Rules effective from 1 January 2019. The most up-to-date version of the written
terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, two Audit Committee meetings were convened. The Audit
Committee had performed the followings tasks, among others:

(i) reviewed the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2020;

(if) reviewed the appropriateness and effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems;

(ii) discussed with the auditor of the Company and reviewed their audit
findings;

(iv) reviewed the auditor’s remuneration;

(v) reviewed all non-audit services provided by the auditors to determine the
provision of such services would affect the independence of the auditors;
and

(vi) performed the corporate governance functions and reviewed the corporate

governance policies and practices.

After due and careful consideration with all necessary financial information, and
reports from management and the external auditors, the Audit Committee noted
that no suspected fraud or irregularities, significant internal control deficiencies, or
suspected infringement of laws, rules, or regulations had been found in respect
of the Group, and concluded at the meeting held on 25 March 2021 that the risk
management and internal control systems were adequate and effective.

On 25 March 2021, the Audit Committee meeting was convened to review the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020, including the accounting principles and practices, in conjunction with the
Company’s external auditor. The Audit Committee endorsed the accounting
treatment adopted by the Company, and the Audit Committee had to the best of
its ability assured itself that the disclosure of the financial information in this annual
report has complied with the applicable accounting standards and the Listing
Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Audit Committee therefore
resolved to recommend for the Board’s approval the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the re-appointment of Ermnst
& Young as the auditor of the Company and that the relevant resolution shall be
put forth for it shareholders’ consideration and approval at the 2021 AGM.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations
on and approving the remuneration policy and structure and packages of the
Directors and senior management to the Board. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by reference to the performance of the individual and the Company
as well as the prevailing market conditions. The human resources department is
responsible for collection and administration of the human resources data for the
Remuneration Committee’s consideration.

As at 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee consisted of three
members, namely, Mr. Zhang Jingguo, Dr. Liu Qiao and Mr. Ma Yuntao. Dr. Liu
Qiao and Mr. Ma Yuntao are INEDs while Mr. Zhang Jingguo is an Executive
Director. Mr. Ma Yuntao is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
most up-to-date version of the written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held. The
Remuneration Committee had reviewed and approved the remuneration of
Executive Directors, NED and INEDs.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing the structure,
size, diversity and composition of the Board regularly and make any changes
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, including making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board that assist
complementation of the Company’s corporate policy.

As at 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee consisted of three members,
namely, Mr. Zhang Jingguo, Dr. Liu Qiao and Mr. Liu Da. Mr. Zhang Jingguo is an
executive Director while Dr. Liu Qiao and Mr. Liu Da are INEDs. Dr. Liu Qiao is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee. In February 2019, the terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee was updated taking into consideration of the revised
Listing Rules effective from 1 January 2019. The most up-to-date version of
the written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

During the Year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held. The Board had
reviewed the current structure and composition of the Board and recommended Ms.
Huang Yanping and Mr. Ma Yuntao to retire, and being eligible, offered themselves
for re-election in the AGM held on 9 June 2020 pursuant to Articles 78 and 79 of
the Articles of Association and Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code.

Under Article 78 of the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one-quarter of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of four, the number
nearest to one-fourth) shall retire from office by rotation. According to Article 83
of the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy or by way of addition to their number shall hold office only until the next
following AGM, and shall then be eligible for re-appointment. Every Director shall
be subject to retirement at least once every three years by rotation or offers himself
for re-election.
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The Company notes increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives, sustainable and balanced
development. The Company adopted a diversity policy (“Diversity Policy”) which sets out
the approach to diversify the Board from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee reviews and assesses
Board composition on behalf of the Board and will recommend the appointment of new
Director, when necessary, pursuant to the Diversity Policy.

In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has been considered based
on the Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee will also consider factors based on
the Company’s business model, specific needs and meritocracy from time to time in
determining the optimum composition of the Board.

During the Year, the Board comprises six Directors, including two Executive Directors, one
NED and three INEDs, thereby promoting critical review and control of the management
process. The Board is also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in
terms of professional experience, skill and knowledge. Having reviewed the Diversity Policy
and the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee is satisfied that the requirements
set out in the Diversity Policy had been met.

The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its
effectiveness.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, remuneration paid or payable to the
Company’s auditors, Ernst & Young for audit services was RMB1,700,000 and
non-audit services was RMB80,000. Non-audit services provided by the auditors to
the Group for the Year were in relation to the senior notes issued by the Company.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Statements and Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view in
accordance with applicable accounting standards and Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the
announcements in relation to the consolidated financial statements on annual and
interim results of the Group are published in a timely manner, within three months
and two months respectively of the year end and the half-year period end.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 75 to 84.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Directors are of the view
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate for the Group to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective risk management and internal control systems including a review on their
effectiveness for achieving long-term sustainable development of the Group. The
risk management and internal control systems, under a defined management
structure with limits of authority, are designed for the Group to identify and
manage the significant risks to pursue its business objectives, safeguard its assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, enhance effectiveness and efficiency of
its operations, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for reliable
financial reporting, and ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the
achievement of the Group’s business objectives and can only provide reasonable,
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for the determination of the Group’s risk profile within its
acceptable tolerance levels in business operation, oversight of management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of overall risk management process from
risk identification, risk assessment, establishment of appropriate risk responses and
regular risk evaluation and monitoring, so as to ensure the systems are effectively
established and maintained.

The risk management process is structured from management of the Group from
respective business functions at execution level to the Board, together assisted
by the Audit Committee in decision-making and monitoring level. Management of
the Group identifies, assesses and prioritises the key existing and potential risks
through a detailed assessment process and determines the appropriate mitigation
strategies and control measures in response to the identified risks. Ongoing
evaluation and monitoring of the identified risks, respective measures, and results
are carried out and reported to the Board regularly. The Board at decision-making
level, assisted by the Audit Committee, reviews the risk appetite, risk management
process and strategies and also the internal control systems and provide
recommendations for any improvement on the systems on an ongoing basis to
ensure risk management effectiveness.

The establishment of the internal audit & compliance department promote the
importance and construction of the compliance into the corporate culture, monitor
the effectiveness of the existing internal controls system of the Group, and provide
reasonable assurance to the Board for oversight of the internal control system
operated by the management.

EREERABEZRR

EXFg2HAEARASEE2RARZARER R
W%%@%ﬁ‘@%%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ'ﬁ%$%
BEMEMSELER XA ERBEREERT
HA“@&W%EH%mEE%%$EIﬁ%&EE
REREXEBERFEE cERAR - REEZERNRK
EERETPPNEE  MAREEZE 2 REMEN
MSEZUBEE  URERETHBENRRN - Z
R e EERMmMIER REEREBBRZAR @ X
Er sl BB AMRBRA KB RIRH S IEEL IFEY
MRS o

EESRARAKEREXBEE LN AREEM
BuRBAS  EEEEENRRER - BBRFE
1 5 D@WHM%%%MQﬁ%HKﬁJ&WﬂWH
REBERENRT  BREER  UEFREBERGA
BRI TE S e o

REBRTFHORBHARESEBRE 2 EREE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ EEER(BBRERERZES)F
REREREEMENR - AEEEEERBEFN
FHEREFERALNEEEZARETER - FFE LB
Fr o LT a8 RN 2 e 1 TE A& 38 0 LB 9T AR SRR I BE
BERR - FEYOASZEAR  BEDERRZEGER
ETRARER  TEHNEESELER -EF9
W%R%FE ERLEREREZZRES YRR
Be - AREEREREIRARASIER R EEEL
Tige  RERSIEREMREEE  UWRREARE
182 BRI -

B N EPE T R BE R AL A YR E S b S & R
EREURBYARNE  ERASERITARIES R
B RAESERHAEREEREEEME
B2 NEREIE A



The internal audit & compliance department conducts regular internal audit review
across principal divisions of the Group, and, on a regular basis reports their finding
results with improvements directly to the Audit Committee to ensure the internal
controls are in place and adopted properly and effectively as intended. The scope
of internal audit review included principal divisions from finance department, risk
management department, treasury department, purchasing department and sales
department, etc. to ensure material controls have been covered during the internal
audit review process. Any matter or areas of improvement shall be communicated
to the divisional management and had them followed up on a timely basis. Upon
review of the the Annual Risk Management and Internal Control System Report
conducted by the internal audit & compliance department, the Audit Committee
and the Board reviews and evaluate the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control system, on a regular basis.

The Board's annual review in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 has
considered, among other things, (i) the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; (i) the scope and quality of the
management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems
(including the work of internal audit function); (iii) the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems (including the extent and frequency of
monitoring results to the Board or the Audit Committee); and (iv) the effectiveness of
the Company's processes for financial reporting and the Listing Rules compliance.
The Board and the Audit Committee are of the view there are no material internal
control defects identified by the internal audit & compliance department during
the course of internal audit review. With the discussion between management, the
internal audit & compliance department and the Audit Committee, the Board (with
the concurrence of the Audit Committee) considered that the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are effective and adequate. The review of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group is an ongoing process
and the Board maintains a continuing commitment to strengthening the Group’s
internal control environment and processes.

The Company formulated the inside information policy. The Company regularly
reminds the Directors and employees about due compliance with all policies
regarding the inside information. Also, the Company keeps Directors, senior
management and employees appraised of the latest regulatory updates. The
Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure the
compliance with regulatory requirements. Procedures for collection, evaluation of
information and the publication manner are in place to ensure timely reporting of
the inside information to the Board and the stakeholders of the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well
as communication among board members. On 8 September 2020, Mr. Kwok Pak
Shing has resigned as a joint company secretary. Mr. Yuen Ping Man, a full time
employee of the Company, remains as the company secretary of the Company. He
has confirmed that he has attended not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Year in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. His
biography is set out on page 42 of this annual report in the section of “Board of
Directors and Senior Management”.

SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication Policy

The Board considers that having active communications with its shareholders
and investors is important and this will enhance transparency and clarity in
public disclosures by the Company. Any significant events of the Group fall to be
disclosed will be published in a timely, accurate and complete manner through
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange, so as to safeguard its
shareholders’ rights of information and participation. The Board considers that the
AGM is an important opportunity for direct communication with its shareholders.
The notice of the AGM together with relevant documents will be sent out to its
shareholders at least 20 business days prior to the date on which the AGM will be
held. The notice contains details on the procedures for voting by poll as well as
other relevant information related to the proposed resolutions.

AGM

The Board and senior management are well aware of their important tasks of
acting on behalf of the interests of all its shareholders and raising the shareholders’
returns. Last year’'s AGM at which the external auditors attended was convened
on 9 June 2020. The Board encourages all its shareholders to participate in the
forthcoming 2021 AGM where the members of the Board and external auditors will
be present and communicate with its shareholders.

Shareholders’ Rights

1) Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”)
Shareholders may request the Directors to convene an EGM of the
company. The Directors are required to call an EGM if the Company has
received requests to do so from shareholders representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings. Such request must state the general nature of the business to
be dealt with at the EGM and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the EGM. The request
may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form and
must be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it.

The Directors are required to call an EGM within 21 days after the date on
which the Directors become subject to the requirement. The EGM called
must be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not call an EGM, the shareholders who requested the
meeting, or any of them representing more than one half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves call the EGM. The EGM must be called
for a date not more than 3 months after the date on which the Directors
become subject to the requirement to call the EGM.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meeting
Eligible Shareholders (as defined below) may submit a written request to
make proposals or move a resolution at the annual general meeting (the
“Request”). “Eligible Shareholder(s)” means:

(i) shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of
all the shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or

(ii) at least 50 shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at
the annual general meeting to which the requests relate.

The Request may be sent to the Company (a) in hard copy form or in
electronic form; (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given; (c) must be authenticated by the shareholder(s) making it; and (d)
must be received by the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (i) if later, the time
at which notice is given of that meeting.

The Company must then send a copy of the resolution at the Company’s
own expense to each shareholder entitled to receive notice of the annual
general meeting (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and
(b) at the same time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives
notice of the meeting.

An Eligible Shareholder may request the Company to circulate, to the
shareholders entitled to receive notice of a general meeting, a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to (a) a matter mentioned in a
proposed resolution to be dealt with at that meeting; or (b) other business
to be dealt with at that meeting (the “Statement”).

The expenses of the Company in circulating the Statement need not be paid
by the Eligible Shareholders who requested the circulation of the statement
if (@) the meeting to which the requests relate is an annual general meeting
of the Company; and (b) requests sufficient to require the Company to
circulate the statement are received in time to enable the company to send
a copy of the statement at the same time as it gives notice of the meeting.
Otherwise, (a) the expenses of the Company in circulating the Statement
must be paid by the Eligible Shareholders who requested the circulation of
the Statement unless the Company resolves otherwise; and (b) unless the
Company has previously so resolved, it is not bound to comply with the
circulation of the Statement unless there is deposited with or tendered to
it, not later than 7 days before the meeting, a sum reasonably sufficient to
meet its expenses in doing so.

Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

A shareholder may send an enquiry to the Board at the registered office
of the Company at 24th Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham Street,
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Board in written form, which
shall state the nature of the enquiry and the reason for making the enquiry.
In addition, shareholders can contact Tricor Friendly Limited, the share
registrar of the Company, for any questions about their shareholdings.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Articles of Association of the Company during the
Year. A copy of the latest version is available on the website of the Stock Exchange
and the Company’s website.

DISCLAIMER

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for reference and
disclosure compliance purposes only. The information does not represent and
should not be regarded as legal or other professional advice from the Company to
the shareholders. Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as shareholders. The Company disclaims all
liabilities and losses incurred by the shareholders in reliance on any contents of the
section headed “Shareholders’ Rights”.
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Ernst & Young TR E AR ST TelE5%: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower EBTBIREE1SE  FaxEH: +852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue {5 K E221% ey.com

EY§ j( Central, Hong Kong

To the members of Zensun Enterprises Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zensun Enterprises
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 85
to 198, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Key audit matter

BREZER

Valuation of investment properties

REYFE.Z 1516

As at 31 December 2020, investment properties amounted to approximately
RMB552,154,000, which was material to the consolidated financial statements.
To support management’s assessment of the fair value of the properties, it is the
Group’s policy that property valuations are performed by external appraisers at the
end of the reporting period.

Significant judgement is required to determine the fair values of the investment
properties, which reflect market conditions as at the end of the year. The use of
different valuation techniques and assumptions could produce significantly different
estimates of fair values.

The accounting policies and disclosures of the valuation of investment properties
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANERNNEEBERERSE

We performed the following procedures to address
valuation of investment properties:

- We evaluated the competency, independence
and objectivity of the external valuer, and
assessing the valuation approach used by the
external valuer;

= We involved our internal valuation experts to
assess the reasonableness of the assumptions
such as the market rent, term yield and
reversion yield used in the valuations by
comparing them to available industry data,
taking into consideration comparability and
market factors;

- We tested the accuracy of the property related
data used as inputs for the valuations; and

- We also assessed the relevant disclosures in
the notes to the Group’s financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

BRERER

A ERAYERIFEL EZ BT TYRZ il #5 FE

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of properties under development
(“PUD”) and completed properties held for sale (“PHS”) situated in Mainland China
were approximately RMB48,446,684,000 and RMB6,791,108,000, respectively.
The Group carried out assessment on the net realisable values at the end of the
reporting period and compared them to the costs.

This matter was significant to our audit because the determination of net realisable
values of PUD and PHS involved critical accounting estimates on the selling price,
variable selling expenses and estimated costs to completion of PUD.

The related accounting policies and disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, 20
and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
RANEXNAREERREXSE

Assessment of net realisable values of propem'es under development and completed properties held for sale

We performed the following procedures to address
the assessment of the net realisable values of PUD
and PHS:

We understood, evaluated and validated the
internal control over the Group’s process
in determining the net realisable values of
PUD and PHS based on prevailing market
conditions;

We assessed the reasonableness of
management’s key estimates:

(i) We compared the estimated selling
price to the recent market transactions,
such as the Group’s selling price of
the pre-sale units in the same project
or the prevailing market price of the
comparable properties with similar size,
usage and location;

(i) We compared the estimated
percentage with the actual average
selling expenses to revenue ratio of the
Group in the current year; and

(iif) We reconciled the estimated costs to
completion to the budgets approved
by management and examined, on
a sample basis, the construction
contracts or compared them to the
actual costs of similar completed
properties of the Group; and

We also assessed the relevant disclosures in
the notes to the Group’s financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

BRERER

Provision for land appreciation tax (“LAT”)
T IEE R ([ (E R )7

The subsidiaries of the Company that are engaged in property development in
Mainland China are subject to LAT. LAT is levied on the sale of properties at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% based on the appreciation of land
value. At the end of each reporting period, the management of the Group estimates
the provision for LAT based on its understanding and interpretation of the relevant
tax rules and regulations, and the estimated total sales of properties less total
deductible expenditure, which includes lease charges for land use rights, property
development costs, borrowing costs and development expenditure. When the
LAT is subsequently determined, the actual payments may be different from the
estimates. For the year ended 31 December 2020, LAT provision of approximately
RMB185,488,000 was recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The accounting policies and disclosures for the provision for LAT are included in
notes 3 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANERNANEEBERERSE

We performed the following procedures to address
provision for LAT:

- We involved our internal tax specialists to
perform a review on the LAT provision,
including the review of the estimates and
assumptions used by the Group;

- We tested the underlying data used to evaluate
LAT provision, including estimated total sales,
property development costs, borrowing costs
and tax rates;

- We recalculated the tax computation and
comparing our calculations with the amounts
recorded by the Group; and

- We also assessed the relevant disclosures in
the notes to the Group’s financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

BRERER

Acquisition of a subsidiary under common control
Weig = A A H2 BB 2 7]

During the year 31 December 2020, the Group completed a business combination
under common control at a consideration of RMB2,368,000,000. Management,
assisted by an external valuer, evaluated the fair values of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed and completed the purchase price allocation.
This matter was significant to our audit because the fair value determination in
the accounting for the business combination relied on significant management
judgement and estimation in respect of fair value assessments.

The related accounting policies and disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 33
to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EANBERNAEEBRERSE

We performed the following procedures to address
the acquisition of a subsidiary under common control:

- We obtained the purchase agreements,
examined the settlement of the considerations
and assessed the determination of the
acquisition date;

= We assessed the competency, objectivity and
independence of the external appraiser used
by management;

- We involved our internal valuation specialists
to assist us in assessing the valuation
methodologies adopted and the assumptions
used in the valuation of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the acquired subsidiary, and
comparing the forecasts used with respect to
future revenues and operating results against
the historical trends and available market data
to evaluate the pricing of consideration and
whether the transaction has substance for the
combining parties; and

- We also assessed the relevant disclosures in
the notes to the Group’s financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter
BREEZEE

Impairment of goodwill

&R E

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying value of goodwill in the consolidated
financial statements amounted to RMB424,722,000. In accordance with HKFRSs,
the Group is required to perform an impairment test for goodwill at least on an
annual basis. The impairment test of goodwill is based on the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated. The recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is the value in use using cash flow projections
based on a financial budget. Management, assisted by an external valuer,
evaluated the impairment of goodwill by comparing the recoverable amount and
the carrying value of the cash-generating unit. This matter was significant to our
audit because the impairment test process was complex and involved significant
judgements and estimates.

The related accounting policies and disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3, and
16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BN EZOMEEREERSEE

We performed the following procedures to address
the assessment of impairment of goodwiill:

- We obtained an understanding of the process
of estimating the future cash flows;

- We assessed the competency, objectivity and
independence of the external appraiser used
by management;

= We evaluated management’s main
assumptions including discount rate and
estimated construction completion and pre-
sale period;

- We examined the differences between
cash flow projections and actual cash flows
and checked the cash flow projection by
comparing it to the market available data and
industry outlook;

- We involved our internal valuation experts to
assist us in evaluating the discount rate; and

- We also assessed the relevant disclosures in
the notes to the Group’s financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

SmEEER

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE20205E12A31H ILEE
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2020 2019
2020%F 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Ff & AR®T R ARETT
REVENUE Ik %5 5 8,069,061 8,887,186
Cost of sales ERA (6,322,783) (6,600,707)
Gross profit EF 1,746,278 2,286,479
Other income Hinlg A 5 27,520 9,678
Other gains and losses, net EAth W o X B 180F RE 6 (86,030) 109,086
Administrative expenses THRER (205,198) (166,817)
Sales and marketing expenses HERTSHEEER (181,012) (162,428)
Finance costs & A A 7 (79,686) (38,221)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRF A1 3% Fl 8 1,221,872 2,037,777
Income tax expense SRS 11 (443,499) (886,319)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERA 778,373 1,151,458
Attributable to: T5IE T L
Owners of the Company ViN/NEJE Z SN 782,988 1,151,571
Non-controlling interests eI R iR (4,615) (113)
778,373 1,151,458
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ZAAF#EAEABLSRER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
Basic (RMB cents) ERARED) 13 7.04 14.87
Diluted s N/ATE A N/ATS i




86

Zensun Enterprises Limited ERBEEFRLA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SREEZERER

Year ended 31 December 2020 & E2020F 12831 H IFFE

2020 2019
2020%F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®TT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEF 778,373 1,151,458
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit 2wk
Other comprehensive income that may be ARERERHEEN»BEEER
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: Hb2mEURES -
Exchange difference on translation BEGINERMEEZEN =58
of foreign operations 225,325 33,359
Reclassification adjustments of exchange BEHEHBARIELFHEZ
reserve for subsidiaries disposed of B BAE 4,634 129
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMEEKE(BR)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 229,959 33,488
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRZHEKEEE
FOR THE YEAR 1,008,332 1,184,946
Attributable to: TFIE T L
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZZ =N 1,012,967 1,185,486
Non-controlling interests FEPE RS M A (4,635) (540)
1,008,332 1,184,946




Annual Report 2020 _—EF-FFEFR 87

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR R®R

31 December 2020 2020512 H31H

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
2020%F 20194
12831H 12A31H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B S ARETR ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB NERE 14 47,322 17,711
Investment properties TEYE 15 552,154 654,244
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 18 - 5,246
Goodwill e 16 424,722 —
Intangible assets mEE 17 199,000 =
Deferred tax assets BEHIEEE 30 324,652 194,154
Pledged deposits BiRFEe 19 27,935 22,525
Total non-current assets JEMENE E LA 1,575,785 893,880
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Completed properties held for sale BIEREZERIWE 20 6,791,108 3,824,960
Properties under development BREPYE 21 48,446,684 38,367,480
Deposits and prepayments paid B TR & RIEAFIE
for land acquisitions 22 2,646,093 1,198,992
Accounts receivable, other receivables FEURBR SR ~ HAbEUGRIE R E & =
and other assets 23 2,113,132 1,827,573
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ZAFEET Az SREE 24 321,590 349,876
Prepaid income tax and tax recoverable BT 1S5 N AT Uk Bl i 1B 1,060,382 723,402
Pledged deposits BEHAILEE 19 330,336 863,804
Restricted bank balances SR HIERITAERR 19 648,635 691,992
Cash and cash equivalents Be kRS EEIEE 19 3,218,611 3,200,230
Total current assets MENVEEBE 65,576,571 51,048,309
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Accounts payable, deposits received FERERR - Bz RIEFTEA
and accruals 25 7,299,395 3,096,086
Contract liabilities alaE 26 23,379,862 15,852,697
Amounts due to related companies JEf RAE R RIFKIE 27 4,100,961 956,458
Loans from a related company RE—EEEQEZEHR 28 8,374,973 7,490,728
Lease liabilities HEEGE 18 _ 1,871
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 29 6,351,627 6,957,950
Tax liabilities HIEEE 509,833 461,608
Total current liabilities mEN A BB 50,016,651 34,817,398
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEZRE 15,559,920 16,230,911
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERABERS
LIABILITIES 17,135,705 17,124,791
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R®R

31 December 2020 2020512 H31H

31 December

31 December

2020 2019
20204 20194
12A381H 12A831H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B S ARETR AR® T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Rental deposits received BlWHEZRS 25 4,866 7,010
Lease liabilities HEAE 18 - 3,695
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 29 8,784,298 13,277,895
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIBEE 30 457,726 99,150
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEBER 9,246,890 13,387,750
Net assets BEFE 7,888,815 3,737,041
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AARIHER AEIhER
Share capital RN 31 5,326,923 2,014,112
Reserves G 32 2,547,007 1,726,522
7,873,930 3,740,634
Non-controlling interests FEAE AR 2 14,885 (3,593)
Total equity AT 7,888,815 3,737,041

Zhang Jingguo

RAK
Director

EF

Zhang Guoqgiang

REIR
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GmERBEHR

Year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31H I[FFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

G N
Capital PRC* Property Non-
Share reduction statutory  revaluation Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* Total interests equity

Bx EAMEEE SE-EREE NRELEE
RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR ARBTZ  ARERTR

NERE  REER & FERER  RREE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARMTR  ARBTR ARMTR ARWTR  ARETR

(note 31) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32)
(His31) (Rzt32) (Hz32) (H&32)
At 1 January 2019 201951418 587,529 119,330 37,236 13,861 (37,878) 408,487 1,128,565 (7,089) 1,121,512
Profit/oss) for the year FEER/(BB) - = = = - 1167 1151571 (113 1,151458
Qther comprehensive income/(loss) for the year: EREM2ENE /(BE) -
Exchange differences on HERNERL
translation of forsign operations B EH = - - - 33,786 - 33,786 (427) 33,359
Reclassfication adjustments of exchange BHENBARES
reserve for subsioliaries disposed of EEz BTN ERE - - - - 129 - 129 - 129
Total comprehensive income/(oss) for the year  FR2ENE/(BE) 18 = - - - 3915 1151571 1,185,486 (40) 1,184,946
Transfer to PR statutory reserve ERENEETRRE - - 123,873 - - (123,879) - - -
Issue of new ordinary shares ROmLan 1,428,031 - - - - - 1,428,031 - 1,428,031
Share issue expenses OS5 (1,448) - - - - - (1448) - (1448)
Capital contribution from REFERHER 25
non-controlling shareholders = = = = = = = 4,000 4,000
At 31 December 2019 R2019E12A31H 2,014,112 119,330 161,109 13,861 (3,963) 1,436,185 3,740,634 (3,599) 3,737,041
At 1 January 2020 #2020F1 318 2,014,112 119,330 161,109 13,861 (3,963) 1,436,185 3,740,634 (3,593) 3,737,041
Proft/(loss) for the year FERH/(BR) - - - - - 782,988 782,988 (4,615) 778,373
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year: FREH2 TN /(EE)
Exchange differences on tranglation of foreign R E BN £ 2
operations B EH - - - - 225,345 - 225,345 (20) 225,325
Reclassfication adjustments of exchange BHLENBAAER
reserve for subsidiaries disposed of WS pEE L - - - - 4,63 - 4,634 - 4,634
Total comprehensive income/oss) for the year A2 Tk /(51888 - - - - 20019 782088 1012967 (6635 1,008332
Transfer to PRC statutory reserve BREHEETRE - - 100,322 - - (100,322) - - -
Transfer of property revaluation reserve EENEERGER - - - (13,861) - 13,861 - - -
2019 final dvidend paid (note 12) Bf2019F KBRS
(Hi#12) - - - - - (192474 (192474) - (192,474)
Dividends paid to non-controling interests B i 3Ei3MRER 2 IR & - - - - - - - (1,044 (1,044
Issue of new ordinary shares BIHEER 3,322,546 - - - - - 3322546 - 3322546
Share issue expenses OB (9,735) - - - - - (9,735) - (9,735)
Acquisition of non-controling interests WeEsaRER - - - - - ® ® (5,992) (6,000)
Capital contribution from REFERHER 2 E5
non-controling shareholders - - - - - - - 29,900 29,900
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HHBAR - - - - - - - 249 249
At 31 December 2020 R2020£12A31H 5,326,923 119,330 261,431 - 226,016 1,940,230 7,873,930 14,885 7,888,815
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB2,547,007,000  * ZERERCEGAVBRRBRAZGEERBAR

(2019: RMB1,726,522,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Hok

PRC refers to the People’s Republic of China. For the purposes of these financial ~— **
statements only, except where the context specifies otherwise, references to
Mainland China or the PRC exclude Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

#2,547,007,0007T (20194 : AR #51,726,522,000
JT) e

EETEARKNE - ERESHBREAS - B
EXERERTI  HRENBRBRES  RFRA
AR B o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE20205E12A31H ILEE

2020 2019
2020%F 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FiaE AR®T T AR®ET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EBHREREARE
Profit before tax R Al g 7 1,221,872 2,087,777
Adjustments for: KR ZIEFE :
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets BAFEFABRZERMEE
at fair value through profit or loss ZAFEEE (W) 6 6,669 (112,726)
Fair value loss/(gain) on investment properties HEMEATERSE(KE) 6 33,511 (2,250)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRBATZ
(Wz), /B8 6 (99,554) 6,815
Loss on disposal of property, HEWZE  BERZEZ
plant and equipment &’ 6 - 1
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERREITE 8 2,388 3,489
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 8 819 1,641
Interest income FEWA 5 (20,438) (7,980)
Impairment losses on accounts receivable and JFEE MK R R B L A P LRI 2
other receivables BB ETE 6 - T
Write-down of properties under WRERTMER
development to net realisable value AR R E 6 150,000 -
Finance costs BB A 7 79,686 38,221
1,374,953 1,965,765
Decrease in inventories FERD - 60
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable, FEMAR SR Eofth FE MR IR ]
other receivables and other assets Hab&EERD (3E) 485,471 (964,797)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank deposits AYEEEGREEEZ
from pre-sale proceeds of properties SRFIRITFEROR LD, (35 0) 143,339 (590,079)
Increase in properties under development TR YIZEIL N (4,545,460) (7,059,158)
Increase in completed properties held for sale HEHE 2B T M (2,867,364) (2,849,660)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits and prepayments BT EEZS K
paid for land acquisitions Bt m), R (1,355,754) 3,405,920
Increase in accounts payable, deposits received and  JEMBRZX ~ 2 WiZ 4 K&
accruals FEEHE FR N 3,844,903 1,668,783
Increase in contract liabilities A HEEEM 5,558,835 4,281,864
Cash from/(used in) operating activities KEEBERE/ (FR)RE 2,638,923 (141,297)
Tax paid B MFiE (795,876) (673,594)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities B ZEETS (Fr )
RemEFE 1,843,047 (814,891)
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2020 2019
2020%F 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Fi ARBTT ARET T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREZHMEBEERE
Interest received B IF] S 16,271 7,980
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment B A - ME NEREEEB (4,567) (6,236)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREY S RIE 3,220 13,333
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - HEREZE
plant and equipment FriSsk1E - 1
Proceeds from recovery a debt investment at EI B O d 8 SE PR AR AT E 2
amortised cost upon maturity BRI E 2 FT1S5KIA - 315,069
Net cash inflows/(outflows) of acquisition I —FEE AR Z
of a subsidiary BeEmA/ Gt )F8E 33 534,838 (46,931)
Net cash inflows of disposal of a subsidiary HE—HWNBRRZ
e mAFRE 34 99,758 114
Net cash flows from investing activities KEEBMEHREF5E 649,520 283,330
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHMESRERE
Release of pledged deposits R B IR IRIR S 768,672 33,915
Placement of pledged deposits ErEERiZe (184,960) (205,879)
New bank and other borrowings raised FERITREAMMEE 4,839,055 13,483,882
Repayment of bank and other borrowings ERBPITRAMES (7,490,722) (5,619,205)
Principal portion of lease payments HENREEHBH 39(a) (729) (1,325)
Interest paid BRFE (1,530,301) (931,181)
Repayment to related companies EEMAZERRIIEA (1,185,843) (713,851)
Advance from related companies TEUL BEE A FIFRIE 3,653,053 956,458
Loans repaid to a related company EBE—HEABEQARER (3,846,993) (6,132,852)
Loans received from a related company B —FEIRE R R 'R 1,731,238 747,270
Proceeds from issue of new ordinary shares BITH L @R 2 TS 08 31 966,847 1,428,031
Share issue expenses RHFEITHRZ 31 (9,735) (1,448)
Dividends paid BERE (192,474) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders B 5 I PR 3R 2 AR B (1,044) -
Acaquisition of non-controlling interests Wi SR iR i 2 (6,000) -
Capital contributions from non-controlling KB IR AR R 2 3K
shareholders 29,900 4,000
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities mEEE(FTA),Frs
W mEH5E (2,460,036) 3,047,815
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRESEEER ENTFHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 32,531 2,616,254
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year RENzBeRBEeEHEER 3,200,230 673,412
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net GINGE P R 2 B R R AR (14,150) 10,564
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERZRERBAEEHEER
END OF YEAR 19 3,218,611 3,200,230
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND BHEeRBREESEHEBEEHRDIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the LSRA AR BRRATIRZ
consolidated statement of financial position ReENRESZEEEAER 19 3,218,611 3,200,230
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MR

31 December 2020

1.

2.1

2020F 12 H31H
CORPORATE INFORMATION

Zensun Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited liability
company incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is located at 24th
Floor, Wyndham Place, 40-44 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Joy Town Inc., a private limited liability
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The ultimate
holding company of the Company is Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte Limited,
a private limited liability company incorporated in Singapore, as trustee of
a discretionary trust which is set up by Ms. Huang Yanping (“Ms. Huang”),
a non-executive director of the Company. Ms. Huang is the settlor and
protector of the discretionary trust. Mr. Zhang Jingguo (“Mr. Zhang”), the
Chairman and an executive director of the Company, is the spouse of Ms.
Huang.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 46. The Company and its subsidiaries are
hereinafter collectively referred to as the Group.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

2.1

REEHR

FRABEEBRAR(ARARF]) BEEBEMK
N2 EHARAR  ERNDEBEHBER I
BRAB([BERAT]) ER LT o ANA R 2
WMERALNEBE T IRE R A40-445 E B %
2418 c RRRIEERE  ARRIZHER
f& A FlJoy Town Inc. AR EBRE LS ([ B
BEHEE])EMKLZ2BRFLEAT - NAA
Z BRI’ A R) A Vistra Trust (Singapore) Pte
Limited &R AN s M 2 2 AR L& R E]
{E B Huang YanpingZ £ ([Huang &z + | + &
RAEIEMITER) BRI ZEHELZETA
HuangZ T A2 EE 2 FH A RREA ° K
REIEFERPTESRBELEE(REE]D A
HuangZ &= 2 fitf& -

ARRR/—BREERAF - EMBAREE
EBENKIFE46 - RA T REKMB QB A T4
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HRERE
RAMBHRRBEAEBEZ2020F12 A 31
BIEEEZHBRE HBARARAREE
EERFNEE(RELEEERE) A5ERA
2EREHEMA A A REESTERR - B
AlE AU IR EE RITE R N R (AL
ERARAEFREA AR EEREBER)
B RAEREHE -



2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control,and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interest and (jii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

21
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31 December 2020 2020512 H31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current
year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(@) Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the “Conceptual
Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of concepts for financial
reporting and standard setting, and provides guidance for preparers
of financial statements in developing consistent accounting policies
and assistance to all parties to understand and interpret the
standards. The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new guidance on
the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions
and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the
roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty in
financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a standard,
and none of the concepts contained therein override the concepts
or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework did not
have any significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.

(b) Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for
an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a
business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus
is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers, investment income or
other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration test
to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to transactions or other events that
occurred on or after 1 January 2020. The amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the
effects of interbank offered rate reform on issues affecting financial
reporting in the period before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”).
The amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge
accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty before the
introduction of the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information to investors
about their hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties. The amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group as the Group does
not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the pandemic and only if
(i) the change in lease payments results in revised consideration
for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change; (i)
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally
due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no substantive
change to other terms and conditions of the lease. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with
earlier application permitted and shall be applied retrospectively.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no rent concessions
were granted by the lessors arising from the COVID-19 pandemic.
The amendments did not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information, or both. The amendments did not have
any significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.
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2.3

2020F 12 H31H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in the financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 27

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Insurance Contracts?
Insurance Contracts3 6

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-currents. 5

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

2 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding wording
with no change in conclusion

6 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that
permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope
of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather than
assumed in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should
refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets
do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the date of first application, the Group will not
be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the
end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
retrospectively only to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented
in the financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

2020F 12 H31H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity at
the date of initial application without restating the comparative information.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to
the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is
not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

. HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
18 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying HKFRS
16.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value
which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
pest interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax assets,
financial assets, and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Annual Report 2020 —FZBFFFR

24 FEESTBERBEE)

FEMEERE
HEBSRBETHRBAEXFTAEE(TRER
5 BERREE SREERREMR)E
TEERENR  AlgfFZEEZTKE S
B BEZANECEAZEEXRCELESE
2 EREEREATERBEEXRRN(UARSE
R WHERBEMMEE @ RIFFMEEL
BELERARE LBYREMEEREER
AZBRERA  EUERT  JRESERE
EFTBZIRTEE BN MEETE °

BEBREREEZREEBRE AW EEHE
iR o REP A E A EER - M RRRESR
ERARREEMSFEZEEEREEERE
ERERRZHAMBRERMREIRE - WEES
BREEHRANERRREPEEREEEDE
—BZ X HAERIAHIRR o

REHmERRBFAEE S IRE R BEERR
BEEBETBEEXDEL - MEZBRFHE -
AlE bt A RE S8 - BERRZEE(FELK
SNREETE - BeRANEELEEARES
B2 AR RD - RORZSENER
AR 3R 3B E 4F [Z 30 5 ph 2 i RRURR (/S 1R T
EZREE (R R E,#iH) - ZERE
BREOEBNE LR ABRR  EHNEEE
REMEIIR  ARBZEGEEZHESS
TR B T AR B e 1R ) [ 33

101



102

Zensun Enterprises Limited ~ 1E HEXRRAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS ERAR L

31 December 2020 2020512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and

that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iif) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viiiy  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Over the shorter of the lease terms and 2%

Over the shorter of the lease terms and
6.67% to 20%

20% to 25%

Land and buildings
Leasehold improvement

Furniture, office equipment
and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful
lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBEXARAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS ERAR L

31 December 2020

2020F 12 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including the
leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would otherwise meet
the definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which
they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties,
the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its fair value
at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/
or accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is
the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Contract benefit

Contract benefit acquired in a business combination is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date, which is related to the future acquisition of
the land use right. Before completing the acquisition of the land use right,
contract benefit is tested for impairment annually and is not amortised. And
after completing the acquisition of the land use right, contract benefit is
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the
period of the property development.

Properties under development
Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost comprising
land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period and net realisable value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets except
those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On completion, the
properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment of the total costs
of land and buildings attributable to the unsold properties. Net realisable
value takes into account the price ultimately expected to be realised, less
estimated costs to be incurred in selling the properties.
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBEXARAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS ERAR L

31 December 2020

2020F 12 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all
leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

@

(b)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Offices 3to 5 years

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The corresponding
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, and subsequently
measured at fair value, in accordance with the Group’s policy for
“investment properties”.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its applicable incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount
of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of offices and motor vehicles (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease
or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the
statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as finance
leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

EBEXARAA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MR

31 December 2020

2020F 12 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on
the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When
making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for accounts receivable which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage2 -

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For accounts receivable that contain a significant financing component and
lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payables, amounts due
to related companies, loans from a related company, bank and other
borrowings, and financial liabilities in other payables, deposits and accruals.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities is as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, banks and other borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment
of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase
in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the country in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

= when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception. When the contract contains
a financing component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the practical expedient in
HKFRS 15.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for the sale of properties and services provided in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of taxes.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(@ Sale of properties
Revenue from the sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised at a point in time when the purchaser obtains
the physical possession or the legal title of the completed property
and the Group has the present right to payment and the collection
of the consideration is probable.

(b) Project management and sales services
Revenue from the provision of project management and sales
services is recognised over time based on the scheduled period of
the contracts.

(c) Property management services
Revenue from the provision of property management services
is recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line basis
because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

(d) Hotel operations
Revenue from hotel operations is recognised when the relevant
services are provided.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a contract with
a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract
that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be
used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance obligations
in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the statement
of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset relates. Other
contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit scheme and pension scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong under the rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the participating employees’ relevant income from the Group
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. When an employee
leaves the MPF Scheme, the mandatory contributions are fully vested with
the employee.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in Mainland China
are required to participate in a pension scheme (the “Pension Scheme”)
operated by the local municipal government. This subsidiary is required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the Pension Scheme.
The contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is the Hong Kong dollar. These financial
statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the exception of
monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s
net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those
monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item.

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain Hong Kong and overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the RMB, including the Hong Kong dollar (‘HK$”),
United States dollar (“USD”), Singapore dollar (“SGD”) and Japanese Yen
(“JPY”). As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair
value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes arising from investment
properties that are using the fair value model, the directors of the Company
have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties — senior housing communities
located in the United States of America (the “USA”) — are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time rather
than through sale whereas those situated in Hong Kong and Singapore and
residential homes located in the USA are not held under such a business
model. Therefore, the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted for properties of
senior housing communities but is not rebutted for properties located in
Hong Kong and Singapore and residential homes located in the USA. The
Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
these investment properties located in Hong Kong and Singapore as the
Group is not subject to any income taxes on disposal of these investment
properties.

Deferred tax on withholding taxes

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding corporate income
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax liabilities, based upon the likely distribution level of such
earnings from these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. The amount of
deferred tax liabilities arising from the withholding tax associated with the
investments in subsidiaries established in the PRC for the year ended 31
December 2020 was RMB75,745,000 (2019: RMB95,000,000). Further
details are contained in note 30 to the financial statements.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Valuation of the identifiable assets and liabilities through business
combination

The Group completed the acquisition of a subsidiary under common
control during the year. The purchase prices are allocated between the fair
values of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed which
result in the recognition of goodwill. Management, assisted by an external
appraisers, evaluated the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed and completed the purchase price allocation. The fair
value determination in the accounting for the business combination relied
on significant management estimation in respect of fair value assessments.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual
basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
goodwill at 31 December 2020 was RMB424,722,000 (2019: Nil). Further
details are given in note 16.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable and
other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for accounts receivable
and other receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geography, product type, customer type and rating).

The expected loss rate is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected
to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates,
forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on
the Group’s accounts receivable and other receivables is disclosed in note
23 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar properties,
the Group considers information from a variety of sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a different nature,
condition or location, adjusted to reflect those differences;

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the
dates of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence such
as current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition, and using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash
flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2020 was
RMB552,154,000 (2019: RMB654,244,000). Further details, including the
key assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity analysis,
are given in note 15 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all
non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the end of each
reporting period. An intangible asset not yet available for use is tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator exists.
Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2020 was RMB125,658,000 (2019:
RMB63,198,000). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December
2020 was RMB532,018,000 (2019: RMB613,587,000). Further details are
contained in note 30 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based
on management’s best estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The
actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax authorities
upon the completion of the property development projects. The Group has
not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with the tax authorities for all
its property development projects. The final outcome could be different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, and any differences will impact
on the LAT expenses and the related provision in the period in which the
differences realise.

Net realisable value assessment of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale

The Group carried out assessment on net realisable value of properties
under development and completed properties held for sale at each end of
reporting period and compared the costs and its net realisable value. The
net realisable value is the estimated future selling price less estimated cost
of completion or the estimated costs necessary to make the sale (if any).
The estimated future selling prices are estimated by management with
reference to the Group’s pre-sale selling prices and the recent selling prices
of similar properties in the nearby or relevant locations. The management
also estimated the future selling expenses and the expected costs to
completion by reference to the actual selling expenses of the Groups’
completed projects, adjusted by certain current market data, the legal and
regulating framework and general market condition. The Group’s properties
under development and completed properties held for sale are all situated
in the PRC, details of which are set out in the consolidated statement
of financial position and notes 20 and 21 to the financial statements.
At 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale were approximately
RMB48,446,684,000 (2019: RMB38,367,480,000) and RMB6,791,108,000
(2019: RMB3,824,960,000), respectively, which are expected to be
recovered through future sales and stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The Group carried out assessment on net realisable value
at the end of the reporting period and recognised RMB150,000,000 (2019:
nil) of write-down for properties under development for the year end 31
December 2020. When there is any decrease in net realisable value of
the properties and it is lower than the cost of the properties, loss will be
recognised on the properties under development and completed properties
held for sale in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had contingent liabilities relating
to guarantees amounting to approximately RMB13,559,922,000 (2019:
RMB7,819,571,000) in respect of mortgage facilities provided by certain
banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by property
buyers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees,
upon default in mortgage payments by these property buyers, the Group
would be responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals
together with accrued interests thereon and any penalties owed by the
defaulted buyers to the banks. The Group would be entitled to take over
legal title to and possession of the related properties. These guarantees
will be released upon the earlier of (i) the satisfaction of the mortgage
loan by the buyers of the property; and (i) the issuance of the property
ownership certificate for the mortgage property and the completion of
the deregistration of the mortgage. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, no provision for the guarantee contracts was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 as
the default risk is low and in case of default in payments, the net realisable
value of the related properties can cover the outstanding principal together
with the accrued interests and penalties. Should the actual outcome be
different from expected, provision for losses will be recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has five reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@) Property development in the PRC
(b) Project management and sales services in the PRC

(c) Property investment and management in the United States of
America (“USA” or “US”) in American Housing REIT, Inc. (“AHR”) and
property management in the USA provided to Global Medical REIT,
Inc. (“GMR”)

(d) Property investment other than AHR
(e) Securities trading and investment

The Group has property investment and/or management businesses in
Hong Kong, the USA and Singapore. Other than AHR which is operated in
the USA, the property investment businesses in other regions are evaluated
together and assessed as one operating segment by the management.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss)
before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently
with the Group’s profit/(loss) before tax except that certain other gains
and losses, corporate and unallocated income and expenses (including
unallocated finance costs) are excluded from this measurement.

Following the disposal of a subsidiary engaging in the property management
business in the USA during the year, the Group no longer provided property
management services to and received management fee income from GMR.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, tax liabilities and
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Segment revenue and segment results

4., RBESIPER(E)

DR D EREE
Segment revenue Segment results
pan:idl 6 DERELE
2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 20194 20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARMT T ARMTT AR¥T T

Property development in the PRC AR 7 ¥ 3% =
Project management and sales RABEZIEE SRR

services in the PRC SHE IRTS

Property investment and REBHAHRETTZ
management on AHR and MERE R EIR AR
property management MGMRIZ{H Z
provided to GMR in the USA L E=BE

Property investment other than AHR AHRBASMN 2 ¥ %42 &
Securities trading and investment  EA5BEERKIRA

Hotel operations EES
Unallocated corporate income RABR A
Other gains and losses Hitb iz R E518

Unallocated corporate expenses RO AR

Profit before tax B %% Bl )

7,877,160 8,795,966 1,033,298 1,907,343
123,516 = 117,614 =
44,070 59,947 111,556 18,031
9,711 12,340 (27,291) 1,788
14,604 15,856 7,934 128,578

- 3,077 - (7,920)
8,069,061 8,887,186 1,243,111 2,047,820
738 8,370

1,047 1,703

(23,024) (20,116)

1,221,872 2,037,777
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHIER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Segment revenue and segment results (continued) DEBNE R D ERELE ()
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥T T
Segment assets DENEE
Property development in the PRC AR Y2 R 65,699,030 49,632,056
Project management and sales services in the PRC R R 218 B B8 &I E RIS 125,026 =
Property investment and management on AHR and RERYAHRET 2 MEIRER
property management provided to GMR in the USA EIRUAKRMGMRIZH 2 M EE 210,755 275,257
Property investment other than AHR AHRIASNZ ¥R E 375,026 461,792
Securities trading and investment FHBEEREE 325,098 353,946
Segment assets DEPEE 66,734,935 50,723,051
Unallocated assets ROBLEE 417,421 1,219,138
Total assets BEE 67,152,356 51,942,189
Segment liabilities SEFEE
Property development in the PRC R MEERE 58,081,282 47,138,155
Project management and sales services in the PRC R B BEKEERS 2,395 -
Property investment and management on AHR and REBRBAHREITZ MR E R
property management provided to GMR in the USA BB AR FIGMRIZ M 2 M E 1R 82,514 110,323
Property investment other than AHR AHRIASNZ M ERE 126,071 136,962
Segment liabilities HEEE 58,292,262 47,385,440
Unallocated liabilities AP EE 971,279 819,708
Total liabilities HmEE 59,263,541 48,205,148
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHIER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Other segment information HibpHER
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020512A31BLLEE
Property
investment
and
management
on AHR
Project and property
management management Property Securities
Property and sales provided  investment trading
development services toGMR  other than and Segment
inthePRC  inthe PRC inthe USA AHR  investment total  Unallocated Total
REEHAHR
-
RERER
ReEz  HREGMR
WhEz  BAEER Rtz AHRHS #HEE
NERR HERK NEEE  2UERE REE PHER RAE &zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARETR AR¥TR ARETR ARETn AR%Tn  AR%Tn  ARETR
Additions to investment properties  REAMERNE - BER
and property, plant and HERE
equipment 3,527 - 434 - - 3,961 606 4,567
Depreciation of property, plantand 91 « B RXG&ITE
equipment 2,042 128 258 10 - 2,438 1,240 3,678
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  EREAEN& - - 819 - - 819 - 819
Gain on disposal of asubsidiary ~ HE-FEHBEAFZ
s - - 99,554 - - 99,554 - 99,554
Fair value loss on investment RENEATEER
properties - - 4578 28,933 - 33,511 - 33,511
Fair value loss on financial assets at AT (& A B2
fairvalue through profitorloss £ BEE 2 AT EEE - - - - 6,669 6,669 - 6,669
Write-down of properties on RERNMESNE
properties under developmentto ~ HiHZE R £ H(E
net realisable valug 150,000 - - - - 150,000 - 150,000
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(CONTINUED)

Other segment information (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019
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4., RBESIPER(E)

HihpBER (E)
HZE2019F128318 1L EE

ot T

Property
investment
and
management
on AHR
and property
management Property
Property provided investment  Securities
development to GMR other  trading and Hotel Segment
inthe PRC  inthe USA thanAHR  investment  operations total  Unallocated Total
REEHAHR
ETzNE
REREE
JREGMR
RREZ Rtz AHRSS BHEE
NEER NXEE  ZUXRE k& BEER AHAE ES @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARETr ARETn ARETR AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%Tn  ARETx
Additions to investment REANERYE  BER
properties and property, RRIAE
plant and equipment 5,176 1,022 - - 30 6,228 8 6,236
Depreciation of property, nE  BERIETE
plant and equipment 4,297 376 14 = 111 4,798 298 5,09
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FREEENE - 1,641 - - - 1,641 - 1,641
Impairment losses on accounts ~ [EMER S R E o e B
receivable and other receivables (B - i - - - 77 - e
Loss on disposal of asubsidlary ~ HE—FHBAT 2 KR - - - - 6,815 6,815 - 6,815
Fair value gain/(oss) on RENEZDTE
investment properties s/ (BR) - 3,347 (1,007) - - 2,250 - 2,250
Fair value gain on financial assets at & ATE:f NERZ
fair value through profitorloss £ BVAE 2 ATFENS - - - 112,726 - 112,726 - 112,726
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Geographical information

4,

RETHER(R])

HEER

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

REMEEF W FERENEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 20194 20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
The PRC 2 8,001,725 8,798,193 630,897 5,549
The USA EE 52,053 76,187 207,856 237,596
Singapore s 13,633 7,629 281,537 314,912
Hong Kong &% 1,650 2,100 102,908 119,144
Japan SN - 3,077 - -
8,069,061 8,887,186 1,223,198 677,201

The geographical information of revenue from external customers is
based on the geographical markets of the customers, and the locations
of properties and investments. The geographical information of the non-
current assets, excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments, is

based on the locations of the assets.

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no single customer

has contributed 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.

REIBEFPREZEEHNNERZTF R
Mm% MERREZMENMERE - FRHE
ERENREERSBTARIN 2R EFR

DERFHREEZREMETE -

FREEEFZ2EHR

H E2020F R2019F 12 A1 B L E - &
B-RFERANEERWZE10%IA L o
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An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA T -
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBT T
Revenue from contracts with customers EFE &K
Sales of properties in the PRC B E Y 7,877,160 8,795,966
Project management and sales services in the PRC R 2IEE BERKEERS 123,516 -
Property management services L/EREN T 27,742 43,252
Hotel operations BIE - 3,077
8,028,418 8,842,295
Revenue from other sources E i KR
Gross rental income from investment properties HEMFEAS WAL 26,039 29,035
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value BAFEFABE REEZR
through profit or loss Bl A 14,604 15,856
8,069,061 8,887,186
Revenue from contracts with customers EEAHWNE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) WE S FEH
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020512A8310 ILEE
Project
management
Sales of and sales Property
properties in services management
Segments 2 &R the PRC in the PRC services Total
RHPBEZ
NG HHEER L/ ES
HEWE HERK EE R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®T AR®BT T AR®TR
Types of goods or services and &R =R 2 BRI %
geographical markets B m %
Sale of properties in the PRC AR EY s 7,877,160 - - 7,877,160
Project management and sales RABEZIEEEE R
services in the PRC HE R - 123,516 - 123,516
Property management services in  FAZEE 2 Y3 & 18 RS
the USA - - 27,742 27,742
Total revenue from contracts with  FF & )5 44%58
customers 7,877,160 123,516 27,742 8,028,418
Timing of revenue recognition U 7 57 B RS
Goods transferred at a point in time A E —FFEZEEEY) 7,877,160 - - 7,877,160
Services transferred over time i By ) 82 o AR 7% - 123,516 27,742 151,258
Total revenue from contracts with  FF & %)z 4858
customers 7,877,160 123,516 27,742 8,028,418
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5. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED) 5. WaEkEAMKAGE)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) 2RSS (&)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) Wis 7t E# ()
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ2019F12A31A L EE
Sales of Property
properties in management Hotel
Segments 258 the PRC services operations Total
i MEERE
HEME R BIEEK st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR®TT ARMET T ARMT T

Types of goods or services and BRI RE 2 ERI K

geographical markets BiEmiE
Sale of properties in the PRC RPBELEME 8,795,966 - - 8,795,966
Property management services REBRZ Y% ERRY

in the USA - 43,252 - 43,252
Hotel services and consumptions 5 B 7K 2 ) JE BR 76 [ 04 2

in Japan - - 3,077 3,077
Total revenue from contracts BEEAX s 5E

with customers 8,795,966 43,252 3,077 8,842,295

Timing of revenue recognition U 25 e AR B

Goods transferred at a point in time  RE—EEZEEESY) 8,795,966 - - 8,795,966
Services transferred over time BE R e o2 AR 7 - 43,252 3,077 46,329
Total revenue from contracts BEANM =B
with customers 8,795,966 43,252 3,077 8,842,295
Revenue recognised in the current reporting period that was RARE BRI ARSHNZE
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting HBEBEZWZRAT -
period:
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARET

Sale of properties in the PRC R B EYE 6,575,432 7,080,881




5.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is

summarised below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
properties and advance payments are required pursuant to the

terms of sale and purchase agreements.

Rendering of services (project management and sales services and

property management services)

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are

rendered and bills are issued when services are rendered.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31

December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

5.
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Wi K A (&)
EF &S (F)

(i)

B EE
ERASBENEE2ERBMRMT

YR E
BHEEIRINMERERT  BA
RIBE B R IRN FROR -

FERIRIE (HE BRI EIRIEARYF
EERE)

FE#VE A TH 1 B AR A AR 2 A 4R (AR 7
& IEH A RREE RS BERS R BT ©

R 20204 K 2019412318 * DB E
BTIBHOET(RBITRID KRBT Z
RGBT ¢

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Within one year —ER 14,871,578 7,311,903
After one year —F 1% 11,937,280 13,704,793
26,808,858 21,016,696

An analysis of other income is as follows: Hi A Z T :
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
Interest income F B A 20,438 7,980
Government grants BT & B 820 1,285
Others Hfth 6,262 413

27,520 9,678

133



134

EREXERAFE

Zensun Enterprises Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR MR

31 December 2020 2020512 H31H

6. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 6. HttWBZREEZHE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R ARET T
Fair value (loss)/gain on investment properties BEWEZ AFEER), MW
(note 15) (H13£15) (33,511) 2,250
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair value BAFTEFAEBE EREEL
through profit or loss AFE(ER), W (6,669) 112,726
Exchange gains R 4,596 1,708
Write-down of properties under development to net R B R R ) T A 3R R(E
realisable value (150,000) -
Impairment losses on accounts receivable and JE UG BR 2k K2 E i FE UL F3E 2
other receivables REEE - (777)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE  WMENEEER - (1)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) HE—FHMBATZ
Wz, (B18) (B17£34) 99,554 (6,815)
(86,030) 109,086
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. HBERAK
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Interest on bank and other borrowings BITREMEEZFE 1,563,416 1,019,398
Interest arising from revenue contracts B R E & 2 FE 944,468 776,557
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZHE 190 457
Less: Capitalised in properties under development W RBEEPMEERN (2,428,388) (1,758,191)
79,686 38,221

Borrowing costs from bank and other borrowings have been capitalised
at rates ranging from 4.568% to 12.80% (2019: 4.568% to 12.80%) per

annum.

KRERITREMEEZEE

BMABZEN F4.568

JE%£12.80[E (20194 : 4.568[E £=12.80/F ) 2

FREFLAERE -
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. BREL AR F
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R ARET T
The Group’s profit before tax AEE Z BT AR F
is arrived at after charging: BRI IS
Cost of properties sold B EMEKAR 6,313,705 6,593,030
Cost of services PR B AN 5,902 7,677
Total employee benefit expenses: B EEFIF 4%
Directors’ emoluments (note 9) EEHMA9) 1,052 1,140
Other staff: HMET :
Salaries and other benefits e REMER 86,410 71,761
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKE R B 9,610 8,141
97,072 81,042
Less: Capitalised in properties under development B RBEEPMEERNE (19,592) (11,979)
77,480 69,063
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S5 A 2 M 1,700 1,700
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEMEREITE 2,388 3,489
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 819 1,641
Lease payments not included in the measurement of W AT AR EBEFEH
lease liabilities HERK 5,866 5,081
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived AEEZBRFHADEMEFTA
at after crediting: TF&IE
Interest income FE U A 20,438 7,980
Gross rental income from investment properties KEMEMR S WAL 26,039 29,035
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred for: W TEACEEREERYT ¢
— investment properties generating rental income —EEHESKRAZIREYHE (2,890) (4,497)
— investment properties not generating rental income ~ — W EEATE S WA Z IR E Y (286) (117)
(3,176) (4,614)

22,863 24,421
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERFETHAEEMH
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed BE ETHEE - BB R AEH 5 383(1)()
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong b) * COFROHEARRR(FEESFmER) R
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of BIE2EIRTE 2 FAEE R FETHA B HFH
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: o
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R ARBTR
Fees W 639 633
Other emoluments: EH At
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBREYRER 368 461
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFIEH B4R 45 46
1,052 1,140
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12A31HILFEE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits scheme

Fees in kind contributions Total
2 A= 4: BRIKEF

wE KREYEF B REEN st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTR AR®TR

Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Zhang* o S A - - - -
Mr. Zhang Guogiang ok BY5R ST A - 368 45 413
Non-executive director: FHHITESE -
Ms. Huang Huang# - - - -

Independent non-executive directors: B IEHITEDE -

Mr. Liu Da ZERE 213 - - 213
Dr. Liu Qiao et 213 - - 213
Mr. Ma Yuntao BB E 213 - - 213

639 368 45 1,052
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EERFETBAEHMGE)
REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F12831HLLFE

Salaries, Retirement

allowances benefit
and benefits scheme

Fees in kind contributions Total
e RER BRAEFEE

Hwe BEUEA it st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT AR®BTR AR®BTR

Executive directors: HITESE -
Mr. Zhang* oR ST - - - -
Mr. Zhang Guogiang RBIR LA - 461 46 507
Non-executive director: FEHTTEE -
Ms. Huang Huang# = = = = =

Independent non-executive directors: B HHTEE -

Mr. Liu Da BFESLLE 211 - - 211
Dr. Liu Qiao 2EiEL 211 - - 211
Mr. Ma Yuntao BENEE 211 = = 211
633 461 46 1,140
* Mr. Zhang is also the chief executive of the Company. * REETRANRBITHABE
There was no arrangement under which the directors waived or agreed to HEHRAANNBEES B LR LR EREEMR

waive any remuneration during the reporting period (2019: Nil). A HE(20194F « &) -
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10.

The five highest paid employees during the year were neither a director nor
chief executive of the Company (2019: Nil), details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 9 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
five (2019: five) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

AEREHAL

FARAEERRHTATIEFERARDNERNIEEE
TRRAB(2019F : ) BRANSEHFMZ+1B
B EXHFE - BAFARA(2019F : 71)H
BEeH AT (WEARRESNIEEZTHRA
B)FHMZFBIT :

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR® T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e B RBERET 8,854 11,798

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

MenF T ARz &xEHALFERERIEE

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001 77T 22,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001/ 7C%2,500,0007% 7T
2,500,00178 723,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001/ 723,500,000/ 7T
3,5600,0018 7. %4,000,0007% 7T

ZITBABR)Z AT

2020 2019

2020%F 20194

2 —

2 —

- 2

- 2

1 _

5 5
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE FrEsmx
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R AR¥TR
Current tax — charge for the year ANEAFIE — F AR
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BEBFEH - -
-PRCCIT — B EAMEE 425,139 516,123
- PRC LAT — BB £ M 3 (E 185,488 402,978
— Overseas Corporate Income Tax — M ERTEEL 273 3,061
Under-provision in prior years BAEFEREBTE 2,607 143
613,507 922,305
Deferred tax (note 30) IRIERL (Ha£30) (170,008) (35,986)
Total tax charge for the year FRHERATBE 443,499 886,319

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group had no assessable profits generated in
Hong Kong for both years.

PRC CIT is calculated at the applicable income tax rate of 25% on the
assessable profits for both years. In accordance with the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding income tax will be levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the enterprises with foreign investments
established in the PRC. The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes
on dividends distributable by those subsidiaries established in the PRC in
respect of their earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including cost of land use rights and all property
development expenditures.

The subsidiaries in the USA are generally subject to Federal Income Tax at a
rate of 21% (2019: 21%) on the taxable income and the statutory regulation
of State Income Tax in different jurisdiction for the year ended 31 December
2020. Certain of these subsidiaries retained with undistributed income are
also subjected to an additional personal holding company tax at 20% on
the taxable income. Certain subsidiaries are limited liability companies which
are by default disregarded entities (i.e. viewed as divisions of the holding
company) and would be taxed as part of their holding company for federal
tax purposes.

HRAAKERMEFERNDEREBELRER
B Al - H I ER RS M BRI BRIE
W B

AR B 1D 3 AT 1S A AR B R AR B =R B0 A1 2 25%
BEREHETE - BEPRCEMEHE -
FERBIRZINE S ERINERE E T IR AR
BBHEBR10%BINFERH - Bt - AEBEAE
A R BIBK 37 A BT 8 A B 5 20084F1 A1 H BAZR
BREL A B F PR S A BR B8 B 0% -

PR HIRER IR EREERIONE
60% 2 ZEB XY - BEBRRHEWEMRS
RIERG L ERAEERRMEMEERMAX
F IR FA S HOBREE o

HE2020F 12 A31HIEFE » RER KB
RA— MR T RIERTULAIL21% (20194 -
21%) ZEE BB BRI N HBBLFTETT
B AEERMATEHE 2 EEHRG - BEERDIR
WAZETZERBRANEMERTR LA Z
20% 2 B AR R R ANER o B T HB A A
BERRAR @ RETHEAEE(AEAERA
AlZDE) - iSREEHE M S EFERA R —3
DETERIE -
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11.

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 11.

Income tax expense for the year is reconciled to the profit before tax per the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

&8> (&)

FRMESRAY R A BRRTRER AR
HERAT -

2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TR
Profit before tax B 258 A g A 1,221,872 2,087,777
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% (2019: 25%) R E B E25% (20195 : 25%)
E 2 BIA 305,468 509,444
Effect of different tax rates on operations in EHM R AR EERE
other jurisdictions TRZFE (187) (630)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose  NAI #1745z H 2 Tl 75 52 28 14,060 5,206
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BERTMAZ RIS 2 (30,636) (32,440)
PRC LAT AR Bt M 3R (E 185,488 402,978
Tax effect of PRC LAT B HISER 2 BB E (46,372) (100,744)
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised AERERF =B BGTE 77 414
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZBIBEIE B2 13,614 9,813
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised AR RER ZTIERIE (620) (2,865)
Under provision in prior years BAEFEREBTE 2,607 143
Withholding tax on distributable profits of the Group’s <%= &b B Fff & A &) Al {5k
PRC subsidiaries i M) 2 TR EL - 95,000
Income tax expenses for the year FRAABFHAY 443,499 886,319
DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR® T
Proposed final - RMB0.81 cents EEAHRE KT RO AR
(2019: RMB1.67 cents) per ordinary share 0.817 (20194 : ARM1.675) 154,984 192,474

The Board recommends the payment of a dividend in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2020 of RMB0.81 cents (2019: RMB1.67
cents) per share, amounting to a total dividend of RMB154,984,000
(2019: RMB192,474,000). Such dividend is subject to the approval by
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These
consolidated financial statements did not reflect this dividend payable.

The final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 of
RMB1.67 cents per ordinary share was declared and approved at the
annual general meeting of the Company on 9 June 2020. The final dividend
amounting to approximately RMB192,474,000 has been distributed out of
the Company’s retained earnings and paid in July 2020.

BEEESRNEZE2020F12A31BIEFEE 2
EFRKRHN ARK081D (2019F : AR
1,675 ) 0 AT E AR 154,984,000 7T
(20194 : AR#192,474,0007T) - B R A
BEBRENRERERREFAS LiE - KEE
BA TSR 0 oK [ Bk I FE SRR B, o

HZE2019F12A31HIEFE 2 RBR B FRKE
BRH ARKE1.67DER20206F6 AOHBRTZ
AARREBERE FET R R E - RER
BHARMA192,474,0007T B F220204F 7 B # AR
NARBRBP DRI -
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. AR FHEEAELERER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on: FREAREFTIZATERTE -
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR®TR
Earnings =
Profit attributable to owners of the Company used RAEEE ABIERH -
in the basic earnings per share calculation AR ESREARZF 782,988 1,151,571
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
’000 ’000
F A T
Shares B’
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in FREBEITEBRMETSE
issue during the year used in the basic earnings AR ESRERZAF
per share calculation 11,125,477 7,744,999
No diluted earnings per share amounts were presented for the years ended AR AEERE E2020F %2019 12 A31H
31 December 2020 and 2019 as the Group had no potentially dilutive IEFEVEBEEEE BT ERR - azZmE

ordinary shares in issue during these years. FEMESSSREFTRF -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. V¥ BMERRE

Furniture, office

equipment
Land and Leasehold and motor
buildings improvement vehicles Total
G BAE
TREF HEMEELE BERRE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥T ARETT ARETT
31 December 2020 202012H31H
Cost: B
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 13,938 1,916 18,540 34,394
Additions NE - 596 3,971 4,567
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) Wi —RKB AR
(K1:#33) - - 1,831 1,831
Transfer from investment property BRARENE 33,376 - - 33,376
Disposals HE - - (386) (386)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) HE—FRHB AR
(K1:#54) - - (2,985) (2,985)
Exchange realignment BEE 5 A2 (2,760) (130) (307) (3,197)
At 31 December 2020 12020512 A31H 44,554 2,382 20,664 67,600
Accumulated depreciation: 2iHiE ¢
At 1 January 2020 202051 A1H 4,334 1,706 10,643 16,683
Depreciation provided HERE 1,105 119 2,454 3,678
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) Wi —RKE AR
(H:#33) - - 1,562 1,562
Disposals HE - - (386) (386)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) HE—FHB AR
(Hiz#34) - - (704) (704)
Exchange realignment fE A% (310) (93) (152) (555)
At 31 December 2020 12020512 A31H 5,129 1,732 13,417 20,278
Net carrying amount: BRERE
At 1 January 2020 202051 A1H 9,604 210 7,897 17,711
At 31 December 2020 12020124318 39,425 650 7,247 47,322
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERZE(E)

(CONTINUED)
Furniture,
office
equipment
Land and Leasehold and motor
buildings Hotel improvement vehicles Total
&M WAE
T REF EIE HEWEHEE RERRE @gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR®BT R ARET T AR®T R AR®BT R
31 December 2019 2019F12A31H
Cost: AN
At 1 January 2019 M2019%1 818 13,679 7,941 2,161 12,452 36,233
Additions NE — — — 6,236 6,236
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —RERE AR - - - 146 146
Disposals HE - - - (10) (10)
Disposal of a subsidiary & —RFT B A R - (8,071) (292) (380) (8,743)
Exchange realignment [ 5 R 259 130 47 96 532
At 31 December 2019 7201912 A31H 13,938 = 1,016 18,540 34,394
Accumulated depreciation: REHNE -
At 1 January 2019 R20195F1 B1H 3,981 1,283 1,803 6,040 13,107
Depreciation provided WERE 274 71 25 4,726 5,096
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —MERT B AR - - - 84 84
Disposals HE - - - 8) ®)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—TNEB A A - (1,375) (163) (264) (1,802)
Exchange realignment b A% 79 21 41 65 206
At 31 December 2019 FA2019412 A31 8 4,334 - 1,706 10,643 16,683
Net carrying amount: BRI FE :
At 1 January 2019 201991 81H 9,698 6,658 358 6,412 23,126
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A318 9,604 - 210 7,897 17,711
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31 December 2020

14.

15.

2020F 12 H31H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. V¥ - - BERRZRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
The carrying values of land and building held by the Group are analysed as AEBFFE T EREF2REBEI AT
follows:
2020 2019
2020%F 20195
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥TT
Leasehold land and building in Hong Kong REBZHE L HRIETF 39,425 9,604
At 31 December 2020, the Group had no leasehold land and buildings 202012 A31H « NEEBE (20194 : A
pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings (2019: RMB9,604,000) (note R #9,604,0007T) & £ i M 1EF B #K #7 LA B
40). BASEZEE (KiFE40) -
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWE
2020 2019
20205 20195
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AR¥T T
Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1B ZRHEE 654,244 646,620
Disposals & (3,220) (7,751)
Transfer to owner-occupied property EREHE AAME (33,376) =
Net (loss)/gain from a fair value adjustment AEATEZ (BE) W FE (33,511) 2,250
Exchange realignment bE 5 A% (31,983) 13,125
Carrying amount at 31 December M12A31 8 2 BREE 552,154 654,244

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.
The investment properties with an aggregate fair value of RMB463,392,000
(2019: RMB623,299,000) have been pledged to secure the Group’s
borrowings (note 40).

NEBMPFAUKLBES A URREL S E
BAFBEzMERSEEATFEBRGE -
THERREMEAR - RFEAEARE
463,392,0007C (20194 : A R #623,299,000
L) ZBEMEC KA AMESALER 2 FE (F
£¥40) ©



15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the investment properties situated in Hong Kong,
Singapore and the USA as at 31 December 2020 are based on the
valuations carried out by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited
(“APAC”). APAC is the member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and
Valuers and an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest and
best use of the investment properties is the current use. The fair values of
the investment properties are derived from the capitalisation of net income
method with due allowance for the reversionary income.

At the end of the reporting period, management of the Group works with
valuers to establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the directors of the Company.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating leases,
further summary details of which are included in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
Group’s investment properties:

15.
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REWE(F)

IRAEE ~ FTINE REE 21K E M HE 20205
12A31 A2 AFEDEREXEEFGHRE
RMARAR([ZRDTETHEETE - A
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and Valuers
SEEREAEEVEME B ERIEXRM
BAD -

M REMERNFER  REVEKTRARS
ERERARRE - REVERAFEIRAF
BMEMOERY - UAERRAELEERE -

RBEHRMEER - AEEETRERGEEMS
5 RME=ZBAFEAERINREEE 2
ERMEBARE - WEEZ A FERERNR
- ERHREABAARAESRE -

REMFERBEEHERATE=7 - HE—
FHEHERN T IRKRM 18 -

DNEEER
TRINRAKERENE Z AV EAERER -

31 December 31 December

2020 2019
20205 20195
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥FTT
Fair value measurement using significant IRFAEA T BRI A EIR 2
unobservable inputs (Level 3) AFEFE(E=AR)
Recurring fair value measurement for investment AR TFMR 2 REMEZ
properties located in REMAFETE
- Hong Kong —B8 65,049 109,255
- Singapore — ¥ N3 281,530 314,895
- USA =22 205,575 230,094
552,154 654,244

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2019:
Nil).

FRFE-REFE - RBEWEEEEAAF
EEBEB BN BV ERLEASE LS
=/ IER(2019% : ) o
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15.

15.

2020F 12 H31H

Set out below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key
inputs to the valuation of the Group’s significant investment properties

categorised into Level 3:

REWE(F)

TXEHINAEESERE=RzEEZREMHE
HEMMERZHERMREZBABIBZME

Range or weighted average

YIRS E)
Properties Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs 2020 2019
LES fh{E T ERFAERGEA#E 20204 20194
Offices located in Hong Kong  Income capitalisation Monthly market rent (HK$ per sq. ft.) 46 47
with a carrying value of approach FAMSHEE(BFAFRET)
RMB65,049,000 Term yield (per annum) 1.9% 1.7%-2.0%
(2019: RMB109,255,000) FHWEE(FF)
NREBEREEARK WAE A% Reversion yield (per annum) 2.1% 1.9%-2.2%
65,049,0007T(20194F : AR BEREE(FF)
#£109,255,00070 ) Z A E
Commercial and residential Income capitalisation Monthly market rent (SGD per sq. ft.) 3.6-7.6 3.7-7.8

units located in Singapore approach
with a carrying value of
RMB281,530,000
(2019: RMB314,895,000)
LRFT I R EEA R WA B ARE

281,530,0007C (20194 : A
R #314,895,0007T) 2 &
FAFEEL

Senior housing communities  Income capitalisation

located in the USA approach
with a carrying value of
RMB181,862,000
(2019: RMB199,148,000)
A EEIBREE A R WAE R %

181,862,0007T (20194 : A
R#199,148,0007T) 2 K&
FERE

A significant increase (decrease) in the market rent in isolation would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the term yield and reversion
yield in isolation would result in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair

value of the investment properties.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in the prior

years.

B RATEEE (FFHRIINHKT)
Term yield (per annum)
FHWRE(GF)

Reversion yield (per annum)
BEREE(FF)

Annual market rent (USD per sq. ft.)
BFEMSEEE(BFHRET)
Term vyield (per annum)
FHREE(FF)

Reversion yield (per annum)

EHEkRE(FF)

2.5%-2.8%

2.7%-3.0%

21.7-23.5

7.3%-8.5%

7.8%-9.0%

PR i E R S8 1 FEARR o

m =

2.5%-2.9%

2.7%-3.1%

23-25

7.3%-8.5%

7.8%-9.0%

ST & BBAMEEMOLL) WEBUR A%
AFERREMOAD) © FHU
AR EBABENORL)BERBRENEAT
ERIERD (20) -

RERK
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16. GOODWILL 16. BE&
2020
20204
RMB’000
AR¥TR
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January B A1B ZA R FE -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) e B8 — I B /BB A B (B15233) 424,722
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December W12 A318 2 A R EREFE 424,722

Goodwill acquired through business combination is allocated to the
corresponding subsidiary acquired as the acquired subsidiary is the only
cash-generating unit, which is Xingcheng Holdings Limited (“Xingcheng
Holdings”) and its subsidiaries (together, “Xingcheng Group”).

Impairment testing of goodwill

Xingcheng Group cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the Xingcheng Group cash-generating unit
has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a six-year period approved
by senior management. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 29.74% (2019: Nil).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the cash-
generating unit for 31 December 2020. The following describes the key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant unit.

Selling price — Management determined the selling price based on the
selling price of the pre-sale units in the same project or the prevailing market
price of the comparable properties with similar size, usage and location.

Costs to completion — Management determined the costs to completion
based on the budgets approved by management, which is estimated
according to the past project construction experience and its knowledge of
expected market prices of land and construction cost.

The value assigned to the key assumptions is consistent with external
information sources.

The following table illustrates the breakeven point of the key variable, with
all other variables held constant, where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit would have been approximately equal to the carrying
amount.

HRATUE B AR T —REELSMN - B
S A PR N B ([ AR |) R BB R A
(e B EE ) - SEREBA KB 2B
B AR TUKEHE AR

BERERR

FIEEE L ELEW

B EBRESELBMN 2 RESEHIRERE
FAEBEEET % tEEANRESREER
AR ESREEEMILAEZRE/NF R 2%
BE - B REBAEMA ZBIR R 529.74%
(20195 : &) »

FTE2020F 12 A81B 2B EAXBAFEREE
EFEARSL EEEERERSRERAIED
BHEITRER R 2 R RERLIT

BB R PR AR R BB TAT AR = - Rk
SR BB 2 ERR ©

EE-EEERER -REREEL 2EER
BERERE BERUBZAILLBYEZRT
mEEEEE -

EIRA-EEEREEE B EZBEERE
STEIRA  BEDREBEBAERAERERLE
A SRR ATRHATE 2 T M5 -

B TRERER SRBEEIINDERRIR B -

TEMATERE Y FEY  MERA LS
SEFTEIERT  REELHL 2 TRE
SERBFEBEARMAS -

2020
20204

Discount rate B R

30.14%
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS BREE
Contract
benefit
EHME
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1 8 Z KA & REFE =
Acquisition of a subsidiary I BE— R B AR 199,000
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2020 20205612 431 B 2 A MR EFE 199,000

Impairment testing of intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired through business combinations is tested for
impairment individually. The recoverable amount of the Xingcheng Group
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a six-year period approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 24.53% (2019: Nil).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the cash-
generating unit for 31 December 2020. The following describes the key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of the contract benefit:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant unit.

Selling price — Management determined the selling price based on the
selling price of the pre-sale units in the same project or the prevailing market
price of the comparable properties with similar size, usage and location.

Costs to completion — Management determined the costs to completion
based on the budgets approved by management, which is estimated
according to the past project construction experience and its knowledge of
expected market prices of land and construction cost.

The value assigned to the key assumption is consistent with external
information sources.

B EEREBERR
EREBAFRBZEREEEBETREN
Ao EREBRSELEU KB EETY
BEFEREEFEET  ZiEFEHANESR
EEAENSAREEE R E 2 B E N FH
Bz BEHEE - HEeERsRAERCMEXREA
24.53% (20194 : &) »

FTE2020F 12 A81B 2 e EXBMFAEE
EFARSR TEEERERSREEAIYHE
e TRER R 2 B BRI T

BRI E — PR AR R BB ATRE R X - IR
SR BB FERR ©

EE-EEERER-HEREEL 2EER
BRERE BERUBZAILLBYEZBRT
mEEEEE -

TIXA-EEERREREHECHEEE

STEIRA  BEDREBERAERERKLE
A SRR ATREATE 2 T MR fhAE -

B TRERER SRBEEINIDERRIR B -



18. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts of offices used in its operations. Leases
of offices are generally with lease terms from 2 to 5 years. Generally,
the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets
outside the Group. There are no lease contracts that include extension and

termination options and variable lease payments.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the

movements during the year are as follows:

Annual Report 2020

18. #HE
FEBEREBEA

(a) RAERE

T :

ot T

AEBEANEEENRAZEREAN - PR
=HENERBER_ZERF - —RM5 A
SETEREEEEERABRAEAKEIAIN
AR - BHEBEE R E BRI R A
HEMNRHOBEESHL

FAREECAEEENREAENRE

Offices

WAE

RMB’000

ARET T

As at 1 January 2019 R2019F1H1H 6,813
Depreciation charge (note 8) WERXZ (A1:8) (1,641)
Exchange realignment [ 5, 5 2 74
As at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 201912 531 H & 2020F1 A1H 5,246
Depreciation charge (note 8) WERZ(fiZs) (819)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) HE—fRNB AR (A7t34) (4,142)
Exchange realignment BE A E (285)

As at 31 December 2020

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during

the year are as follows:

12020912 H31H

(b) HEEMRE

FRESAENREERESNT

RMB’000

ARETT

As at 1 January 2019 R2019%F1A1H 6,813
Accretion of interest recognised during the year (note 7) FHRAERERNFE (K 27) 457
Payments INE: (1,782)
Exchange realignment VE 5 FH#E 78
As at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R2019F12 431 H & 2020%F1 A1H 5,566
Accretion of interest recognised during the year (note 7) ERAFAEROFE (M aE7) 190
Payments IR (919
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 34) HE—EWB AR (A234) (4,526)
Exchange realignment bE 5 A% (311)

As at 31 December 2020

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 38 to the

financial statements.

12020912 H31H

Bf5E38 °

HEEBENIEB ST RER I B RE
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18. LEASES (CONTINUED)

Zensun Enterprises Limited

The Group as a lessee (continued)

18. HE(H&)
A E{E R RTA ()

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as (c) FEERBEREANSTELOT :
follows:
2020 2019
2020%F 20195
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBT T
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGBHNE 190 457
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEERERS 819 1,641
Expense relating to short-term leases and other ~ ER%E EATE & & AT HIHN 20194F
leases with remaining lease terms ended on or 12331 Bk 2 AT LR E
before 31 December 2019 BENRX 5,866 5,081
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RERERNESTE 6,875 7,179
(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 39(b) to the (d) TEERIRE AT EN M B®REKN
financial statements. FE39(b) °
The Group as a lessor AEBEAEBEA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15) consisting of offices,
commercial and residential units, senior housing communities and
residential single homes located in Hong Kong, Singapore and the USA
under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay the security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was RMB26,039,000
(2019: RMB29,035,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the

financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its

tenants are as follows:

AEERBCEHETHHAEMRES - ¥
I R ER MG EYZE(HE15) » BREHA -
BAREEEMN REEEREREREEE
i - HEKRIBEERALELHEKIFZEE - I
BEEBRITMAEHARES - AEEFR
BRHE2 WA R AR26,039,0007T (2019
£ . AR#29,035,0007T) @ HFBHNHER
RUES ©

2020512 A31H - HEARERRFEAES
Z AT RH A 2 TH B B R R RE ER TH B SR IAE 0
T

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARET T

Within one year —FR 22,703 23,253
After one year but within two years —F A FERFLAR 18,470 18,704
After two years but within three years MFEN EB=FLAR 16,200 16,987
After three years but within four years =F A FBEFLAR 16,512 17,225
After four years but within five years HE EERFAR 16,883 17,613
After five years BiBAF 59,026 80,972
149,794 174,754
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PLEDGED DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED BANK
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19. BERARE - SRMBBVITEHRUAR

BALANCES AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BHENIHSEEEH
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®T

Pledged deposits BHEfEe

— Current —BNER 330,336 863,804
— Non-current — JERN A 27,935 22,525
358,271 886,329
Restricted bank balances SRR FIERITAE RS 648,635 691,992
Cash and cash equivalents RekIReEFEIEB 3,218,611 3,200,230

Pledged deposits represent bank deposits of RMB 301,844,000 (2019:
RMB 823,853,000) and deposits held with financial institutions of
RMB56,427,000 (2019: RMB62,476,000) pledged to banks and financial
institutions to secure the facilities granted to the Group and the mortgage
loan facilities granted by certain banks to certain property buyers of the
Group’s properties. The pledged deposits will be released upon the
settlement of the relevant borrowings and the expiry of the mortgage
guarantees provided to the property buyers. Bank deposits and deposits
held with financial institutions amounting to RMB27,935,000 (2019:
RMB22,525,000) have been pledged to secure the Group’s non-current
borrowings and are therefore classified as non-current assets.

Restricted bank balances are required, pursuant to the relevant regulations
in the PRC, that certain amount of presale proceeds of properties be placed
as guarantee deposits in designated bank accounts for the construction
of the relevant properties. The deposits can only be used for payments for
construction costs of the relevant properties with approval.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating or fixed rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents approximate to their fair values.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB4,157,035,000 (2019:
RMB3,760,907,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

ERIFIRESIRERF FRIT RS REE 2 R1T
A R #301,844,0007T (20194 : AR
823,853,0007C) R & MEBITFHERARE
56,427,000 7T (2019 F : A R ¥ 62,476,000
TL)  MES R FAKEZBE NE THRITET
AEBYEZETHEERZIEBERBE -
ERFRESENIHEEEEER RIRH T
BRZIBEREIBERRE - BITFEAEEH
M1 P 1 A R 527,935,000 7T (2019 4F
AR#22,5250007T) B IF - LAESAEBEIE
BHER - Atk DB AERSDEE -

XRFIRITERERBEDEBERD - EKY
XHEEMBHRAZETERFABERITAA
EREBYFERETRZRBL 2R < K4t
R BERBENATRARINHEBYEZE
SEPRA ©

RITRMERE A FRITFERN LB LEE
R R o RITARE T ALHL TR
B ERARIFZRIT - R RBRLEEER
ZIRHERE N ERS

RFEHEEER  AEENUAREEZR
% RIR1THE R A AR 4,157,035,0007T (2019
F . AR #3,760,907,0007T) > AR gE
BEREBAEMER - A RIBFFEALZ
CONEBRIEH DI RLERE « EEURNESER
B ANEEE S BT ITINE ETERR
TEARE R IBIEEMmER o
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20.

21.

22.

23.

2020F 12 H31H
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Completed properties held for sale are all situated in the PRC. The Group
carried out assessment on the net realisable value at the end of the
reporting period and compared to the cost and there was no written-down
to the net realisable value of completed properties held for sale for both
years.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development are all situated in the PRC and
RMB11,1583,683,000 (2019: RMB6,838,721,000) are expected to be
realised within twelve months and the remaining RMB37,293,001,000
(2019: RMB31,528,759,000) are expected to be realised after twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. The Group carried out
assessment on the net realisable value at the end of the reporting period
and recognised RMB150,000,000 (2019: Nil) of write-down for properties
under development for the year ended 31 December 2020.

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS PAID FOR LAND
ACQUISITIONS

The amount represented deposits and prepayments paid for land
acquisitions arising from the acquisition of land use rights in the PRC.
These deposits will be converted into properties under development upon
completion of the land acquisition process and fully refundable if the
acquisition is not successful.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, OTHER RECEIVABLES 23.

AND OTHER ASSETS

20.

21.

22.

FEHEZETIYE

FEHEZEXTIYEEBUNTE - NEH
RS R A E B S 23R EA TR R
RALLE - HESMEFERIELEEZERET
I3k 2 R B BFEETTHOR ©

BEPUE

BEFAMWEZBICRPFEREARE
11,153,683,000 7t ( 2019 4 AR ¥
6,838,721,0007t ) TE B & i 2R 45 HAR A5 & B 8
+ @A NERmeR T AREES7,293,001,000
JL (20194 : AR%31,528,759,0007T ) B8 &
BERREREEERE+ —EAARER - K&
ERHRE IR & E B 8 230 FEETE -
RELZE2020512 A31 H I Z HER MU 3 R
Y% A R#150,000,0007C (20194 : Z) ©

BNt ERERANK

FHSBRERTEEB I MEREMELEZE
N iERe RBENRIE  ZEREEN LT
B F e R BB BERTYE - WUKE
WARMKY - AIFEEURE -

g%%%~ﬂ&@%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR® T

Accounts receivable JiE Uk BR SR 14,204 24,629
Less: Impairment o RE - -
14,204 24,629

Prepaid value-added taxes and other taxes TERHEE R R M F T 1,566,028 1,146,929
Deposits and prepayments & M FIE 220,941 486,547
Costs of obtaining contracts MEE K Z KA 203,346 117,380
Other receivables o Ath pE W KT8 109,263 52,738
2,099,578 1,803,594

Less: Impairment o ORE (650) (650)
2,098,928 1,802,944

2,113,132 1,827,573




23.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, OTHER RECEIVABLES 23.

AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Accounts receivable represent receivables from sales of properties, property
management fee receivables, dividend receivables and rental receivables.

Receivables arising from sales of properties are due for settlement in
accordance with the terms of the related sale and purchase agreements.
The settlement terms of rental receivables and property management fee
receivables are upon presentation of demand notes. All accounts receivable
were aged less than 3 months as at the end of the reporting period (2019:
less than 3 months), based on the revenue recognition date or invoice date.

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of accounts and other
receivables are as follows:

BoREER
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YRR - HtbEWRIER At E

@

MR FIEMEEE VMEEERE  REKLHE
SRR -

KEMEHE ZREFADRES BB HH
GREMGEE - BREESRERNEEEE L
REGIAHTHFBMNERESE - NREH
R ABRKRERRKEER B ARERZA S
2 BRERIEA3ME A (20194  ER3MEA) °

JRE ST B % % L A Mk RRTEDRI(E 2 S R R v
R :

2020 2019

20204 20195

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARBT R

At beginning of year REA 650 650
Impairment losses TREEE - T
Amount written off Wi sH k18 - (777)
At end of year REXR 650 650

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

BMEDITTIN SRS B HE R B EEREETT
NAERMEREER - BEXDLNERZEA
BRUEEEA TP 2 8848 Bl #Y 78 8 K 2=
E o At BERBMEIAEINEER - GEFEE
BEARREEARASEBBESMF - AN
REARREERR TN SRR A SEE R -
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Zensun Enterprises Limited

23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. FEWER - EftEWRBEREME
AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED) E(E)
No provision for impairment of accounts receivable was provided for as at HRAAAGIESRAEREEFBETERX -
31 December 2020 and 2019 as the directors of the Company consider the R 20204F & 20194 12 A 31 B I £ 3t /& UK BR
expected credit loss is insignificant. Set out below is the information about TELRMEEME - TXEINFERABERESH
the credit risk exposure on the Group’s financial assets included in other REBAEMEKZBEBLREMEEZSRE
receivables and other assets using a provision matrix: EEENEERMBAHER
Past due
Current within 1 year Total
B HA BH—FUR st
As at 31 December 2020 A2020%12H31H
Expected credit loss rate EHEEBEX 0% 0.5% - 5% 0.60%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) REBEALEETT) 36,451 72,812 109,263
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) TEREEEBARKFT) - 650 650
Past due
Current within 1 year Total
B HA BH—FUR st
As at 31 December 2019 A2019%12H31H
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEBEE 0% 0.5% — 5% 1.23%
Gross carrying amount (RVMB’000) RAREARETFT) 14,804 37,934 52,738
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) EHEEEBAREFT) = 650 650
24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24, BAVFEFABGZZEREE
PROFIT OR LOSS
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT T
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LM ZBRAES 28 44
Equity securities listed outside Hong Kong RBEBIRIN £ 2 BRANFE 4,570 7,285
4,598 7,329
REIT securities listed in the USA RER FH 2z BMEREETES 316,992 342,547
321,590 349,876




25.

26.

27.

28.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS RECEIVED
AND ACCRUALS
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25. BN EWEERESER

2020 2019

20204 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AR¥TR

Accounts payable FETBR R 494,346 121,847
Accrued construction costs (Note) FERT LA (KT7E) 6,221,656 2,485,887
Rental deposits received BRHAEZS 5,749 8,285
Retention deposits and payable RE S REMKIE 109,498 63,874
Real estate and other taxes payable FERTE ER R EMBIE 47,428 109,330
Other payables and accruals EtENRERETER 425,584 313,873
7,304,261 3,103,096

Less: Rental deposits received — non-current B BEREERE —IERE (4,866) (7,010)
7,299,395 3,096,086

The average credit period of accounts payable ranges from 30 to 90 days
(2019: 30 to 90 days). All accounts payable were aged within one year,
based on invoice dates.

Note: Included in accrued construction costs are amounts due to a related
company controlled by Ms. Huang’s daughter, Ms. Zhang Huigi (“Ms.
Zhang”) of approximately RMB1,227,889,000 (2019: RMB606,041,000)
for its construction work.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The amounts represented advance payments from customers based on
schedules as established in the property sale contracts. The increase in
contract liabilities as at 31 December 2020 was due to more property
projects having started pre-sale during the current year.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

The amounts due to related companies are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. Ms. Huang and together with her spouse,
Mr. Zhang, and her daughter, Ms. Zhang, have the controlling interests over
these related companies.

LOANS FROM A RELATED COMPANY

The Group has entered into loan agreements with a related company,
Henan Zensun Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (AR EEEXABRE A F) (“Zensun
Real Estate”), which is ultimately controlled by Ms. Huang, pursuant to
which Zensun Real Estate will provide unsecured loans to the Group.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. Those
amounts were shown under current liabilities as Zensun Real Estate had the
discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the carrying amounts of the
loans approximated their fair values at initial recognition.

FER R Z FHEEHN T30HE90H (2019
£ :30HZE90R) - REFZHH - 2HENE
KRR B—FNA °

Miat - FESTEEEKAAA KA RH1,227,889,0007T
(2019% : AR¥606,041,0007T) AL HZE
TREMmERMS—FHEEAR (HHuangZ 2 &
SRaR B+ ([3R &+ )4 2 508 -

BHEE

ZECHERBEMEHEANH ENRMERA
EEUERH TER FRIA © 1A2020F12 A31B ALY
BEENTHREZYEBEERNAFERBE
T -

PESBAE 1 B FIE
T BEA T HIE AN - O TRERME

& o HuangZ T3E R ERBRAEERE LR R
TR R R

26.

27.

KE—BEBEEQXRZER

AEERBEARIEMEREREGRAR(NE
RHEX | AHuang R T REES 2 A )%
RIER M - Bt EREESREEEERE
KT AREHE o

28.

ZECRRERR  RERAREREE - B
NEBEXBRBEA ZRAEER - HZF
HRABINERB RIS

ARREERR  ZFERZREERFER
VIRTER R 2 NP ERE -
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31 December 2020 2020512 H31H

29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29. SRITRHMEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
per annum per annum
(%) Maturity RMB’000 (%) Maturity RMB’000
ER BB
FRIE(%) Ec)=! ARETR FH=E(%) Z8A ARETR
Current B
Bank loans - secured RITER—BIER 2.16-9.98 2021 2,505,742 3.29-9.98 2020 3,143,973
2021 20204
Other loans - secured Hi Bz —HHH 5.64-11.00 2021 1,650,953 7.00-9.98 2020 3,118,014
2021% 20204
Senior notes — unsecured (a) BEEE-EEKHQ) 12.80 2021 2,194,932 - - -
20215
Bonds - unsecured (c) &% — EHM (o) - - - 8.00 2020 695,963
2020%F
6,351,627 6,957,950
Non-current FEENH
Bank loans - secured RITEF—BIER 2.25-9.98 2022-2030 5,223,614 3.29-9.98 2021-2030 6,696,765
20225 % 2021E%
2030F 20304
Senior notes - unsecured (a)(b) BEZE-EER (D) 12.50 2022 1,291,284 12.80 2021 2,311,130
2022 20214
Other loans - secured HiEZ—FHA 8.50-11.00 2022 2,269,400 7.00-9.98 2021-2022 1,270,000
2022 20212
20224
Other loans - unsecured HiEH—EiER - - - 2.00 2021 3,000,000
20214
8,784,298 13,277,895
15,135,925 20,235,845
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Analysed into: DT
Bank and other borrowings repayable: AR T BEEEY
WITREMEE :
Within one year —FR 6,351,627 6,957,950
In the second year F_F 7,117,249 9,097,747
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZEFRF(REEERE) 1,658,083 4,167,555
Beyond five years BBAF 8,966 12,593
15,135,925 20,235,845




29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of bank and other borrowings at the end of the
reporting period were denominated in the following currencies.

BoREER

Annual Report 2020

29. RITREMBE(E)

RNBERREER - ROREMEEZREE
TIA T E#FIME -

2020 2019
20204 20195
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T
HK$ B - 482
SGD AN T 70,363 78,420
usb X 3,616,228 3,157,092
RMB AR 11,449,334 16,999,851
15,135,925 20,235,845
Notes: Mt
@) On 3 October 2019, the Company issued senior notes at a principal (a) M2019F10A3H AR AIRIERIE R 2 1K
amount of US$220 million carrying interest of 12.8% per annum due TG EITR2021F10 ASA R A& 58
on 3 October 2021 in accordance with the terms and conditions of 220,000,000% T 2 12.8E B ERE([2019
the subscription agreement (the “2019 Original Notes”). Subsequently FRIAER]) - H1£H2019F12 5208 © &
on 20 December 2019, the Company issued additional senior notes RERE2019F RIA KB RE 5 2 B R &
at a principal amount of US$120 million under the same terms and TR ER (R RSN 1T A€ §8 120,000,000 T8
conditions of the subscription agreement of the 2019 Original Notes. RRE - BIMERRERE2019F RIARERS
The additional senior notes are consolidated with the 2019 Original HAE—EZRF - BIR2021F10A3H I 2
Notes and form a single series at an aggregated principal amount 7N 4#2%8340,000,000E€ T F B 12.8EBER
of US$340 million carrying interest of 12.8% per annum due on 3 1% ° %340,000,000K L& £ ZB N E BB R
October 2021. The US$340 million senior notes are listed and traded itk EBE - BERBASRBFEEAIE
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The net proceeds of the senior BEBHERE  BEEBRUAR—MBEER
notes were intended to refinance existing indebtedness and for project & BREARBRITNFBERNAAR R
developments and general corporate purposes. Details of the issuance of A2019F9A26H ~ 20194 10A3H + 2019
the senior notes issuance are set out in the Company’s announcements F12H12H8 &k2019F 12 A 19 R ©
dated 26 September 2019, 3 October 2019, 12 December 2019 and 19
December 2019.
(b) On 13 March 2020, the Company issued senior notes at a principal (b) R2020F3 A 13 » AR R ETHI202249 A

amount of US$200 million carrying interest of 12.5% per annum due
on 13 September 2022. The US$200 million senior notes are listed
and traded on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. The net proceeds
of the senior notes were intended to refinance existing indebtedness
and for project developments and general corporate purposes. Details
of the issuance of the senior notes are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 March 2020.

13 B 258~ /<4 %8200,000,000% T4 B.12.5
[EE%LEERH - 200,000,000 T ELZHER
BRI LEMREE - BAZRBABHRIEF
HERAERAGEHERE BEZERAR—R
TEMR -  ARBEERERTNFBHEAEA
7 A HIA20203 A 13EH AL -
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29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(c) On 25 January 2019, the Company completed the issuance of bonds at
principal amount of USD100 million (at carrying amount of approximately
RMB695,963,000 as at 31 December 2019) carrying interest of 8.0%
per annum due on 22 January 2020 in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the subscription agreement. The bonds were unsecured
but guaranteed by related companies, which are ultimately controlled by
Ms. Huang. The bonds proceeds had been fully utilised as intended for
general corporate purposes of the Group. The bonds were redeemed in
January 2020.

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured by the
Group’s pledged deposits, investment properties, property, plant and
equipment and properties under development with the total carrying amount
of RMB17,443,890,000 (2019: RMB19,987,547,000). In addition, shares
of certain subsidiaries were pledged as securities to obtain certain bank
and other borrowings granted to the Group as at 31 December 2020 and
2019. Details of pledged deposits are disclosed in note 40 to the financial
statements.

In additions, as at 31 December 2020, the Group’s senior notes and bank
and other borrowings were guaranteed by related companies. Details of the
guarantees are disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements

29. RITREMBE(E)

Hiet - (&)

(© R2019F1 A25H + AR RIRIBERBEREZI1F
FREL SR SE R B 1T 20204F 1 B 22 B B H# 2 A<
< %8100,000,0003% 7T (7220194F 12 A31 H ik
EE 4 A R #695,963,0007T ) E% @ REF
RBOEFTE o EHFAEEME - (BHHuang X
TEREEH 2 BEARER - BHMERED
RRTAREHRAEAEBZ —REERR -
Z{EHBER D N2020%1 AED ©

AEEETRITLEMEEAANEEERR
B A R#17,443,890,0007C (20194 : AR#E
19,987,547,0007T) 2 E#HFIL S - BEWE -
ME - BB R REARIER B EFERE o It
G - 20204 K 201912 A31H * T B
DRI ZBMHEEER » URSBAEBRERZ
ETFRTREMER  FHECEKFRESZFHB
B 75 R 3R Y sE 408 B8 -

AN - A2020F12831H » AEE 2 ELAEZE
ARIBITREMEEMBEEARER - 5@E
RZF BRI ISREMI 428 5 -
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30. DEFERRED TAX 30. EZEHIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary TR EEES VREHRBEAENBEZE ST
differences are as follows: T
Deferred tax assets EEBBREE
Write-down
Accrued of properties
Provision expenses for under
Tax loss for LAT tax purpose development Total
+ ity AR R
BIEEE BE REHEAX BEPYE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR TR AR¥ET AR TR AR¥ETR
At 1 January 2019 M2019F1A1H 57,299 5,869 - - 63,168
Credited to profit or loss FRRBIRETA
during the year (note 11) (Hizt11) 5,399 32,478 92,609 - 130,986
Deferred tax assets at R2019F12A31H K&
31 December 2019 and 20201 A1BZ
1 January 2020 REFIBE E 63,198 38,347 92,609 - 194,154
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) Ui — RHT/E A &
(#77233) 25,246 - 9,577 - 34,823
Credited to profit or loss FARB&RERTA
during the year (note 11) (BizF11) 37,214 3,734 17,227 37,500 95,675
Deferred tax assets at R20206F12A31H 2
31 December 2020 RIEFIBEE 125,658 42,081 119,413 37,500 324,652

During the year ended 31 December 2020, deferred tax assets were
recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
relevant future taxable profits will be available against for utilisation. These
unused tax losses were in respect of certain PRC subsidiaries carried
forward at the end of 2020 and the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that these certain PRC subsidiaries will generate sufficient future
taxable profits.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had total unrecognised unused tax
losses of RMB532,018,000 (2019: RMB613,587,000), which were subject
to agreement with the respective tax authorities, available to offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of these
unused tax losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries and the Company that
have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Except for tax losses incurred in the PRC amounting to RMB107,356,000
(2019: RMB71,714,000) will expire within five years since the date of
carryforward, these unrecognised unused tax losses can be carried forward
indefinitely, subject to fulfilment of certain conditions or rules.

HE2020F12A31HIEFE WAl EBE
RO FERF K AT 3K 8H - Rl et REAHIE
EIERRECHRELE - 2SAPDAREEE
T AETHREKEBRRR2020F KA K18
RARBIESZRE  ZEETHEWB AR
EERMZ RIRERT =T

R2020F 12 A31H » AEBARERABH
RIEEERE B ARES532,018,0007T (2019
£ AR#613,587,0007T) @ B 5 85 &K%
BRI 2 Wes - A AERMARFE - AR
BEEITHEEE - REBMZHBATRAD
RIEE R KA] AL B R i b FI AT FA DA 3K S5 72
BEE  RUYERZSAPATBEERERRE
EFHIBEE - BRPBEELCZHBEEARE
107,356,000 7T (20194 : AR ¥ 71,714,000
TR B EE R BRRAFERNERIN  ZERER
AEAHEEBBAERHLEE  BAKTAET
&R A -
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30. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities

30. EEHIR (&)

EEREAE

Revaluation  Withholding
of properties tax on
acquired distributable

Accelerated  Revaluation under profits of the
tax of investment business Group’s PRC

depreciation properties combination subsidiaries Total
G

EBEH TEMEAR

hnERHE REME -WN -l EIppd €
nE B MEER ZiEMB st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥TR AR¥T AR%T R AR¥TR
At 1 January 2019 #201941 A1 8 (58) (1,976) (3,290) = (5,324)
Charged to profit or loss FARB=ENR
during the year (note 11) (H1EE11) - - - (95,000) (95,000)
Transfer to LAT payables 2+ i I (E T N TR - - 1,200 - 1,200
Exchange realignment [E 7 % () (25) - - (26)
Deferred tax liabilities at R2019F12A31H &
31 December 2019 and 2020F1A1B2Z
1 January 2020 RERIBEE (59) (2,001) (2,090) (95,000) (99,150)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 33) W& — B A &
(#17#33) - - (433,037) = (433,037)
Credited to profit or loss FARBRETA
during the year (note 11) (HfsE11) - 55,078 19,255 74,333
Exchange realignment RIS 124 - - 128
Deferred tax liabilities at R2020F12A318 2
31 December 2020 EEHIEEE (55) (1,877) (380,049) (75,745) (457,726)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes at applicable rate of 10% on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2020, the aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB538,949,000 (31 December 2019: Nil). In the opinion of the directors,
it is not probable to distribute these earnings in the foreseeable future.

RIEFBEMERBRE  RPBEAMKYZE
IMEBENIRKRE FEIMNIEER - AR
BB 10% 2 B - Z R ER2008F1 A1 H#E
A R E 2007412 31 B 2 2 B9 & F » 10
AR R B ANBE 3 & B T TE Rl AR @ BT A B R
e - AEAREENRE - At - A5
AL B bR AL 2 Y B A Rl gt 200841 A 1
AZRBEANBIIRSHOKREZERRE10%
BmTBIR

202012 A31H » BRI EERELEFHIES
BENFEANHBAFTNRERE s THER
@EE#) A R#538,949,0007T (2019412 A 31
H:%&) ZFBERA  NARRKRIET2ZHIK

ZERF -
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SHARE CAPITAL [N
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T

Issued and fully paid: BETREAR
19,1838,866,698 (2019: 10,294,699,948) 19,133,866,698% (20194 :

ordinary shares 10,294,699,948% ) & i@ A% 5,326,923 2,014,112

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as follows:

ARRRAEDBBHIIMT -

Number of

ordinary shares
in issue Share capital

21T
ZEREE [N
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January 2019 201951 A1 H 6,176,819,969 587,529
Issue of new ordinary shares BATHE B 4,117,879,979 1,428,031
Share issue expenses BHEITA = (1,448)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 201912 831 H & 202041 81H 10,294,699,948 2,014,112
Issue of new ordinary shares (Note) BT BR (A 8,839,166,750 3,322,546
Share issue expenses B EITA = (9,735)
At 31 December 2020 7202012 831 H 19,133,866,698 5,326,923

Note:

During the year, the Company completed the issue of 1,235,360,000 new
ordinary shares under the general mandate pursuant to the terms of placing
agreement dated 8 May 2020 at the placing price of HK$0.33 per placing
share with the gross proceeds received in cash in the amount of approximately
HK$407,669,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB375,341,000) in May 2020.

During the year, the Company completed the issue of 1,526,090,000 new
ordinary shares under the general mandate pursuant to the terms of placing
agreement dated 24 November 2020 at the placing price of HK$0.46 per placing
share with the gross proceeds received in cash in the amount of approximately
HK$702,001,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB591,506,000) in December
2020.

During the year, the Company and the controlling shareholder of the Company
entered into a subscription agreement for the subscription of 6,077,716,750
new ordinary shares under a specific mandate at the subscription price of
HK$0.46 per subscription share and the aggregate subscription price in the
amount of approximately HK$2,795,750,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB2,355,699,000) were settled by way of capitalisation of the entire
outstanding shareholder’s loan from the controlling shareholder of the Company
(Note 33). The new ordinary shares were allotted and issued on 30 December
2020.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with other shares in issue in
all respects.

Mzt

RAEER » KA2QFK20204%5 A % B 8 &2020
FE5ASAZEERBEZGRBERE —REETHK R
171,285,360,000 kT E AR - BEEBERERES
50338 WIRESWMZ B RBELEN A
407,669,000/ 7t (FHE MR 4 AR #375,341,0007T) °

RAEER » ANAQFR20204 12 A & A #] 52020
FI1A24BZEEHE ZIGERBE —REETK
% 471,526,090,000 kST Bk - MEEBRTRE
ER7N0.46H T - MRS WIM 2 FIBRIBEBELN A
702,001,000/ 7t (FHE R 4 AR #591,506,0007T) °

RAEER AAREARQARZEBRBRE R
BHAABBFIZERRAEESRAERNKDO.46
IR IEG,077,716,750 R T L AL - BRBEY
2,795,750,0005% 7T (18 & B 40 A R % 2,355,699,000
TT) B BIB S 2 IR A RIHEARAR S (M 5E33) R EE
RRERERMEB AT AN o FHEBERE R20205F12
AB0B &R 2 R EH1T ©

AREFHTHMERMNEREG D EELME TR
ZHREFHAL
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32.

33.

2020F 12 H31H
RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

(@) PRC statutory reserves

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, these
entities are required to appropriate 10% of their net profits after tax,
as determined under the Chinese Accounting Standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
its registered capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the
entities, the statutory surplus reserves may be used either to offset
losses, or to be converted to increase share capital provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for purposes other
than those for which it is created and is not distributable as cash
dividends.

(b) Property revaluation reserve
Property revaluation reserve represents the gain on revaluation
of the property, plant and equipment upon transfer to investment
properties.

(c) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of group
entities. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2.4.

BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON
CONTROL

During the year, the Group entered into an acquisition agreement with
Champ Win Enterprise Limited, which was ultimately controlled by
Ms. Huang, to acquire entire share capital of Xingcheng Holdings at a
consideration of RMB2,368,000,000. Pursuant to the terms and condition
of the acquisition agreement, the acquisition transaction was completed
on 12 June 2020. Xingcheng Holdings is an investment holding company
incorporated in Hong Kong, and Xingcheng Group is engaged in property
development in the PRC.

32.

33.

iR

AEBEZRESBERIEREZE2020F12A31H
IEEEZEH 2 RGRAESEHERN -

(@) HEDEERE
REBEFBERBERNHBERZIONER
AMARERMAA  ZSERARNR
aHFERR Z10%RBUEE B R E - Ut
TREPREAEREE  EERHER
BED HAEMEAR0% AL - ZHEEF
BUEHR R ERMAMERARMEE TR
B Z MR - X TE B i R A IR K SH e
B ER AR INRA - BERERFER
BABINAEEZEMEAR Z225% °
fEE TS A ERERSL B A ASN Y E A 3
& IARERREMEDIK °

(b) MEEMMHE
MEEHREREYE  BERREEEH
=REMERZEH W -

(c) HERE
INEFERIERESE TR BRI
ELXNTBINEESE - BRAREREN
E2ARTEH S RTBURRE ©

HEES T EBEH

RAFEER » 2N 5% B 8 Huang 20 &= & KR 42 &l
ZRAAREBBCEAR DA KERE
DA Bk IE I 2 28 RA - REAARE
2,368,000,000 7T ° 1R 15 U2 B8 17 = 2 16 R R 15
% WX 5 ER2020F6 A 12 8 5B © EiE
Y A — MR BB EMR 2 R EERAE
i B3 5 B A A R B BB E -



33. BUSINESS COMBINATION UNDER COMMON 33.

CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The acquisition is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting
in accordance with HKFRS 3 Business Combinations. The recognised
amounts of assets and liabilities of Xingcheng Group at the date of

acquisition are set out below:

Annual Report 2020 —FZBFFFR

HEES T EHKE 6 (&)

RIBEBIBMELRESRELS G 2B
ZEDERAEARBEEAR - BEERNKE
FHFERZEERBBESRHEIIMT

RMB’000
ARBT T
Property, plant and equipment Yz - B B 269
Intangible assets mEE 199,000
Deferred tax assets REFRIBAE 34,823
Completed properties held for sale REHE 2B I 93,900
Properties under development BRI 3,714,800
Deposits and prepayments paid for land acquisitions B TR S RIB A KIE 91,347
Accounts receivable, other receivables and other assets FEURERTR « HAbEWGRIE R K& = 767,530
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries* FEU B X BB A Rl kIR 166,022
Prepaid income tax and tax recoverable TR PT1S K AT U =l B 1E 106,086
Pledged deposits BEHEMES 55,654
Restricted bank balances ZIRHIRI TR A 99,982
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBFEEBIER 534,838
Accounts payable, deposits received and accruals ERERR - Bl KETEA (321,612)
Contract liabilities GHBE (1,520,839)
Amounts due to related companies FEfS @ A RIFRIE (843,319)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER (800,000)
Tax liabilities HIAAE (2,170)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEEE (438,037)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAVEFEA HE5EEFEERE 1,943,278
Goodwill on acquisition U B = T A P 424,722
Consideration satisfied by loan from the controlling shareholder — LAZNA B1ZEARAR 2 B3 MR B
of the Company ** 2,368,000

Cash and cash equivalents acquired and
net cash inflows on acquisition

FIRENRE NRESEEB AR
Wi =IRMIR SR FHE

534,838

* Amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company were eliminated in the
consolidation upon the completion of acquisition.

** The consideration was settled by the loan from the controlling shareholder
of the Company on the acquisition date. On 24 November 2020, the
Company and the controlling shareholder of the Company entered into
a subscription agreement for the subscription of 6,077,716,750 new
ordinary shares under a specific mandate at the subscription price of
HK$0.46 per subscription share. The aggregate subscription price for
all subscription shares was settled by way of capitalisation of the entire
outstanding shareholder’s loan from the controlling shareholder of the
Company. The new ordinary shares were allotted and issued and the
shareholder’s loan was capitalised on 30 December 2020.

Upon the completion of the acquisition, Xingcheng Group attributed
RMB1,171,526,000 to the Group’s revenue and profit of RMB54,789,000
to the Group’s consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Had the acquisition taken place at the beginning of the year, the revenue of
the Group would have no changes and the consolidated profit would have
been decreased by RMB2,954,000.

JEUAS 2 R P BB 2 R R Th A MR B IR e A&
RERA BB KK o

RERKEB AR BZERER 2 ERE
& - A2020F 11 248 * AR FIEARQNFZ
122 I AR B AT S AR B i DAAR IR s R IR A IR R 8
BERRERRN0.4675 T RHE6,077,716,750
A AR - FTEREBRONEREEDRR
#2202k B AN D AR IR B A R (R AR B K
BEAREM AR - R2020F12 A30H -« #1
TEREBEERET MREEREER
b e

RURBEEB =K% - B Z=20206F 12 A31 H
LtFEE BREERnAEEaERMEREARE
1,171,526,0007C LA R M AN £ B 2 47 6 s 7 5 Ik
i M A R #54,789,0007T © iU iE B EF 4
BE o AEEZ KRB E - MEA R G
b AR#2,954,0007T °
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34. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 34.

In July 2020, the Company disposed of its entire 85% equity interests
in Inter-American Group Holdings Inc. (“IAGH”) to to GMR . at a total
consideration of approximately RMB102,748,000. Subsequent to the
disposal, the Company lost control of of IAGH together with its subsidiary.

The total net assets disposed of in respect of the disposal of the subsidiary
during the year were as follows:

HE—REHEQF

20207 A + AR A RGMR i & E R Inter-
American Group Holdings, Inc.([1AGH ) 2 &
T85% X - BREL A AR 102,748,000
TC o HE%R - AARIKEIAGHERHEKE AR
O T2 ) o

RAFEERREEHNBARMEENFEER
T

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARSF 5
Net assets disposed of: PENFEAE
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) M - BB REEHE14) 2,281
Right-of-use assets (note 18) FREAE(HL18) 4,142
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESEEER 2,990
Accounts receivable, other receivables and other assets EUERRN « EMhER BN M EE 667
Accounts payable, deposits received and accruals FERBRR - Blize RIEFTEA (4,772)
Lease liabilities (note 18) HeaE#mz18) (4,526)
Tax payable FEI IR (2,471)
Non-controlling interests eI A 249
(1,440)
Exchange reserve HNBE & 8 4,634
3,194
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 6) & — B A Rl 2 W (47776) 99,554
102,748
Satisfied by: ATRFIA AT
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBFEEHBIER 102,748

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

HREEMBRARZRE MRS EHEAR ZFR
EMAPIAT

2020

2020%F

RMB’000

ARBT T

Cash consideration HWERE 102,748

Cash and bank balances disposed of HE /RS RIRITAE SR (2,990)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect REHEMBARZRAERREEEEEZ

of the disposal of subsidiaries AREBMA 99,758



35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. In
view of the Group’s expansion strategy, the Group has sourced funding
from banks, financial institutions, bonds, senior notes and its related
companies in which Ms. Huang has beneficial interests and continued
to look for other external financing sources. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from the prior year.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an annual
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the share capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues, raising of new borrowings or redemption of debts.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
bank and other borrowings, amounts due to related companies and loans
from a related company, net of cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
balances and pledged deposits. The gearing ratio as at the end of the
reporting period was as follows:

35.
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EXEmER

AEBEREARATAERAEEERENSE
e AREBELEREERTERKRS
KA@M - ERAEE 2 ERRE - AEE
BIRTT - EEE  E5 - ELEFE KHuang
RIHEREGER  HBERREEER S IRN
BESSKEMIIPRERE - AEEBERE
EBEFERFIE

ARDEZEFHREHNEARE - BEAZ
HEN  ARAEERRE KA K B #H AR
AHERE - REARAREZTER  AKEGEER
SANBRE - BITHRD  BRFEEREOE
T FPEHEERERRESE -

AEEEARBREAGIE  NEERTR
HibfEE  BABEARZKERRE —HMEE
ARER  BRREERFALEEHEE XBHIR
THARBERZRS RBEHRZEEARE
e

2020 2019

2020%F 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R AR®TT

Amounts due to related companies FERTREE N B3 IA 4,100,961 956,458
Loans from a related company KE—HBEERRZER 8,374,973 7,490,728
Bank and other borrowings WITREMEER 15,135,925 20,235,845
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B B RIREEEER (3,218,611) (3,200,230)
Restricted bank balances SR BRI TAE R (648,635) (691,992)
Pledged deposits BEEFiRE (358,271) (886,329)

Net debt BEFE 23,386,342 23,904,480
Total assets BAE 67,152,356 51,942,189
Gearing ratio BEAGBHXR 35% 46%

165



166

EREXERAFE

Zensun Enterprises Limited

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR MR

31 December 2020 2020512 H31H

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as

BRERES2EMTA

RBEPR - FELMIAZRAEBENT

at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2020 20204
Financial assets THEE
2020 2019
20205 20195
Financial assets Financial assets
at fair value Financial at fair value Financial
through assets at through assets at
profit or loss  amortised cost profit or loss  amortised cost
BATETA REBHERK BRATETA REBHERA
BRCeMEE HECCREE BRCOeBEE HEZOMEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®TR ARETR ARETR
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZEREE
profit or loss 321,590 - 349,876 -
Accounts receivable FEURBR X - 14,204 = 24,629
Financial assets included in AR EKGRIE R
other receivables and other assets HtEE eRBEE - 108,613 - 52,088
Pledged deposits BEEfRS - 358,271 - 886,329
Restricted bank balances XRHIRITES - 648,635 = 691,992
Cash and cash equivalents BekHeEEEE - 3,218,611 - 3,200,230
321,590 4,348,334 349,876 4,855,268
Financial liabilities THAE
2020 2019
20204 20194
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
R R A RS R AR
TEzeBmAE HEZS@mAR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®TT
Accounts payables FERTBR K 494,346 121,847
Financial liabilities included in other payables, STAEMERNRIE - ERe R
deposits and accruals ErrERZzZeREE 6,762,487 2,993,766
Amounts due to related companies FESRAE A T RIE 4,100,961 956,458
Loans from a related company KE—REEARZER 8,374,973 7,490,728
Lease liabilities HEAE - 5,566
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 15,135,925 20,235,845
34,868,692 31,804,210
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

37. TMITRAZAFERAIFEER

RIERR  SREMTAZRERENT

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE AFE
2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 20194 20204 20195
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABEZS
through profit or loss REE 321,590 349,876 321,590 349,876
Financial liabilities cREeHE
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMEE 15,135,925 20,285,845 14,888,014 20,056,975

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances, pledged deposits, accounts
receivable, financial assets included in other receivables and other assets,
accounts payable, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amounts due to related companies and loans from a related
company approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices.

The fair values of bank and other borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk
for bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2020 were assessed to
be insignificant.

ERECMARERREFEERE XBRHIR
1THERR - CHEMES - BEIRF - SAEME
WHRIRAREMWEEZ SBEE - BNEKRX - &
AEMBENFRBAREAERAZERAE - BN
BMEARRIARKA —MBAERARZERAF
BEEAEBREEABEE - THARZETI AT
BESFTE -

AEBEMPBEETENY B  AEEES
MTARAFEFECHENEF HBEEER
ERMARUBESRE - NSRS AH - BB
S T AN EER S 5HE GHETHER
ZEERHANE - HEHEFNEEEHRAE -

TREERABNAFENEERAHERSE
FEREXZHBTAZCRE  BANBRHE
ZeREENRBBBRI -

B ETRAKRE 2 A ERTISRETE -

BITRHEMEEZ A FETBBEEIAKIR
ERERRBIHERAEEUER - EERB K
BTEHEMZ TAZFMRETHIRGTE - B
202012 A31H ' AEBEBB@RITREMEE
WTBHRBREBNAFEESHBHRTE -
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37. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37. TMIBZAFERAFERER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) (#&
Fair value hierarchy AEEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the TRINNAEBEESRTAZ A FEFEBH :

Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value: BAFHETEZEE -
As at 31 December 2020 R2020F 12H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERANTEEFEZATE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SRS EXUBE BEATUEE
ZHE LOPN ¢ [OPN ¢
(%F—%&) (=4 (B=8H) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR®T AR®TR AR®TT

Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABEZ
through profit or loss EREE 321,590 - - 321,590
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F 12H31H
Fair value measurement using
FERAUTBETE 2N FE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
E BT S BEAUEE BERFTAER
2B A B A B
(F—#%) (B=#) (B=#) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥TT AR¥TT AR¥TT
Financial assets at fair value BATFEGFABRZ

through profit or loss DRIEE 349,876 - - 349,876




37.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
The Group had no financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both
financial assets and financial liabilities (2019: Nil).

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
As at 31 December 2020

Annual Report 2020

TRMTAZAFER
(&)
DHEER(E)

R2020F12 318 » AEBWET([IZAFE

ot T

DFEER

EZEmBE (20196 - &) -

FR cREERSBEBES

—REE—FZ

MW EAFEFEZEE - TEER S E R

BE=H(2019%F : ) o

HWELAFEZERE:
R2020%F 12431 H

Fair value measurement using

ERAUTEEAEZATE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SRR S BEAUEE BEAFATHRE
ZHE AR [IDN ¢
(B—#%) (=) (B=4) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥TRT AR¥TR AR¥TR
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER - 14,888,014 - 14,888,014
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12H31H
Fair value measurement using
FEAUTEEFEZ A TFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
TR TS BEAAEE BATAEE
ZEBE [PN ¢ [TPN -6
(F—%%) (=) (B=8) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥TT
Bank and other borrowings WITREMEER - 20,056,975 = 20,056,975
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38.

2020F 12 H31H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank balances, accounts receivable, other
receivables, accounts payable, other payables and accruals and amounts
due to related companies, which arise directly from its operations. The
Group has other financial assets and liabilities such as pledged deposits,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, bank and other
borrowings, lease liabilities and loans from a related company. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, equity price risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk
management. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s bank and other borrowings with floating interest
rate set out in note 29. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group manages its interest cost
using a mix of fixed and variable rate borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax.

38.

MERBREERFERBEK

AREFNTIESHTATIERERSLESS
BEE - XBRHETES USRI - HEbfE
WskE - BNER  HaBENRERESER
MEMBEATRE  2SeRMTAERELE
MEEEE AEEREHMWEREEKE
& WEEIFES BAFEFABSZEH
EE - RBOREMER FAEAERKE—H
REARZER ZESBMIENZTZEENTE
REAEEZBLERE -

AREBMEMTAEANTIERR AT ERER -
BAERRER INERK EEERBREREE
TEB - —BME  AEEYHEERSEFR
RFRES - REBRFERETAHIZHHNT
SeBMTE - BEEERIJIREZSEARER

BR - AR o

F=E

N 5% [ T B ) T 35 6 R 2 B L g = 22 ERL P R 29
PEAEEFSRTREMEERR - AEE
WEERATESR T EEPRNXRER - REEH
ERAESREEEEEREFSKA

TRINTEMREE M EEARRIFIEZOE N
T MENSEARESFRED MY AEER
BRI 2 & -

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)
in basis in profit
2020 points before tax
B RS FRBE A F

20204 (TF&) #21m, G8d)
RMB’000

ARBTT

Loans and borrowings denominated in NI EEE 2 BFRREE

UsSD ey 100 (1,300)
usD %7 (100) 1,300
SGD IS 100 (704)
SGD T (100) 704
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. MBEMEREBFERBXE)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (continued) = b (48)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
2019 in basis points before tax
2B R BRBE A F
20194 (FF&) 20, ()
RMB’000
ARET T

Loans and borrowings denominated in LTI ESTECERRKEER

HK$ I 100 (5)
HK$ BT (100) 5
usD Epin 100 (1,500)
UsD X (100) 1,500
SGD N T 100 (784)
SGD N T (100) 784

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities decrease
as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the value of
individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
listed investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The management manages this exposure by regular review of price
fluctuation.

Price sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to price risks of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
at the end of the reporting period.

R A (B A% L B

PR AME 1% B 7 A A 15 2K R (B Bl 3 A B E
HPHEYBRAZT SR FETRZEAR - AEE
AXWOBBRATEFABRZEMEEL
EHRERAERRER - BEEEETEHEH
ERRIEE IR LR o

ERBRE
AT BEE DA RE PARIRAFEFARR
ZEMEEEBRMASZRBRETE -

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

in market in profit

price before tax

mELHR RRBE Al E F

(B&) #m, Cid)

% RMB’000

ARBT T

31 December 2020 2020 12A31H 10 32,159
(10) (32,159)

31 December 2019 2019 12A31H 10 34,988
(10) (34,988)
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. MKRMREEEERBK(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currency risk ShiE R B
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise AEBEMBERFEERER - ZFRMKIIAEA
from transactions by operating units in currencies other than the units’ RGBT LA I e E AN BT
functional currencies. SMELE °
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting TRITNERMBEMASERZREFIENIFTN
period to a reasonably possible change in the HK$, USD and SGD T BARAET EXNFINETERNEEA
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s B B B AN &R B P R 5 BR R A0 BR B AT & 1) 2 X
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair values of monetary assets and RESM(BREREERBBEZ A TFEZE MR
liabilities). B e
Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/
exchange rate (decrease)
of foreign in profit
currency before tax
HNEFE R B B4 A5
LA (THRE) #m, C)
% RMB’000
ARETT
2020 20204
If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB i 7S 70 AR EFHE 1 4
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB ST ARERE (1) 4
If the HK$ strengthens against the SGD i 78 7T 5 # AR T FHE 1 43
If the HK$ weakens against the SGD iRl 785 70 5 ET AN T B2 (B (1) (43)
If the HK$ strengthens against the USD iK% 7T A E T AHE 1 (31,697)
If the HK$ weakens against the USD s 7 A E T B (1) 31,697
If the SGD strengthens against the USD fisi % D03 7T S R T HHE 1 (522)
If the SGD weakens against the USD fisi 3 D3 T S R TR B (1) 522
2019 20194
If the HK$ strengthens against the RMB BT i AREHE 1 4
If the HK$ weakens against the RMB BT AR KR E ©) (4
If the HK$ strengthens against the SGD w7 7T 5.3 N3 T AHE 1 75
If the HK$ weakens against the SGD iR TT A5 T N TR B (1) (75)
If the HK$ strengthens against the USD fisi 75 70 W22 TTHHE 1 (7,711)
If the HK$ weakens against the USD fini 7 70 H R TR E () 17,711
If the SGD strengthens against the USD fisi 3 D03 T S SR T HHE 1 (557)
If the SGD weakens against the USD fis ¥7 hN3% T R TT R B (1 557



Annual Report 2020 —FZBFFFR

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. BIKEMEEBEERBK(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Credit risk FERE
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is AEBELRERTMNEEREFZE=ZFETR
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are 5 MBAREBNRE @ TERIZEEIRITCE
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are TRGNBEEHEBRIEEXERF o I -
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is NEBCFEEEREWNRIBLELEBL  MAE
not significant. [,z SRR R IR E K o
Maximum exposure and year-end staging RERERER FAEER
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to TRIWRERAEE ZERENEZELEEZ NG
credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on REERBHAO  TEENBEBAEN(EE
past due information unless other information is available without undue MERBAEBZ KA HENAF) RN12 A
cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 December. 1A FHREBR D -
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets. 254 5EAe i ESEAREE -
As at 31 December 2020 Ro2020F 12H31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A
FEEE 2HEHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
SE1REER E2RE R EIRER KPS st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥ TR AR¥ T
Accounts receivable* Ui B 2R - - - 6,335 6,335
Accounts receivable FE W BR K
- Normal* —E&E* 7,869 - - - 7,869
Financial assets included in other 5t A E fth FEU /38 %
receivables and other assets HWBEZSRMEE
— Normal** —Eg~ 108,613 - - - 108,613
- Doubtful** — TR - - 650 - 650
Pledged deposits BERRe
— Not yet past due — K7 Hf 358,271 - - - 358,271
Restricted bank balances SR HIRITAE
— Not yet past due — KR 648,635 - - - 648,635
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREEMBEER
— Not yet past due — R H 3,218,611 - - - 3,218,611
4,341,999 - 650 6,335 4,348,984
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38.
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

174 Zensun Enterprises Limited

MEREERRRBEKR)

Credit risk (continued) EERK(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) BEEBRE FAEER(E)
As at 31 December 2019 Ro2019%F 12H31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12{8 A 781
FEEE 2HEHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E1RE E2RER EIWER K (aprS st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR®BT R ARET T AR®T R AR®BT R
Accounts receivable* FE U AR R - - - 8,030 8,030
Accounts receivable FEUTAR R
- Normal* — e R 16,599 - - - 16,599
Financial assets included in other 5+ A ELth 8 U k08 Kz E
receivables and other assets tHWEEZCRERE
— Normal** — IEF* 52,088 - - - 52,088
— Doubtful** —FEE - - 650 - 650
Pledged deposits BiEfiES
— Not yet past due — R Hp 886,329 - - - 886,329
Restricted bank balances XIR BRI TAE A
— Not yet past due — KA 691,992 - - - 691,992
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEER
— Not yet past due — ki 3,200,230 - - - 3,200,230
4,847,888 - - 8030 4855918
* For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified - LN 55 [ FE PR B A SRR M R 23 T s MUR B A 1L

approach for impairment as detailed in note 23 to the financial

statements, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.

ke

recognition.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in accounts receivable,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial

TER RN E - AEET EERERE
RIEERER

Bt ANBRERR - Bt KGR R At EE 2
SEMAERDY  AUVEEHBETSREERN

ENEEEEBERAIESR] -



38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of bank and other borrowings, lease
liabilities and loans from a related company. Cash flows are being closely
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as

Annual Report 2020 —EF-FFFR

38. HMKEMEEEERBE(E)

RBEEER

AEBZBBEREBNARTREMES
EBEAKRKE —HBERARZER  #FE
SRHEHRERBEELEZ Y - AEEFERLY]

Iricg B
ERBERE °

RBEMR - AEESBABEREAORMR
MFRIELEZ AT

follows:
As at 31 December 2020 R2020F 12831 H
On demand
or within 1to2 3to5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
EZER
EAk: —EME ZERE BBRE met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AR®TR ARBT T AR®TR AR®TR
Accounts payable FEfTBR K 494,346 - - - 494,346
Financial liabilities included in other &t AH fth B Ueizs &
deposits received and accruals EERAZERBE 6,762,487 - - - 6,762,487
Amounts due to related companies & BE A 731 4,100,961 - - - 4,100,961
Loans from a related company RE—HEEARZER
- Non-interest-bearing —BE 8,374,973 - - - 8,374,973
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 7,646,155 7,667,366 1,800,461 9,452 17,123,434
27,378,922 7,667,366 1,800,461 9,452 36,856,201
Financial guarantee contracts (Note) 81 #1ER A 4 (f15L) 13,559,922 - - - 13,559,922
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

38. HMKEMEEEERBE(E)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESER(E)
As at 31 December 2019 R2019%F 12531 H
On demand
or within 1to2 3to5 Over
1 year year years 5 years Total
EZEXR
F—FR —EWME =B2hHE BREF st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR TR AR¥ET AR¥ TR AR¥ETR
Accounts payable FEfFBR IR 121,847 - - - 121,847
Financial liabilities included in other 5t A E 42 Wiz 4 K
deposits received and accruals EAERAzeREE 2,993,766 - - - 2,993,766
Amounts due to related companies &1 [E:E A &) ZUE 956,458 - - - 956,458
Loans from a related company KE—MEEAGZER
— Non-interest-bearing -®8 7,490,728 = = = 7,490,728
Lease liabilities HERE 1,871 1,945 2,438 = 6,254
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 8,274,557 9,907,074 4,512,801 13,868 22,708,300
19,839,227 9,909,019 4,515,239 13,868 34,277,353
Financial guarantee contracts (Note) 81 #1ER A 4 (f15E) 7,819,571 - - - 7,819,571

Note: The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the
maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on the expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability
of the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function
of the likelihood that the guaranteed financial receivables held by the
counterparty suffer credit losses.

BB ERE HRIARERE T 75 REUER
IR - AEERRL I AL AE N 2 BUHER
REZRELE ERNBREHRGEERZE
) AEERAARBEAAB RN ERE TR
ZRIREMERK » i ZfEHRFEHF R
EREEZAJEEMEE - KL ATEERERT
BFL R ERVBRKSASERZEER
BIME °



39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39.

CASH FLOWS

(a)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Annual Report 2020 —EF-FFFR

RERTRERME

() BMEEBEEET

Amounts Loans from Bank and
due to related arelated Accrued Lease other
companies company interest* liabilities borrowings Total
EREE RE-HHE BIR
NAFE NER S HEARE HtfEE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTR ARETTR ARETTR ARETTR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2020 202061 A18 956,458 7,490,728 107,016 5,566 20,235,845 28,795,613
Changes from financing cash flows (note)  BVABR 2R EZEH) 2,467,210 (2,115,755) (1,530,111) (919) (2,651,667) (3,831,242)
Interest expenses MERR - - 1,563,416 190 - 1,563,606
Foreign exchange translation MNEBRE - - - (311) (248,253) (248,564)
Increase arising from acquisition of WiE—FME AR LM
a subsidiary 677,293 - - - 800,000 1,477,293
Decrease arising from disposal of HE-BHBARZHD
a subsidiary - - - (4,526) - (4,526)
Non-cash transitions™ FRERH - 3,000,000 - - (3,000,000) -
At 31 December 2020 12020812318 4,100,961 8,374,973 140,321 - 15,135,925 27,752,180
Amounts Loans from Bank and
due to related arelated Accrued Lease other
companies company interest* liabilities borrowings Total
EffBE Re-HEE BIR
ARARE AIEH 23RS HESR e @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTT ARRTTR ARRTT ARRTT ARETR ARETR
At 31 December 2018 2018128318 473,199 12,876,310 18,342 - 12,400,725 25,768,576
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RpAAuHRsEa
F16H 7 E = - - 6,813 - 6,813
At 1 January 2019 (restated) 201951 A1 B (E5) 473,199 12,876,310 18,342 6,813 12,400,725 25,775,389
Changes from financing cash flows (note) &R & HEEE)(#/7) 242,607 (5,385,582) (930,724) (1,782) 7,864,677 1,789,196
Interest expenses FBRX - - 1,019,398 457 - 1,019,855
Foreign exchange translation SNERE - - - 78 (29,557) (29,479
Increase arising from acquisition of e —HHE ARz
a subsidiary 240,652 - - - - 240,652
At 31 December 2019 #2019%12A318 956,458 7,490,728 107,016 5,566 20,235,845 28,795,613
Note: The financing cash flows are made up of the net amounts of new Mt - MERSRERGEHEERERAZ

bank and other borrowings raised, repayment of bank and other
borrowings, interest paid, advance from/repayment to related
companies, loans received from/repaid to a related company and
lease payments (including principal and interest portions) in the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

Included in accounts payable, deposits received and accruals.
- During the year, other borrowing of approximately
RMB3,000,000,000 was assigned from an independent third
party financial institution to a related party and recorded under
loans from a related company which had no effect on cash flows
to the financial statements.

ok

ERTREMER  EHERTRE
fifEE ENFE  MEARRKS
BN B/ EE-—HBEERARER
REENK(BEAS RS )2
R o

STARNER - ERREREAER -

FR - EMEEHARE
3,000,000,0007T /5B — B E=F%
MEEEE —REEA L WRHE—
REERAREFRAT  HHBHR
RenBXBTE -

177



178

EREXERAFE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MR

31 December 2020 2020512 H31H

Zensun Enterprises Limited

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39.

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash
flows is as follows:

RERERERMTE(E)

(b) FHERSHHARE
RenERMBEERSRLERNT

2020
2020
RMB’000
ARBTR

REEHA
MEESA

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

40. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 40.

The following assets are pledged to certain banks and financial institutions
for banking facilities granted to the Group and mortgage loan facilities
granted to certain property buyers of the Group’s properties at the end of
the reporting period:

5,866
919

6,785

EERR

RB|ERAR - UTEEEERTETRITRS
BEBERAEEERRITRERAEE X
ZETHXERERRISHE 2EM

2020 2019

20205 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR¥TT

Property under development Btk ES 16,622,227 18,468,315
Investment properties KREME 463,392 623,299
Property, plant and equipment Y BRE K& - 9,604
Pledged deposits BEEALE 358,271 886,329
17,443,890 19,987,547

In addition, shares of certain subsidiaries were pledged as securities to
obtain certain banking facilities granted to the Group as at 31 December
2020 and 2019.

AN - 220204 2019412 A31H - 2K 3#
ETHBRARZKND  MEAAEBERET
RITREE 23K -



41.

42.
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COMMITMENTS 41, &I
(@  The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the (@) RBEHEEER - RNERZ EANFIE
reporting period: RN
2020 2019
20205 20195
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT T
Contracted for, but not provided, in respect of 5t N3-S IBE 5T 4B R B %
Acquisitions of land use rights Wi £ b {5 FA 549,497 -
Property development expenditures MEERAL 12,344,501 11,867,163
12,893,998 11,867,163
(o)  The Group has no lease contracts that have not yet commenced as (b) R2020%F 12 4318 + AEE W EEM K

at 31 December 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had contingent liabilities relating
to guarantees amounting to approximately RMB13,559,922,000 (2019:
RMB7,819,571,000) in respect of mortgage loan facilities provided by
certain banks in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
property buyers of the Group’s properties. Pursuant to the terms of the
guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by these property buyers,
the Group would be responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage
principals together with accrued interest thereon and any penalties owed
by the defaulted buyers to the banks. The Group would be entitled to
take over the legal title to and possession of the related properties. These
guarantees will be released upon the earlier of (i) the satisfaction of the
mortgage loan by the buyer of the property; and (ii) the issuance of the
property ownership certificate for the mortgage property and the completion
of the deregistration of the mortgage. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, no provision for the guarantee contracts was recognised in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil) as the default risk is low and in case of default in payments, the
net realisable value of the related properties can cover the outstanding
principal together with the accrued interest and penalties.

42.

BIsAROTIEA ) -
HAREE

MR2020512 A31H » AEBEREBEAEEY
ECZMEBRUZEBERMBSE TR
REZEBERMEZEREAIABEYD
A R #13,5659,922,000 7T (20194 = A R#&
7,819,571,0007T ) ° BIEERIER © MZEY
EEXBRIZIBHIE  AEBEAEEERE
BRRMIBITHREEZIZIBASER 78
MAEMMEIR - AEBE K FEEESHBYENE
EERMEAE ZSERBRUTHREEZ
ERRGR  (VMEBEREZBRBER &)
RIBYMERLMEMBEIELTHIZBOEUE
B ARREEZERE  AREHNRBRTK
B EMFEY - BEYERIZERFE R
HAEERNSURRFFBERE S I ER
ERALHNREZE2020F12 A31 H IFFEE (2019
F ) ZIRA ISR R B o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MR

31 December 2020

2020F 12 H31H

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related

43. BEALIXRZ

@ KBREVBRREMBIFLZRS
Sh - REBERRE N EGEEATET

parties during the reporting period: T3R5 -
Related companies Transactions
(Note (i) (Note (ii) 2020 2019
BERAR (M) R 5 (HiiZ(i) 2020 20195
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT
Relevant members of KIEIRIKAR AR Project management and HEEERERK
Ever Diamond Global ([x#&])2AR sales services fee income SHERBEUWA
Company Limited B8 A BlER
(‘Ever Diamond”) together ~ EHTBA 7 (45i78
with its subsidiaries [kiEEE])
(collectively, the “Ever
Diamond Group”) 123,516 -
Relevant members of AR IEE{R5ERE Construction costs BREERAN
Henan Zensun Corporate EREETAT (capitalised in properties (RERERYE
Development Company (TIERE%E]) 2 under development) BAML)
Limited (“Zensun BB D B)E
Development”) together EEKB AR
with its subsidiaries (Gl EEEE
(collectively, the “Zensun) £E])
Development Group”) 1,532,739 2,052,500
Relevant members of 1 5 Bt PR 7 Property engineering costs ~ BH T2
Xingye Wulian Service SEBERAH (capitalised in properties (REEPYE
Company Limited (TEZ£y8 )z under development) B AR
("Xingye Wulian”) BEHKE AT and property MEEER
together with its subsidiaries R EMB/AF  management and BEREE
(collectively, the “Xingye (LT[ EEYE  value-added
Wulian Group”) £81]) services fee 27,035 -
Notes: Wizt -
(i) Ever Diamond Group are entities controlled by the Ms. Huang 0] XL B A HHuangZ TER E R B

together with her spouse, Mr. Zhang. Zensun Development
Group and Xingye Wulian Group are entities ultimately controlled
by Ms. Huang’s daughter, Ms. Zhang.

(ii) These transactions were based on terms mutually agreed by
both parties. These transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s senior notes and bank and
other borrowings amounting to approximately RMB9,588,464,000
(31 December 2019: approximately RMB 10,375,226,000) were
guaranteed by related companies which are controlled by Ms. Huang
together with her spouse, Mr. Zhang, and her daughter, Ms. Zhang.
No asset of the Group was pledged to these related companies in

respect of these guarantees.

(i)

REEEH2ERE - FREESEER
Y E B AHHuangK T2 X R
R T JIRIR G 2 ERS -

ZERHHERE T KR E 2 5K
EEE - WHK ETRFE4AZET
EHEZFRMERS -

MR2020F 128318 ' "EBZEBAE
1B A K 49 AR #9,588,464,0007T (2019
F12A318 : HH ARK¥10,375,226,000
7)) Z 17 R E A S &2 BHHuang 2 3
BHEGSREEREZRREZ TG 2

FER
BB

AER - BERZEERAZS
AERASEEE -



43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(@)
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43. BEEAITXRZ (&)

(continued) (a) (%)
During the year, the Group entered into an acquisition agreement RAFEE » NEB HHuang R T H &L
with Champ Win Enterprise Limited, which was ultimately controlled HZzARIEBBECEAR AR KER
by Ms. Huang, to acquire the entire share capital of Xingcheng % DAUCEE S IR IR 2 B ERRR AN o B
Holdings. Further details of the acquisition transaction are included WHE R 5 2 — S IEH NI SRR M
in note 33 to the financial statements. 33 °
The Group is licensed by Zensun Real Estate to use the trademark AREBEEIFmEEAFIIREEFNBALE
of “Zensun” and “IF g ”on a royalty-free basis until July 2025. A Zensun | & [ [E | EIZ = 202547
H o
During the year, the Company and the controlling shareholder of the RAREEZEAN > RAREKRRA R ZERK
Company entered into a subscription agreement for the subscription IR R 5T 37 3R B 15 o DA AR IR R R X
of 6,077,716,750 new ordinary shares under a specific mandate HABEERIZERMDO0.468 TRE
at the subscription price of HK$0.46 per subscription share. The 6,077,716, 750 ¥ &A% - KRBEED
aggregate subscription price were settled by way of capitalisation BRGEIHERARRIZERBRREE
of the entire outstanding shareholder’s loan from the controlling BREZE AR R T o 720204
shareholder of the Company. The new ordinary shares were allotted 128308 « T AEIRE BB R EAT
and issued and the shareholder’s loan was capitalised on 30 MIRREREERLL - EEZEISHN
December 2020. Further details of the transaction are included in HE— BB E N M SRR M 5E31 233 °
notes 31 and 33 to the financial statements.
Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) HAREE A T 2 RERER
Details of the Group’s balances with related parties as at the end of REBR - NEEEBAEA T 2 &%
the reporting period are included in notes 25, 27, 28 and 33 to the FIEE R B KM aE25 ~ 27 ~ 28 %
financial statements. 33 °
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: (c) AREFBFTBEEAEFHM
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET T
Short term employee benefits R EE R 1,007 1,094
Post-employment benefits BRI AT 45 46
Total compensation paid to AFEEEASSMNE
key management personnel B2 okl 1,052 1,140

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments
are included in note 9 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no transaction has been entered into with
the directors of the Company (being the key management personnel)
during the year other than the emoluments paid to them (being key
management personnel compensation) (2019: Nil).

EERTETRASME ZE—FFE

BN I ISR EEO ©
B EXPIREESN RERLHEEARR

AER(NEZEBAR)ETEMR
2 HAREXNERTIEZEEARR
B2 B2 BN (20194F « £&) o
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31 December 2020

44.

2020F 12 H31H
SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 28 August 2013, a new share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to motivate eligible persons who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. The Share Option Scheme remains in force for 10 years
from that date, unless otherwise cancelled or amended. Eligible persons
of the Share Option Scheme include (i) a director or proposed director
(including an independent non-executive director) of any member of the
Group; (i) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of the Group; (iii) a
supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group; (iv) a customer,
consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent
or representative of any member of the Group; (v) a person or entity that
provides research, development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional services to any member of the Group;
and (vi) a landlord or tenant (including a sub-tenant) of any member of
the Group. Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board
shall be entitled at any time during the life of the Share Option Scheme to
offer the grant of any option to any eligible person as the Board may in its
absolute discretion select and the basis of eligibility shall be determined by
the Board from time to time.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted is such number of shares which,
when aggregated with shares subject to any other share option scheme(s),
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of the annual general meeting approving the Share Option Scheme
on 28 August 2013. The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible person in the Share Option Scheme within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

44,

RS E

20138 H28H + AR RN B ELT
(FEEpiesral]) - BRETE S EREEASE
EEBKRIEMEBZAERAL - BRIEBK
FESHEE] - GRIBRETEImZAR—ES
B+F - BREFEZEER/RATBIENL~E
EERKEARIZESRIEEES(RIEBILIE
WMITEE)  (MAEEETAKE AR ZEERMH
BRE  (NAEBTAKE AR ZERERE
HER : (WAKBEAKEARZES « ##
B ¥ EEERN  BFIFEEA &
BE - REFIREK: VEREEEGKE AR
TR LT % sk H A BT S 45 sk AR I B RS ~ SRR
s BERBZALTRER  RVI)AEEER
KREARIZEERMAF(BELAF) - RIEE
B AT B 2 AR R - B IR AT 218 R AR
B EEeARAEEERNBEREZAWEA
ERATIREREBRE  mMEEREENE
HEZSET -

BRI R E - AT iR 2 B IRE S Rk 2 IR
HEE LR - BT EAEBREENS R 2R
HBEMN - ZRZTEBBARQRNR2013F8H28
B EBRETZSINBRRAFASEH)BER
TR Z10% o REM + = (8 A HAR R 5 B AR
A RERESE R EERALTREITZRDE
BER W UARAREMEEEEITRBI1%A
PR o Bl — PR BEZRE BREAS
R AR RS HEE - H A BT o



44.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is the grantee
of the options). In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director, or to any of their
respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within
any 12-month period, are subject to the shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

The amount payable upon the acceptance of an option is HK$1.00. The
period within which an option must be exercised shall be such period as
the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of grant, save
that such period shall not be more than 10 years commencing on the date
of grant of an option.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board, but
may not be less than the highest of () the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of offer of the grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer of the grant; and (i) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date the annual meeting approving
the Share Option Scheme on 28 August 2013, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued
in respect of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options vested immediately and may be exercised at any
time not exceeding a period of 5 years from the date on which the share
options are accepted.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no options have
been granted under the above-mentioned scheme.

44,
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BRESE (&)

MARNGBESE  FBTRABREBRRENF
EZAZEMBEA LR HEBRE  HARE
BYIERNTEE(BBRERRAZERBIE
MITBERRIN) 2 BRHAE o I EEF+Z
& AHIR  MEIAEERTS BT IEANTE
ERFESAZEANHEALREEABAAR
AR EAEREEZETRM0.1% R AEBSE
5,000,000 7T (IRIBEARBIRGHAK L BEHZ
BIEETE) 2 BRE - AIZASFRERBREAS I
R FAELT o

B ER AR RN 21.008T - BkiEZ
VRTERRABRS N HBRERS2ER
BEE - AR A BARER L B R
BEETEF -

BREZITFELRESSETE  ETEERN
TERBEZEZS®E (A2 FBRMNIREEHBEH
(KWEAXRSAH)RBRAME B RERMBRIT
B (A2 rROREZRER L BB AE
R BRERMEARERMBFEHIWHE
R i) 2 A LD EIME

HERBBREA IR T 2BREFHE IR
NRBEREARRRRELLLAER - TaFr
HRBA DR 7201348 A28 A (/&R R A &
BRI R B H) B BTN 10% ° ERME
M—FARTRAER TERALTZBRES
Mz BTRETETRNEBEREARF
BERBRIAER - DA FFBEEARR BRI
MEDHTARM 1% - BRERBRERERAZ
R AN 58 T 4 A ] 7 ] P ) B s 33 8 3 )
BERETTIE o

M B ZE2020% R2019F 12 A31 B ILEFE - 1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MR

31 December 2020 2020512 H31H

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

45. AR B BEARRRT

ARABRIME PR P BEARRBEZ BT

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥ETR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M -~ BEKE&E 65 75
Investments in subsidiaries RH B R R ZI&E 324,181 336,131
Total non-current assets JEmBEEERE 324,246 336,206
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Accounts receivable, other receivables and other assets FEURBRFX ~ Efth U 008 K E {th & &= 4,358 4,964
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEFABRZSREE 321,505 349,776
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE L B BB X ) ZRIB 8,923,211 3,900,275
Cash and cash equivalents Re MRS EEIEE 47,245 955,175
Total current assets BN A ERRE 9,296,319 5,210,190
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals H b R 3E R FEET B R 122,421 96,475
Bank and other borrowings WITREMEER 2,194,932 695,963
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHIB A RIFRIE 203,970 216,643
Total current liabilities mENE EREE 2,521,323 1,009,081
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 6,774,996 4,201,109
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHABERABERE 7,099,242 4,587,315
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 1,291,285 2,311,130
Total non-current liabilities JEMEN B ELEE 1,291,285 2,311,130
Net assets BEFE 5,807,957 2,226,185
EQUITY s
Share capital [N 5,326,923 2,014,112
Reserves (Note) () 481,034 212,073
Total equity TS HATE 5,807,957 2,226,185
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  45. &4 3 E#REE (&)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note: BisE
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARZ EE BT -
Capital
reduction Exchange Other Retained
reserves reserve reserve earnings Total
BEAHIH,
REER INE B Hitf#E REBH st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR% T AR¥TT AR¥TT AR% TR

At 1 January 2019 ®20196F1A1H 119,330 27,720 82,674 (2,209) 227,515
Total comprehensive FRE2E(ER)
(loss)/income for the year Wes4EEE - (24,739) - 9,297 (15,442)

At 31 December 2019 and  #2019F12A31 8 &

1 January 2020 20204F1 A1H 119,330 2,981 82,674 7,088 212,073
Total comprehensive FREE(EE),/

(loss)/income for the year — Uiz544%8 - (149,770) - 611,205 461,435
2019 final dividend paid B 1420194 KRR & - - - (192,474) (192,474)

At 31 December 2020 202012 H31H 119,330 (146,789) 82,674 425,819 481,034
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46. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 46.

186  Zensun Enterprises Limited

B R

R2020%F 12318  ARAREEHBRARIZE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2020 are as follows:

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

BT

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR ERTEE AA R EGER
18 b Bh % 4 3 3t B = IR A< [ (B ZEDHL FEXK
Direct Indirect
HiE i3
75 Wall Street, LLC USA Note (i) = 100  Property investment
ESE] Bt MERE
American Housing REIT, Inc. USA Common stock - 99.8 Property investment
S35 USDB,256 YEKE
L iRAke,266% 7T
AHR First Borrower, LLC USA Note (i) - 99.8 Loan financing and
EE BiaE() Property investment
ERRE RERE
AHR Second Borrower, LLC USA Note (i) = 99.8 Loan financing
ESE Hia() BEREE
American Senior Housing USA Note (i) - 99.8  Property investment and
REIT, LLC e H1aE0) investment holding
MERE R E R
ASHR McKinney, LLC USA Note (i) = 99.8 Property investment
ESE] Bt MERE
ASHR First, LLC USA Note (i) - 99.8  Property investment
ESlE HTEE() MERE
China Credit Singapore Singapore Ordinary shares 100 — Investment holding
Pte. Ltd. TN SGD13,417,282 e

A 13,417,282
3TN T



(CONTINUED)

46. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

46.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2020 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Annual Report 2020

BoREER

B S R R (4]

R2020F 12318 * AAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&)

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
SRS ERTEE AT IR RERE
=% b Bh % 8 3 3t B = IR A< E B A=R FEEK
Direct Indirect
HiE R
Expats Residences Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary shares - 100  Property investment
N SGD25,002 MERE
T BA%25,00257 M3 T
Heng Fung Capital Company Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 —  Property investment and
Limited b HK$2 securities trading
BERERRAR TERE T MERENRFFEE
Keng Fong Foreign Investment USA Common stock - 100  Property investment
Co., Ltd. EE USD250,000 YEKE
A% 250,0003 7T
Singapore Service Residence Singapore Ordinary shares - 100  Property investment
Pte. Ltd. #rhnsk SGD1,250,000 MEKRE
E3ER1,250,000
T
Xpress Credit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100  Securities trading
HREEBRAA B HK$1,260,000 BHEE
L imA% 1,260,000/ 7T
ZH USA, LLC USA Note (i) 100 —  Securities trading and
E3 HaE() Investment holding
BHEERREER
Xingcheng Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100  Investment holding
BRI AR A BB HK$1 "B

EREETT
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ISR MR

31 December 2020

46.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

2020F 12 H31H

46.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2020 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

B S R R (4]

R2020F 12318 * AAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MRS BRITEE RN TR R
=x ! it B I & FE btk B FMRAEE ZHEDL FEXEK
Direct Indirect
HiE Bk
AEEEtXEEFMRAEGRAR  PRC Registered capital - 100  Investment holding
Note (i) S RMB1,000,000 BV
Bt &£ (i) A& A
AE#1,000,0007T
FESEE R BEE AR AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) EP RMB400,000,000 X
Bt a2 (i) FEE AR
AR #400,000,0007C
RS EREEERAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB50,000,000 MEE R
Bt a2 (i) FEE A
AR #50,000,0007C
A EIEEREEEBRAR] PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) th RMB50,000,000 MEBR
Bt a2 i) & A
AR #50,000,0007C
EIENKEHEEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development,
Note (i) th RMB300,000,000 MEBR
B &2 i) & A
AR#300,000,0007T
I E PR BEEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) i RMB50,000,000 MEHR
Bt &£ (i) &R
AR #50,000,0007C
TAERAEFXFRAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB50,000,000 MR
Bt &£ (i) A&

AR#50,000,0007T
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PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

46.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2020 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Annual Report 2020

BoREER

B S R R (4]

R2020F 12318 * AAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&)

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MRS BRITEE RN E AL RER
=x ! b B R 2 3 B MR AEE ZADL FEXEK
Direct Indirect
HiE Bk
TENEBEXEERAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development,
Note (i) = RMB50,000,000 project management
Bt &£ (i) A& and sales services
AR #50,000,0007T YIEEE - HEEER
SHERRTS
T EEENEXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB100,000,000 YRR
Bzt (i) EEA
AER#100,000,0007T
TR EEER AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) F RMB100,000,000 MR
Bt a2 (i) FEE AR
AR #100,000,0007C
I EEFMmEEER AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB50,000,000 MR
Bt a2 (i) A AR
AR #50,000,0007C
R ER R EEGR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB100,000,000 335
Bt &2 (i) & AR
AR#100,000,0007T
IR EEBEEZEFRAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development,
Note (i) A RMB300,000,000 project management
Bt &£ (i) R E A and sales services
AR #300,000,0007T MFEER BEEER
HER®S
ItR EGEEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development,
Note (i) A RMB200,000,000 project management
Bt &£ (i) R E A and sales services
AR #200,000,0007T MFEER BEEER

$HE RS
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46. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 46.
(CONTINUED)

190  Zensun Enterprises Limited

B S R R (4]

R2020F 12318 * AAREEHBRARIZE
BT - (8

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2020 are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value of

Place incorporation/ issued ordinary/ Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MRS BRITEE RN TR R
=x ! it B I & FE btk B = AR A E A ZBEZL FEXEK
Direct Indirect
HiE Bk
R IER SRR BEERR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MR
Bt &£ (i) A EA
AER#100,000,0007T
SR EPS el 3Rt AR A A PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i L2 RMB100,000,000 I E%3:
Bt a2 (i) FEE AR
AR #100,000,0007C
SRR BEXEABR A A PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB50,000,000 MEE R
B 52 i) FEE A
AR #50,000,0007C
AR EEREEEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB100,000,000 WEER
B a2 i) EERIE= N
AR#100,000,0007T
RISZHIERESFXBRA A PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) m RMB50,000,000 E$3:
Bt &t (i) EE A
AR #50,000,0007C
FEERASEFXEERAA PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development,
Note (i) 2l RMB100,000,000 project management
B &2 i) &R and sales services
AR #100,000,0007T YRR BEBTERHE
B R
AR EREREFXER AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) 22 RMB100,000,000 3
Bt &t (i) A EA

AR#100,000,0007T
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PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

46.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2020 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Annual Report 2020

B S R R (4]

R2020F 12318 * AAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&

Percentage of

BoREER

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MRS BRITEE RN TR R
=x ! b B R 2 3 B FMRAEE ZBEZL FEXEK
Direct Indirect
HiE Bk
AEEREHEEGRAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MR
Bt (i) A EA
AER#100,000,0007T
T EERKEEGR AR PRC Registered capital -~ 100  Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB100,000,000 MEBR
B 52 i) FEE AR
AR #100,000,0007C
S EIEEHEEEAR AT PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB100,000,000 MEE R
B 52 i) FERE A
AR #100,000,0007T
MEAERTEEXERAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) F RMB100,000,000 MEBR
B a2 i) EERIE= N
AR#100,000,0007T
FEEEFNEEER AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) w RMB100,000,000 MEBR
Bt &t (i) & A
AER#100,000,0007T
TAEARBEZEERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) i RMB20,000,000 MEHR
Bt &t (i) &R
AR #20,000,0007T
AR EEFXEER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MR
Bt (i) A EA

AR#100,000,0007T
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46. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 46.
(CONTINUED)
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Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2020 are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value of

Place incorporation/ issued ordinary/ Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MRS BRITEE RN TR R
=x ! b B R 2 3 B MR AEE ZADL FEEK
Direct Indirect
=% Bk
I EERREERR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MR
Bt (i) EEA
AER#100,000,0007T
A TEE PR BEEER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development,
Note (i) = RMB100,000,000 project management
HBia i) FEAR and sales services
AR #100,000,0007T YIFEER  THEEERHE
ERT
R EEENESRAZEER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) A RMB100,000,000 L
B 52 i) FEE AR
AR #100,000,0007T
S FEEREEER AR PRC Registered capital - 100 Property development,
Note (ii) F RMB100,000,000 project management
iz & AR and sales services
AR #100,000,0007T YR BEEEKH
&R
SRR E X AR A A PRC Registered capital - 60  Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB200,000,000 MR
Bt &t (i) & AR
AR #200,000,0007T
AEEEENEEBRAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) S RMB100,000,000 MR R
Bt &t (i) & AR
AR#100,000,0007T
EEEELITREARAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) h RMB100,000,000 VI ER
Bt &t (i) & AR

AE#100,000,0007T
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PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

46.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2020 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Annual Report 2020

B S R R (4]

R2020F 12318 * AAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&

Percentage of

BoREER

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MRS BRITEE RN TR R
=x ! b B R 2 3 B MR AEE ZADL FEXEK
Direct Indirect
=% Bk
AEEEBHEEXER AR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MR
Bt (i) EEA
AER#100,000,0007T
SRR IFRBEER AR PRC Registered capital - 60  Property development
Note (i) il RMB300,000,000 MEER
B 52 i) FEE AR
AR #300,000,0007T
ERInE B ERMDER AT PRC Registered capital - 100 Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB100,000,000 MEE R
B 52 i) & AR
AR #100,000,0007T
IEMEE X AR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) s RMB20,000,000 LIESEY
Bt &t (i) & AR
AR #20,000,0007C
REBREEZAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) H RMB100,000,000 YRR
Bt &t (i) &R
AER#100,000,0007T
KiEEHEEZEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) & RMB50,000,000 MEERE
Bt &t (i) A=
AR #50,000,0007C
AEEREREERRAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MR
Bt (i) EEA

AR#100,000,0007T
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PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

46.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2020 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

B S R R (4]

R2020F 12318 * AAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MRS BRITEE RN E AL RER
=x ! b B R 2 3 B MR AEE ZADL FEXEK
Direct Indirect
HiE Bk
AEEETTHEXEERAR PRC Registered capital = 90  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MR
Bt (i) EEA
AER#100,000,0007T
I EEEMEEER AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) i RMB100,000,000 MERE
B 52 i) FEE AR
AR #100,000,0007C
SEEIEEMEEE AR AT PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB100,000,000 MEE R
B 52 i) & AR
AR #100,000,0007T
EEmEEXERAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) G2 RMB100,000,000 MEBER
B a2 i) & AR
AR#100,000,0007T
AERNEEERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) i RMB50,000,000 MEBER
Bt &t (i) &R
AR #50,000,0007C
R EEZEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i F RMB100,000,000 MERE
Bt &t (i) A=
AE#100,000,0007T
TAEEREEFER AR PRC Registered capital = 70  Property development
Note (i) il RMB100,000,000 MR
Bt (i) EEA

AR#100,000,0007T



46. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES 46.

(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2020 are as follows: (continued)

Nominal value of

Place incorporation/ issued ordinary/

Annual Report 2020

B S R R (4]

R2020F 12318 * AAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&

Percentage of

BoREER

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MRS BRITEE RN E AL RER
=x ! b B R 2 3 B X AR 2 E B ZEDL FEXEK
Direct Indirect
HiE Bk
THEEREXEARAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB50,000,000 MR
Bt (i) AR
AR #50,000,0007T
e MNEXERAR PRC Registered capital — 100  Property development
Note (i) h RMB50,000,000 LI EL
B 52 i) A AR
AR #50,000,0007C
IR EmBEXEERAA PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) 2 RMB200,000,000 MEE R
B 52 i) & AR
AR #200,000,0007T
REBRHEXBRAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) F RMB20,000,000 MEBR
B a2 i) & AR
AR #20,000,0007C
BN EHEHERZEERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) 3 RMB50,000,000 MEBR
Bt &t (i) &R
AR #50,000,0007C
BN EEEERAT PRC Registered capital - 51 Property development
Note (i) F RMB10,000,000 LIE2 Y
Bt &t (i) A AR
AR #10,000,0007C
EEMEREFER AR PRC Registered capital = 90  Property development
Note (i) F RMB20,000,000 LE2 Y

AR
AR#20,000,0007T

Bt
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PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

46.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2020 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

B S R R (4]

R2020F 12318 * AAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MRS BRITEE RN TR R
=18 b B R 2 3 B FMRAEE ZEDL TEEK
Direct Indirect
B R
EEBREEREFAR AR PRC Registered capital = 90  Property development
Note (i) F RMB20,000,000 LE2 Y
Bt (i) AR
AR #20,000,0007T
MMIEREXAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property investment
Note (i) A RMB100,000,000 MERE
Bt (i) A AR
AR #100,000,0007C
B EEEREEBR AR PRC Registered capital - 99.9  Property development
Note (i) R RMB30,000,000 VIR
Bt (ii) FEE A
AR #30,000,0007C
AEEESNEEBRAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) 3 RMB50,000,000 YEHR
Bt &t (i) & A
AR #50,000,0007C
KGR BEXEAR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) 3 RMB20,000,000 YEHR
B (i) EE A
AR #20,000,0007C
T IEEEEEXE AR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (ii) 2l RMB30,000,000 LIE2 Y
B (i) &R
AR #30,000,0007T
BENREBEZXGRAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) F RMB50,000,000 LE2 Y
Bt AR
AR #50,000,0007T
I THIREBE B PR A A PRC Registered capital -~ 100  Property development
Note (i) A RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bt (i) A AR

AE#20,000,0007T
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46. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

46.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2020 are as follows: (continued)

Place incorporation/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Annual Report 2020

BoREER

B S R R (4]

R2020F 12318 * AAREEHBRARIZE

£ (&)

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MRS BRITEE RN E AL RER
=18 b B R 2 3 B FMRAEE ZEDL FEXEK
Direct Indirect
HiE R
BRI EXEERAT PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) F RMB20,000,000 LE2 Y
Bt (i) AR
AR #20,000,0007T
BILEFHEXGRAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) A RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bt (i) A AR
AR #20,000,0007C
KR FREZXFRAR] PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) R RMB30,000,000 VIR
B 52 i) FEE A
AR #30,000,0007C
BEREMEEEEERAA PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) 3 RMB20,000,000 YEHR
Bt &t (i) & A
AR #20,000,0007T
FNBZREEEFERAA PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) 3 RMB20,000,000 YEHR
Bt &t (i) EE A
AR #20,000,0007C
BAOmEZFHNEEERAT PRC Registered capital - 56  Property development
Note (i) F RMB10,000,000 LIE2 Y
Bt &t (i) &R
AR #10,000,0007C
FYNEREFEERRAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property investment
Note (i) F RMB100,000,000 MERE
Bt (i) AR
AER#100,000,0007T
TAEREEEXERAR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) A RMB20,000,000 MEER
Bt (i) A AR

AE#20,000,0007T
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2020F 12 H31H

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2020 are as follows: (continued)

46.

Nominal value of

Place incorporation/

issued ordinary/

B S R R (4]

R2020F 12318 * AAREEHBRARIZE
BT - (&)

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital to the Company Principal activities
MR ERTEE RN E AL RER
=% b B R 2 3 B MR AEE ZADL FEEK
Direct Indirect
=% R
TAEEEEXERAR PRC Registered capital = 100  Property development
Note (i) i RMB50,000,000 Y E R
Bt EEA
AR #50,000,0007C
TEEERHEEEGR AR PRC Registered capital - 100  Property development
Note (i) il RMB50,000,000 MR
Bt &t (i) &R
AR #50,000,0007C
Notes: HieE -

(i) No capital contribution is required from the member unless otherwise
required by law.

(ii) Entities established in the PRC are limited liability companies with no
English names registered or available upon establishment.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 18 March 2021, the Group acquired land use rights of a land parcel
located in Yuanyang County, Henan Province, the PRC through listing
for sale process in a public auction held by Yuanyang County Natural
Resources Bureau* (JRF5% 8 AEIRE) for transfer of state-owned land
use rights with a site area of approximately 51,292.68 square meters at
a consideration of RMB100,020,800. The land parcel was designated for
residential usage with a term of use of 70 years and commercial usage
with a term of 40 years. The handover of the land parcel is expected to be
completed no later than the second quarter of 2021.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 25 March 2021.

47.

48.

(i) BIEERERTTHRE @ BEUEREERNEHY
ARBKERA]

(ii) RAEBERZERBRERAAF - BRKRILR
BHES R AR AT -

BEHREE

MR2021F3A18H  AEBRREZEBEAELR
PREERE L ARATE ARBEE
F&2 5 72 Fr R BRAS Az 74 AP B R R A IR B R A
EFE#I51,292.68F 5K 2 8 2 £ 5 FA 4 -
RE A ARK100,020,8007T ° &b I8 EIEE
EREERR  EEFEAFRATOFT BEA
HFEAERAB40F o ZHRIBIRAE 2021 F 5
ZEEZAIERRA °

#ER B R

R RCR2021 F3 25 HEEE S H AR
RRETEE o
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For the year ended 31 December

HZE12H31HILLEE

ot T

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194 20184 20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥ T AR® T AR® T AR® T
(Restated) (Restated)
(Z%1) (E7%)
Results ES
Revenue W25 8,069,061 8,887,186 601,470 1,100,419 67,960
Profit (loss) for the year FERF(EE) 778,373 1,151,458 28,492 131,602 (64,214)
Attributable to: FEAG -
Owners of the Company RARER A 782,988 1,151,571 29,971 131,709 (54,200)
Non-controlling interests IR (4,615) (113) (1,479) (107) (14)
Profit (loss) for the year FERM(EE) 778,373 1,151,458 28,492 131,602 (54,214)
As at 31 December
M2H831H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194 20184 20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR¥ TR AR® TR AR® TR AR® T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E35) (Z31)
Assets and liabilities EERER
Total assets BB E 67,152,356 51,942,189 39,569,259 18,542,750 3,311,955
Total liabilities REeE (59,263,541) (48,205,148) (38,447,747) (17,398,865) (2,275,634)
Net assets FEE 7,888,815 3,737,041 1,121,512 1,143,885 1,036,321
Non-controlling interests JEVERR R = (14,885) 3,593 7,053 9,581 10,704
Equity attributable to AERAEEEA
owners of the Company PG RS 7,873,930 3,740,634 1,128,565 1,153,466 1,047,025
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWE
Gross area

Location (approximately) Effective % held Type Lease term

1t B AR BEREEE  E5 iR
(%) (%)

No.883 North Bridge Road, Shop on 1/F. and 28,732 sq. ft. 100% Home Office Long-term lease
27 Home Office Units on various floors, 28,732F R NS NS REAFA
Southbank, Singapore 198785

5 Residential Units, Dakota Residences, 9,128 sq. ft. 100% Apartment Long-term lease
34-42 Dakota Crescent, Singapore 399939 9,128 HIR BF R

30/F and Carpark No. C8 on 2nd Carparking Floor, 3,480 sq. ft. 100% Office premises and Long-term lease
Wyndham Place, No.44 Wyndham Street, 3,480 F HR Car Parking space REAFL
Central, Hong Kong WARYERBEN

BERPIREFA4REREER D
3012 K212 5 5 C85R B fi

Glen Carr House, 1433 North Hamilton Drive, 29,000 sq. ft. 99.8% Senior house Freehold
Derby, Kansas, 67037, U.S. 29,000 /7R communities KA SN

Glen Carr House fiZ 7235 BI & BERT M2 tE T REXEES
North Hamilton Drive 14335

Oxford Grand McKinney, 2851 Orchid Drive, 69,700 sq. ft. 99.8% Senior house Freehold
McKinney, Texas, 75070, U.S. 69,700 5 R communities KAFERE

Oxford Grand McKinney fiZ 73 Bl{Z FE Hi M XX fE T REEREES
Orchid Drive 28515

Land parcels located at 671-180-012, 67.5 acres/ 100% Vacant land Freehold
013, 014, 015, 016, 017, 018 273,200 sg. m./ ZETH KA SERE

Desert Hot Springs, County of Riverside, 2,940,300 sq. ft.

State of California, 92503, U.S. 67.58,
RIFA B 07 & EZDesert Hot Springs 2 273,200 77K/
#h1%8671-180-012 ~ 013 ~ 014 ~ 015 * 2,940,300 5 R

016017 ~ 018
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